SPQ RS

Annual Rebort 2012 F3f

Stock Code A&7 X55%: 0337

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
BEEih (1ZR) BRAF



“FRESH THINKING QUALITY LIVING
CIEILEAR - A EZER”

Headquartered in Shanghai, SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 337) is areputable property

developer that is principally engaged in the development of quality residential and hotel properties, (“SPG Land” or

the “Group”). Since the incorporation of the Group, it has successfully developed three exemplar large-scale trophy

projects in Shanghai, namely, Cambridge Forest Newtown, Cambridge Waters (“Tiffany”) and Cambridge Watertown

("Oriental Garden”). These trophy projects have enhanced the Group’s brand name and reputation. With exquisite
residential design, unique living environment, innovative architectural style
and outstanding sales performance, the Group is awarded as “Shanghai Top
Ten Foreign Property Developers in 18 Years”, "Star of the Top 100 Developers”
amongst the top real estate developers in China. “Most Influential Brand
Enterprise” and various other awards. The listing of the Group on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in October 2006 has further reinforced
the Group’s profile in the international capital market. In March 2007, the
Group is elected as a constituent stock of the 200-Stock Hang Seng Composite
Index Series and Hang Seng Freeflow Index Series.

Since the listing of SPG Land in 2006, the Group has expanded its development

projects geographically and strategically to cities in Yangtze River Delta, such as

Ningbo, Wuxi, Changshu, Suzhou, Huangshan and also various provincial capital

cities that are emerging and developing with high-potential such as, Kunming
Haikou and Taiyuan. The rapid growth sustained in the China’s economy has accelerated the progress of urbanization.
This results in an increase of disposable income from the urban population, in particular the middle-to-high income
sector. The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and distinctive services to enhance the standard
of living to its customers. To achieve this objective, the Group works with world renowned design and architectural
teams in the development of their projects. As for the land bank, the Group adopts a proactive yet prudent approach
in their selection of projects to ensure the land bank is replenished with quality and high-growth potential land. The
management team firmly believes that the healthy and sustainable development of the Group, in the long run, depends
on the provision of quality products and projects with good growth potential.

The excellent track record of the Group’s property development and active co-operation with leading hotel management
groups in the investment and development of hotel properties has brought promising outcomes and recurring income
for the Group. The current hotel projects include the crown-jewel Shanghai Peninsula Hotel, the Shanghai Cambridge
Holiday Inn, and the Crowne Plaza Resort Hotel located in the world-renowned scenic Huangshan. These projects
under the Group’s hotel business development will benefit greatly from the prosperous tourism industry in China and
the upcoming 2010 World Expo in Shanghai. This increase in recurrent income from hotel operations and investment
properties will strengthen the business foundation of SPG Land in the long run.

“Fresh Thinking, Quality Living” is the corporate creed of SPG Land. This, along with the international and professional
background of the Group, enables SPG Land to stand out in the real estate market in China. With professional
management skills, excellent quality products and prudent financial operation, SPG Land looks forward to building
a better future for cities in China, creating a comfortable and harmonious society and maximizing returns for the
stakeholders of the Group.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS ¥&HE
For the year ended 31 December 2+ —A=+—HILFZ

2012 2011
—E-—fF —=—F
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBBET AREBEET (G
Revenue Wz 1,767 5,678 -69%
Gross Profit E£7 405 1,939 -79%
(Loss)/Profit from Operating Activities 28 B 4% 25 &) (/E518)
ezl (425) 1,525 -128%
Net (Loss)/Profit /% (/&518) /% F (988) 883 -212%
Attributable to: JA N A &ML :
— Equity Holders of the Company — A2 BIRGAEHS A A (938) 898 -204%
— Minority Interests — S8 RAE &S (50) (15) +233%
(Loss)/Earnings Per Share (RMB) &f% (E518) &7 (ARETT)
—Basic — &7 (0.92) 0.86 -207%
- Diluted —#£% (0.92) 0.86 -207%
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2012 REVENUE ANALYSIS —ZE—Z—FE W= 247
2012 2011
—ET——F —E——%F
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBEET AREBHET S
Sales of property #7235 & 1,280 5,387 -76%
Sales of parking lot (FE A7 $HE 135 30 +350%
Rental income & YA 51 37 +38%
Property management income & other related service
VBB RH MR RS 84 66 +27%
Hotel and related services JBJE & Bt E AR S 142 81 +75%
Education & 75 77 -3%
Total 485+ 1,767 5,678 -69%
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——%
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBBEET ARBEETT i
Total Assets EE4ERE 23,053 23,838 3%
Total Liabilities & {&42%8 18,744 18,532 +1%
Total Equity #4858 4,309 5,306 -19%
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—E-FR&EDM
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KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
A R EE (ol B

WUXI XISHUIDONG - COMMERCIAL

o In March 2012, The Florea Project in Haikou successfully launched its
presale of Phase Il — property right hotel (EE#=0E &)

o Disposal of Wuxi Chao Yang Men Project in June 2012

° Disposal of Huangpu Zhongxin City Project in November 2012

o Successful launch of Hai Chang Liu Project in Haikou City in
December 2012
o In December 2012, the Company organized an opening ceremony

for Wuxi Xishuidong Chinese Folk Industrial Culture Street in

Xishuidong Commercial Street Central Plaza
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
BETH SRR

SPG LAND

o SPG Land ranked among “China’s Top 50 Real Estate Listed
Companies in terms of Overall Strength 2012"

o SPG Land was awarded “Most Valuable Listed Real Estate Enterprise
in China 2012" in Boao Real Estate Forum 2012 organized by
Guandian Real Estate New Media

. Peninsula Residences under SPG Land was awarded “The Best
Owner in China and the Best Luxury Hotel Serviced Apartment in
2012"

THE PENINSULA SHANGHAI

o The Peninsula Shanghai earned a Forbes Travel Guide Five-Star
rating and was recognized as one of the finest hotels in the world.
The Aqua Treatment Centre was recognized as a five-star spa
centre. The hotel was also awarded “Top Technology Hotel” with its
cutting-edge technology

HOLIDAY INN KANGQIAO SHANGHAI

o “Best Wedding Hotel in 2012"
City Traveler magazine

° “Most Preferred Hotels for Business Travelers of Chinain 2012"-
China Hotel Starlight Awards

o “Top 10 Most Surprising Swimming Pool in the World” -
daodao.com

FRASER SUITES SUZHOU

o Awarded “Best Serviced Apartment of China in 2012" by the 8th
China Hotel Starlight Awards

SUZHOU GLOBAL 188 - COMMERCIAL

° Global 188 Commercial awarded “Most Innovative Commercial
Real Estate Project” for year 2011-2012

° Global 188 Commercial ranked as the third in the “List of Influential
Commercial Real Estate Projects on Sina Weibo”

o Global 188 Shopping Mall awarded “Most Luxurious Shopping Mall
in Suzhou" under the “Suzhou Taste of Life Awards”

THE HIDDEN TIGER GOLF CLUB IN HUANGSHAN

o Ranked as the second in “Best Golf Course Design in 2012" by
China Golf Magazine
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In 2012, albeit its overall growth, the global economy was
still persistently suppressed, amidst unfavorable factors
including the slackened demand and the weak investment
and consumption from major economies around the world,
together with the shrinkage in the growth of international
trade. The complicated and fast-changing environment, both
at home and abroad, has translated into more remarkable
downside risks in China’s economy. The central government
continued to implement stringent austerity measures on
the real estate market, with new policies to be introduced
with respect to purchase restriction, loan restriction,
grant of land and imposition of taxes. Going forward,
such austerity measures will be more intensified and be
implemented on a regular and ongoing basis. That having
said, we believe that China will remain the major driver of
the global economic growth in future. At the same time,
the macroscopic conditions have showed us the prospects
of the real estate sector: Firstly, the new administration has
taken urbanization to a strategic altitude, and its progress
will bring tremendous opportunities for the real estate
market. Secondly, the record high level attained by the per
capita GDP in China, with the GDP of first-tier cities including
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen reaching a level
which is comparable to medium-level developed countries,
will support the ongoing robust growth of the demand for

residential housing from those seeking to improve their living

standard. Thirdly, China has witnessed remarkable changes
in the consumption structure of the residents, under which more high-end style of living will be increasingly more sought after,
which will contribute to the ample room of development for leisure-based real estate development catering to tourists and retired
people.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESVEia

We remain cautiously optimistic towards the prospects of the real estate
sector of China. While the real estate sector is expected to remain an
irreplaceable pillar industry for a prolonged period of time in future,
substantial changes will be seen in market opportunities, the name of
the game of success, and the core competence of enterprises. As always,
SPG Land will adhere to its pursuit for high-end real estate development,
and will adopt a standardized and delicate approach to management to
achieve quality refinement. Only by doing this can SPG Land have greater
opportunities in future.

REVIEW OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2012

In 2012, SPG Land continued to adhere to its high-end real estate strategy
and its “2+X" development strategy. Under such premises, the Group
achieved good results in property sales, engineering construction, hotel
and commercial operations. In Haikou, Hai Chang Liu outperformed
customers’ expectation with its “superb but affordable” products and
swiftly achieved excellent market sales, ranking Haikou’s No. 1 in sales for
the year 2012. In Suzhou, the exquisitely-made Global 188 was granted
“China Construction Project Luban Award (GEEE TR2EITHE) ”, which is
the most regarded award representing the highest attainment of quality in
China’s construction industry. In addition, Global 188 Shopping Mall was
also granted “Most Innovative Commercial Real Estate Project (FE&I%T
M ETEE) “ and “Most Luxurious Shopping Mall (& A mALEY
/L3) . In Shanghai, the finely built Peninsula Shanghai located on the Bund
of Shanghai received the “Forbes Travel Guide Five-Star rating (%&77 #Tjik
WA EFT4) 7, and Peninsula Residences was also awarded “The Best
Owner in China and the Best Luxury Hotel Serviced Apartment in 2012 (2012
FERBEREEEIREEREEREALE)".

While obtaining the aforesaid awards and accolades, SPG Land was, for
the time being, posed with the following challenges in its operations:
with slight decrease in its year-on-year sales, the Group recorded
negative adjustmentin its profit in 2012, which represented the first
time of whole-year loss, amounting to RMB938 million for the full year.
It was attributable, in the first place, to the more prominent effect of the
austerity policies on the Group which had higher proportion of high-
end properties in its product mix. Secondly, it was due to the failure
to perfectly match the pace of development and the pace of salesin a
timely and effectively manner. The third reason was the deviation in the
delivery of properties, which directly resulted in the failure to carry forward
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESV e

some properties already sold. Fourthly, it was attributable to the drop in
operations efficiency in the Group's hotels, which recorded some drop in
sales revenue. Looking back on 2012, being aware of the deviation from
our operations strategies and the inadequacy in our product strategies,
we find such self-reflections will be enormously beneficial to the future
development of SPG Land.

OUTLOOK OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2013

In 2013, we believe that the results of operations of SPG Land will be
fully reversed, as supported and secured by the following: Firstly, it is the
abundantly available stocks for sale and a product mix which better caters
to market demand. Secondly, delivery of properties not conducted in 2012
will be conducted in 2013. Thirdly, the Company has strong cash flow.
Fourthly, the Group has sufficient land bank to secure development in the
years to come. With the competitive landscape in this post-austerity era
and new opportunities for development, it is still the goal of development
of SPG Land to become the leader in China’s high-end real estate sector,
and we will realise this goal based on a clearer strategy.

TO ADHERE TO HIGH-END REAL ESTATE
STRATEGY AND MAINTAIN A RICH PRODUCT
MIX TO BOOST OUR RISK-GUARDING
CAPABILITY

In 2013, SPG Land will continue “Selecting high-quality land, fabricating
innovative products, and seeking to construct local landmark buildings
with historic significance in each and every city”, which is derived from
the development strategy of SPG Land and also reflects the ideals which
is intrinsic to the genes of all members of SPG Land. On the one hand, we
must take the initiative to be committed to developing high-end properties
and further develop our core competence. This will include the availability
of fine facilities using cloud technology in Global 188 in Suzhou, the
ongoing revamp to the motherland to modern national industrial and
commercial development in Xi Shui Dong in Wuxi, and the fine fabrication
of landmark products in Taiyuan and Ningbo. On the other hand, we must
put in further resources to create our “superb but affordable”, exquisite
residential products in urban areas which offer shorter production
cycle and hence quicker cashflow. Among others, the Metropolitan in
Kunming and Hai Chang Liu in Haikou fall within such group, and in our
future development we will expand the proportion of such products in
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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our portfolio and establish a product standardization system to stay in
tandem with it. Apart from this, we will step up the scale of development
of tourism-based and leisure-based products. With the change of people’s
style of touring from sightseeing to more leisure-based sort of vacations,
and the gradual change from visiting to staying, we will launch our new
international apartment Taiping Lake Resort project in Huangshan in 2013,
apart from Emerald Bay in Changshu and Haikou Florea which are already
under development. The introduction of this product will further enrich
our product line and effectively consolidate our resources in commercial,
hotel and property management.

TO ENDEAVOUR TO ACHIEVE FASTER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SHORTER PRODUCTION
CYCLE AND HENCE QUICKER CASHFLOW

The need for a high pace of development arises from both market
competition as well as the intention to guard against risks. To achieve fast
pace of development in its projects, SPG Land has taken actions in the
following aspects to secure shorter production cycle and hence quicker
cashflow. Firstly, with the optimization of the workflow of internal control,
the decision-making process can be expedited, and frontline segments
become entitled to more decision-making power. Secondly, the enhanced
capability in the consolidation of resources can foster the consolidation
of resources for strategic cooperation among areas of contracting and
procurement. Thirdly, it is to expedite the establishment of a product
standardization system. Fourthly, by highlighting the main points for
assessment, we will give more incentives and strengthen the sense of
responsibility, with a view to boosting the overall execution capability of
the group as a whole.
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ESVE e

TO CONSOLIDATE THE RESOURCES ALONG
THE ENTIRE INDUSTRY CHAIN IN THE
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY TO BOOST OUR
CORE COMPETENCE

Arising from the need to enhance the core competence of SPG Land in
“fabricating high-end real estate products”, we established Shanghai
Jiuchang Construction Engineering Co., Ltd., our construction arm, in
2012 to gradually establish standardized engineering management system,
quality management system and a system for managing subcontractors
and suppliers, thereby helping to reduce costs, improve quality, shorten
production cycle, and ensure quicker cashflow. In 2013, the Group will
step up its efforts on Shanghai Jiuchang Construction Engineering Co.,
Ltd. to fully boost its management level and “combating” capability,
and continue to raise its scale of construction. Meanwhile, we will also
develop Shanghai Lishui Greenery Ecology Engineering Co., Ltd. which
is to be primarily engaged in the construction of landscape and greenery
works, and prepare for the establishment of subcontracting teams
including those to be engaged in aluminum alloys, and construction-
related entities including construction consulting companies and labour-
secondment companies, with a view to consolidating the resources along
the entire industry chain to support and serve the enhancement in the core
competence of the Group.

TO ESTABLISH A DIVERSIFIED FINANCING
PLATFORM AND COOPERATION MODELS TO
POOL TOGETHER ENERGY RESERVES FOR THE
FURTHER DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP

While continuing to foster the development of financing channels which
are domestically available, SPG Land will also make good use of the listing
platform in Hong Kong more strenuously, from a wider perspective and
on a higher level. It will take the initiative to consolidate capital available
at home and abroad, and uplift the efficiency of leverage of investment.
Apart from this, we will also explore modes of investment from a
diversified perspective, including collaborative development jointly with
other enterprises and innovative investment modes jointly with funds, to
pool together energy reserves and lay down a foundation for the further
development of the Group.

EﬁL%éE%ﬁﬁﬁ =

AN
(=)
EROBEF

Hﬁ

ERRARSEMTERCIE ZOBRFE IR
£ BPR2012FK T TEERIEE - NER
o BIASRIENEERE SRR E N TRE
BER EEEEERAURSBHEENEEE
R MBI ERMIPER A  BARE - HBRET
B RERAEBERNEA - 2013F - £EBMAY
NEBRENBANE - 2EEFAEEEKFERIES
8670 - WHAREIG N ERGEAR AR o BALRIR - K AUE
BITEBNREES L TREMNBKERE  TE
ERIRE SN BHA - BEERNARRSBER
RISEERBECE  UBASEEBER TN
REREBZOEFE IR -

Li%ﬁ@§$A&A¢Eﬁ’%
SEE-—SREESE

xﬁb

BB SESEDEARERE  RNKES
Em - EEREENERNEREEL LM FERIE
A BEEAEARINER - RERENERYE -
%ﬂkl:Z?l\ C BMEBRRZTTEARERR - B
TEEETAFRE  BESAFARER
‘E%E%@T SRREELE  BEER -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESVEia

AT 15, SPG LAND CARRIES ON WITH ITS
JOURNEY

2013 is the 15th anniversary of the establishment of SPG Land. Looking
back on the course of growth in the past 15 years, we see the hardship at
start-up, the pleasure with success, and the most invaluable thing would
be the solid footprints in many cities. This would not have been possible
without the recognition of the many homeowners, the understanding and
support from all walks of life, and definitely the hand-in-hand companion
of all members of SPG Land as well as the trust and full support from the
shareholders.

While enjoying our success, we should nevertheless reflect on our
experience accumulated and lessons learnt from the course of these 15
years. Based on them, we should steer ourselves to the correct direction,
boost our own capability, and carry on with our journey. On its way to the
future, SPG Land will live up to the following three pillars of adherence:

1. To continue to adhere to our high-end real estate strategy, seek
to optimize our development capability, and achieve shorter
production cycle and hence quicker cashflow;

2. To adhere to the establishment of Shanghai Jiuchang Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd. and platforms for consolidating downstream
resources to achieve both industry consolidation as well as
specialization;

3. To leverage upon the new opportunities under economic
development to adhere to fostering the fabrication of new products

and new models of development.

Leveraging upon the steady economic and social development of China,
we are confident that in 2013 and beyond, SPG Land will be brought to a
higher altitude, at which all of its staff members will have more long-term
development and all of its shareholders will reap more fruitful returns.

Last of all, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
again to all of our shareholders, investors, strategic partners and
commercial partners for their trust and support given to SPG Land.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW

AT B

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

In 2012, the People’s Bank of China adopted a relatively loose policy as
compared to 2011 to increase liquidity in the money market, and the
gradual recovery of China’s economy resulted in stabilization of property
prices and sales from the second quarter. However, the implementation of
measures aimed at curbing property speculation continued, resulting in a
dampened demand for residential properties. Under such circumstances,
the Group responded quickly to market changes by adopting diversified
marketing and sales strategies in new property launches.

During the Year, the Group obtained contracted sales of RMB3 billion,
which was a bit behind the growth trend maintained by the Group during
the past few years. However, given the sufficient supply of units for sale
in 2013 and the flexible marketing and pricing strategies adopted by
the Group, | am confident that the Group will achieve the same level of
contracted sales growth as in the previous years very soon.

Sales Performance and Property Development

For the year 2012, contracted sales reached RMB3,008 million
(2011: RMB3,207 million). Aggregate contracted GFA amounted to
287,413 sg.m., up by 52.1% over the 188,904 sq.m. in last year. The
average contracted selling price was RMB10,466 persq.m. (2011:
RMB16,979). Despite the challenging business environment in 2012, the
Group managed to maintain its average unit contracted selling price above
RMB 10,000, which was higher than the average market prices in the cities
where the Group's projects are located.

REm R
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

Sales Performance and Property Development
(Continued)

Despite the severe industrial environment in 2012, the Group capitalized
on itsin-depth understanding of the market in which it engages and
adopted flexible sales strategies according to market changes by actively
expanding into the sales market of second-tier cities. During the period
under review, the Groups’ key projects in second-tier cities continued
to be the main contributors of contracted sales. The key projects that
contributed significant portions of contracted sales are in Wuxi (34%),
Haikou (25%), Changshu (17%), Kunming (9%) and Taiyuan (6%). Hai
Chang Liu Project in Haikou, for instance, recorded a total sales of 260
units on the first day of its sales campaign in December 2012, and its sales
of the day broke the record of Haikou's property market. Nearly 700 units
had been sold as of 31 December 2012. These are all products of supreme
quality located in cities with highest disposable income to capitalize on
the strong demand for upgrades in living environment by homebuyers. By
taking advantage of the weak market to launch its sales and promotion
campaign, Changshu Emerald Bay, which was situated in Yangtze River
Delta, demonstrated remarkable results by recording an outstanding sales
performance amidst the weak market. Xi Shui Dong in Wuxi, a city-centre
integrated project in Yangtze River Delta which is regarded as a landmark
project in the locality with tremendous market popularity, also recorded
good sales performance during FY2012. Moreover, Florea in Haikou and
Metropolitan in Kunming have long been setting the benchmark of prices
and topping the sales performance charts in the respective areas and even
cities.

As of 31 December 2012, we had a total of 10 projects under development
in eight cities, with a total gross floor area (“GFA") over 1.26 million sq.m..

Commercial Properties

While residential products were under certain constraints, the Group also
achieved satisfactory results in the sector of commercial properties. In May
2012, Suzhou Global 188 Commercial was awarded the “Most Innovative
Commercial Real Estate Project” for year 2011-2012. On 23 December
2012, the Company organized an opening ceremony for Wuxi Xishuidong
Chinese Folk Industrial Culture Street in Xishuidong Commercial Street
Central Plaza. The maturity of these commercial properties will provide the
Group with a continuous and steady cash flow.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)
Hotel Development

To ensure stable and long-term income, the Group develops the hotel
business through expansion of product line and diversification of its
portfolio. As the owner of the Peninsula Shanghai, Fraser Suite Suzhou
and Holiday Inn Kanggiao Shanghai, SPG Land Group was awarded the
“Best Hotel Owners of China” in the 8th China Hotel Starlight Awards in
the year 2012.

In 2012, the Peninsula Shanghai established its leadership in the industry
with its average room rate and average rate of units for sale ranking the
first and its occupancy rate ranking the second among similar luxury hotels
in Shanghai. Meanwhile, the market position of the Peninsula Shanghai
was also recognized by the industry. In December 2012, Peninsula
Residences was named the “Best Luxury Hotel Serviced Apartment in
2012" by Insider Magazine.

Fraser Suites Suzhou, which officially opened on 24 May 2011, has
already established a leading industry position and opened a new high-
end apartment market in Suzhou. In year 2012, Fraser Suites Suzhou was
awarded the “Best Serviced Apartment of China” in the 8th China Hotel
Starlight Awards.

Holiday Inn Kanggiao Shanghai, which officially opened on 27 May
2011, has obtained a very large market share in Pudong by combining its
own strengths and geographical location. In the year 2012, Holiday Inn
Kanggiao Shanghai was awarded the “Most Preferred Hotels for Business
Travelers of China” in the 8th China Hotel Starlight Awards.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)
Property Management

During the Year, the overall operation and management of the property
management arm of the Group, SPG Property Services, was in order and
smooth. SPG Property Services fulfilled all the operation and management
indicators in a satisfactory manner, with a material increase in operation
quality and customer satisfaction under each service item, a significant
drop in valid customer complaints and nil quality accidents recorded. The
property management service level of each project was highly accredited
by customers and the industry in the respective areas. SPG Property
Services facilitated the extension of the branding strategies of the Group
by creating value with its services.

As of 31 December 2012, SPG Property Services managed an area of
1.66 million sg.m. under contracts, serving totally 13 property projects for
seven property branches in Shanghai, Wuxi, Changshu, Suzhou, Haikou,
Kunming and Taiyuan.

Prudent Replenishment of Land Bank

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a portfolio of land bank that is
sufficient to support the Group's development pipeline for the future five
years. Therefore, the Group will continue to develop high-quality projects
in the more economically developed Yangtze River Delta and provincial
capital cities with fast economic growth.

As of 31 December 2012, the Group held a quality land bank of
approximately 4.7 million sg.m. which is sufficient for at least a few years
of development.

Equity Transfers of Projects

InJune 2012, the Group transferred all of its equity interests in Wukxi
Chao Yang Men Project to Evergrande Real Estate Group at a total
consideration of approximately RMB966 million. In November 2012, the
Group transferred its 30% equity interests in Huangpu Zhongxin City
Project at a total consideration of approximately RMB95 million. In January
2013, the Group transferred its 60% equity interests in Wuxi Jin Gui Li
Project to Wuxi Taihu New Town Development Group Co., Ltd at a total
consideration of approximately RMB1,099 million.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)
Equity Transfers of Projects (Continued)

The above equity transfers have improved the Group’s liquidity position,
reduced its future financial commitments and enhanced its cash flow.
Moreover, these transactions have also provided additional capital
resources for the Group to capture further investment opportunities.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, despite the complicated and fast-changing macroeconomic
environment and the expected continuous implementation of policies and
measures that are aimed at curbing property speculations, the Group will
assess the situation and adopt flexible marketing strategies according to
specific locations, local market conditions and characteristics of different
projects. In the long term, in view of the continuous adjustment in the
Mainland property market, the Group will adjust its product structure
on the basis of the strategy of “well-established in Shanghai, further
expansion into Yangtze River Delta Region” to which the Group will
adhere, increase the proportion of projects with shorter development
cycles and faster paces of development, and seek multi-channel
cooperation models to co-develop its projects and further diversify its
financing channels, in order to provide the Group with greater flexibility for
swift responses to the changes in the market environment. As for financial
management, the Group will continue to adhere to a prudent financial
policy, in order to maintain a healthy financial position in its course of rapid
business development.

Based on the success of the "2+X"” product strategy, SPG Land will
continue to further develop the three product lines — “city community,
city-center integrated projects and leisure projects”, develop diversified
product and service offerings to meet different market needs, and ensure a
healthy income stream for the Group under varying market environments,
thereby realizing a long-term sustainable business development in the
coming year and further strengthening its position as a premier property
developer in the Yangtze River Delta Region.
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—Suzhou —Global 188
M | BE-IRII8S
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
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SHANGHAI PROJECTS Li#f#IEH

Tiffany (Cambridge Waters)
RE R (EEKES) -

et QN0
\S

[9)

Z The Peninsula Shanghai
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Cambridge
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Shanghai Cambridge 2
Lo Holiday Inn outer R"9
Highway 1
R EREBEEE - @

1. Tiffany (Cambridge Waters) 525 - &}

Site area (sq.m) M AEEFE(SFH2K) ¢ 439,667
GFA (sq.m) #B3ZEEmE & (F oK) : 579,696

Brief Introduction BB/ :

—  Alarge-scale property development comprising mainly
residential properties targeted at middle class customers
HETYFEFEERNAAYEZRIER - LRERER
FEAREF

—  Within 5 minutes to the nearest Metro station and within 20
minutes to the city center by the subway
TR AR U VA KIS D SETAR + = T SEAA] AT
il

—  Phase | &Il have been completed; Tiffany (Phase lll) was partly
completed and delivered in January 2013

—HINZHEART - HRE(ZH)ER2013F1 ART
RS




BEEH(ZR)ERAR —T-—FFH 21

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
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2. Cambridge Forest Newtown &5 - EE¥ 5

Site area (sq.m) AR (F52K) ¢ 1,584,334
GFA (sq.m) B2 E R (F 5 K) : 1,150,697

—  One of the largest low-density residential developments in

Shanghai
PERANEREEEER 2 —

—  Within 25 minutes’ driving distance to the city center

BBt AR 0257 SEE IR

—  Phase I-VI have been completed, Xiuxi Apartment was
completed and delivered at the end of 2012
—ENEEREK - HEABN2012 FEKR TR

Site area (sq.m) #A&ERE (F5K)  : 42,750
GFA (sq.m) B3 A (F77K) : 59,630

— The projectis located close to the airport, the 2010 World Expo
site and the upcoming Shanghai Disneyland
ZIE B AR5 - 2010 S EN KRB H i
TELLE

—  The hotel has 400 guest rooms. This project also consist
of apartments, retail space, conference facilities and the
clubhouse

HERA0EBEERR - A8 - TEZEM - eRkekam

—  The project development was completed in 2010. The Holiday
Inn announced its grand opening in 2011 and the apartments
have been all sold out
THHBR2010FEEEK - REBEER201MFEMER
R - EEXAABEESIEE
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
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Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FH2K) ¢ 304,001

GFA (sq.m) B2 mEE (F 5 K) 1 202,629

— The largest Chinese-style, lakeside villa development in

Shanghai
DEsReHAHERNER

—  The project has approximately 700 houses; Located in Qingpu
District; 25km from Honggjiao Airport
R BEEHR - RAY7001RE EAEK - BRI E#%525
nE

— Adjacent to ancient water town Zhuijiajiao; 1,700-year history
and a famous tourist site; excellent ecological area
WERARAELESHEERNA - KKARK/EF1,7005F
JE s 7k BB $E - DAEBSE A AR TR R i 5t 2

— Lot -Vl have been completed
—EERHIRE AT T

Site area (sq.m) & ERE (SF5€) ¢ 13,898
GFA (sq.m) B2 mE (F75K) 92,520

includes:
BIE
Peninsula Hotel, Peninsula Residences and Peninsula Arcade

FEEE  DS¥BREABRYERS

—  Peninsula Hotel has a total of 235 rooms; Peninsula Residences
has a total of 39 units
FEHEHEF23SEER - DEEEREABHEEI9EE

(v

—  The Peninsula Hotel has full facilities including the signature
Peninsula lobby lounge, jazz bar, Peninsula Aqua Treatment
Centre, swimming pool and 5 restaurants

FBBERERETE  BEERNLERENRSE - B i i :
TEOAID « FEEF L R R IESRA ZEE =
LORE « EBKEF WK R Z SRR B BE H_-u[[[llllllllllml-'-.'-"!!!lt! — ...| .
—  The signature development was completed in 2009 and the iRkl I I‘ . & I i
hotel was opened at March 2010 13 | J = H

TR SR T 2000 SRR - BEEEEE
M20105F3 A IEXF%E




BEEH(EZR)ERAR T —FFH% 23

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
YISEIH H

YANGTZE RIVER DELTA PROJECTS RiL=FAMIEH
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WUXI PROJECTS #8535 H

Site area (sq.m) B EE(FHK) 248,800
GFA (sq.m) 82 EmAE(FH2K) : 695,400

— Located in the heart of Wuxi and in close proximity to the central commercial and business district. Currently the largest city-core development
project in Wuxi, designed as a multi-phase and large-scale city-centre integrated development comprising residential and commercial

compound
IRESH TR - B REERE - 2E5 B S ANBTHOERREER - RERFTHNARTENEENRE - ZHHRENGE
#2818 H

—  About two hours driving distance to Shanghai
BB Rt BRI/ EE

— Partof Phasel, Il &V has been completed
—H - —HINA BSOS ERT

L[ i
I

LT
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SUZHOU PROJECT #fJHIHH

Site area (sq.m) H A EE(FHK) 14,896

GFA (sq.m) #BFESEE 78 (F 75 K) : 149,308

—  Located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park, near Jinji Lake,
underground connected to the subway
(IR AR S EEMEVERN TRE T REHE - MRS
U

— Alandmark project consisting of serviced apartment (Frasers
Suites), hotel (Chedi Hotel), grade A office tower and retail
podium, the tallest building under construction in vicinity
HARBA AR (RER) BEEREE) FARTER
PEEREPTAK AT 2 - EEAEEN&EEE

— Awarded “Top 10 New landmarks in China”

FESTHEHAFTRIA R TR

—  Fraser Suites Suzhou situated in Global 188 officially opened in

May 2011
IRER 1888 M B AR BB A B 2011455 A IE N F %
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CHANGSHU PROJECT ##JE H

La Casa B5- 1458
Site area (sq.m) A& (FHK) 119,769
GFA (sq.m) 82 EmAE(FH2K) 1 86,728

— Situated at the fringe of Yu Mountain, facing the national park and with established amenities and infrastructures
AR - MEREIRAE - G o= 13U LRkt R % e

—  Aprestigious project in the area consisting of townhouses and duplexes units
REREBERIE KRB INFIZEFTAEKNEETEEE

— The project has been completed
ZEEETL
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Site area (sq.m) #EEERE(FHK) ¢ 107,391
GFA (sq.m) A8 32EEmE & (F 75 K) 121,325

— Situated at the unique location and is adjoining the scenic Shang lake to the north along with impressive mountain views

ZIHB AR ESERAEAILR - WA AERE LIS

- Commencement of construction in 2010 and also started the pre-sale
EM2010 FRIIWREFRIATES
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
YIS H St

NINGBO PROJECT #3%JH H

Site area (sq.m) A& EFE (F52K) ¢ 90,974
GFA (sq.m) #B3EEEETE (F 5 K) :125,691

— Acquired in February 2011 with an excellent location at the
entrance to Hangzhou Bay Bridge linking Shanghai to its
southwest, City Express Ring Road to its east, Yubei Expressway
to its north and is adjacent to Xiaoyong Railroad
FZHRAMR2011F2ANEE - HAZEEAMIBME - 755
ESMMNERBEE D - REEZENSEALK @ L@
ARILEIRARE - WHRT AR EIEK

— Astrategic move to mark the Group’s expansion into Zhejiang
province, and establish a more comprehensive coverage of the
Yangtze River Delta
EHRAEE AT A NEEEREL T EAMBER
— % FEAEEER-ARET ERNMIEEER

—  The project is under planning currently
%38 B RS IEEAR 8
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KUNMING PROJECT EHIIEH

Site area (sq.m) # A& mEAE(FHK) 170,806
GFA (sq.m) #BFESEE 78 (F 75 K) : 614,994

— Located along Dianchi Road in the metropolitan area of
Kunming, where the Provincial Central Administration Offices
are located, is a high quality multi-phase residential and
commercial project
AR EREATHROEAERE D - =R E R RITE
MAR - ROPERNABEETEREFGRSER

— Designated as the recommended urban living residential

project by China Real Estate Index System in 2009
152009 FH EERBFSAHER M EEEEEE |

— Phasel, I &Il are completed
—H - ZHREA=HRYSEERK

—  Phase V started its pre-sale in February 2013
HHEIE 201352 ARRTEE
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HAIKOU PROJECT #HIEH

Site area (sq.m) A& (F oK) 292,174
GFA (sq.m) SR (F5K) : 252,759

—  Located at the first-tier waterfront in the northern part of
Haikou, the Florea enjoys an unobstructed ocean view,
comprising Spanish-style residential development
PEATIEED - B - RIS —PERERER - R
A EEIEA

—  Phase | &Il are completed, Phase lllis in the process of
construction and pre-sale

—HIM BB SRR - —HIERTARET

— Adjacent to on the National Tourism Island planning, the
project has a great potential of appreciation

KAEBRRIKESRE - THEENEX

Site area (sq.m) A& (FH2K) 339,720

GFA (sq.m) #B3ZEEETE (F 75 K) : 1,000,652

—  Located at the core area of New CBD, just close to the New
administration Center of Haikou. The new administrative
center was ready and occupied at the end of 2010
LR AT A% 0 R 15(CBD) - B4 AT TEH
R o FTEFRLE 2010 KR AEA

—  Theland connects the Coast Avenue from North, and faces the
being built International Exhibition Centre
ZiRI B OMRFEZENEFER L ——BEBRE - 5%
HAEEERPHERERERA O

— The project started its pre-sale in December 2012
ZIEEHB 2012612 AFBRTEES
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
YISEIH H

TAIYUAN PROJECT AJEIHH

Andaluz &5 - L&
Site area (sq.m) HAREFE (F5K) 429,000
GFA (sq.m) B2 EmE(FHK) : 352,900

‘

—  Acquired in July 2009, located in Xiaodian District, southeast of Taiyuan City, the capital of Shanxi Province, an area with enormous potential as
the local government intends to develop the area into a multi-functional residential, commercial and leisure new town center
HARF2009F7 AES - IRNILFEE @ ARREN/NER « ZBRERERES - REMBNEERNZIEET « B RIKE
il alli

—  Planned to be a low-rise residential community with leisure, sports and retail facilities. The topography of the land is raised so the development
will overlook the whole of Taiyuan City

REBEENHE - BERMERENEEEETHE - BRMMAR @ FEXS

—  The project started its presale in 2011
HHER2011FFRTES
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
YIS H St

HUANGSHAN PROJECT #1135 H

Site area (sq.m) A& (F oK) 2,283,733
GFA (sq.m) S AE (F5K) 1,141,867

—  Located in the northern part of Huangshan, close to the legendary scenic Taiping Lake
IR FEILAEER - #BE 2 A AR Bt A T4

—  Multi-phase resort development comprising five-star hotels, golf course, resort villas and apartments

REPERNERRIAR - BELERLE  SRERNRS  ERIERAB

- Agolf practicing facility designed by world-renowned Gary Player was trial to run by the end of 2009 as scheduled
Rt RIEAR MR ERERE TR Gary Player s25TH) = BR R ERIZH 2009 F IR LN AR A FIE &

—  Hidden Tiger Golf Club was awarded as “Top 10 New Golf Courses in China”
EALR = RO R (AL EA PR o B HEm R 3Tk
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Results

During the year 2012, the easing measures by the People’s Bank of China
increased liquidity in the money market, and the gradual recovery of
China’s economy resulted in improvement in the sentiment of the property
market. However, the implementation of measures aimed at curbing
property speculation continued, resulting in a dampened demand for
residential properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately RMB1,767 million, a decline of approximately
69% from the same period last year. The decline was attributable to the
lower gross floor area (GFA) sold and delivered during the year. Net loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately RMB938
million, compared to a net profit of RMB898 million in 201 1. Basic and
diluted loss per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to RMB0.92 per share, compared to a net profit of RMB0.86
per share in 2011.

EROEE
ES

RZT—ZFF  FRARBITORREMEEN T
E¥MEHREES - MABLEESERITTE
PIETIGARNTE - A - PEFEETITENE
BENER  SETMEZTKIE -

HE-Z——-F+-A=1+—HILFE - ~EHE
Bz AR 1,767,000,0007T 82 F R Hf
WAL HI69% - REAZFADE R NEE MR
HEmMBERD - ARFIRERE ARG FEBNA
AR #938,000,0007T © —E——F | AAFAR
#£898,000,0007T ° ANA RIRAEF B AEIEEARE
AREEHIEATRARK0.92T  —ZF——F4|
REREF ARE.867T
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development

During the year, the total GFA sold and delivered amounted to 84,863
square meters, a 80% decline from the 429,646 square meters sold
and delivered during 2011. The average selling price increased from
RMB12,539 per square meter in 2011 to RMB15,082 per square meter
in 2012. Revenue derived from property sales in 2012 was approximately
RMB1,415 million. The key projects that were completed and delivered in
2012 are as follows:

EHROEE(E)
MEBR

RAFE  BEEERXMNEENBEEARBEE
84,863 F Kk HR-_EFE——FEEHRIMNH
429,646 F 77K 80% » FIHEBHR T ——4F
BEHARAARE12539 T LAZ T ——F8F
FKARMEN5,0827 c —E— —FEHEHER
#®# A ARE1,415,000,0007C ° R =T — —Fif
ITRXMEZOEBENAT

Approximate Approximate
areasold and sales
delivered recognized Average
Item in 2012 in 2012 selling price
2R 2R
“E-—F “E-CF
EERRA WA
EHE BAmE HER THEER
sqm RMB'000 RMB/sqm
FhR ARBFT AREL/ FHA
Cambridge Forest Newtown FEBLe 4,223 78,783 18,656
Cambridge Waters - Apartment RIEKE -1 3,249 47,904 14,744
Cambridge Waters — Commercial BlEKE-mE 566 13,822 24,420
Haikou Florea — Apartment BOSE—1NE 3,928 62,021 15,789
Haikou Florea - Viilla BOLE - RIE 5,440 130,291 23,951
Haikou Florea - Commercial BORE - 5,382 73,891 13,729
Kunming Metropolitan - Apartment EREEAR -2 14,833 135,880 9,161
Kunming Metropolitan - Commercial BB AN -mE 7,727 99,220 12,841
Changshu La Casa - Phase Il - Townhouse BABRE-FIH—EHRIE 226 2,466 10,912
Changshu Emerald Bay j 18,894 270,570 14,320
Suzhou Global 188 - Office building ERNIRER188— A 544 13,325 24,494
Suzhou Global 188 - Apartment EMIRIK188—1DE 1,756 42,059 23,952
Wuxi Xishuidong - Apartment BHFKE-DE 17,109 290,339 16,970
Wausxi Xishuidong — Commercial EHTIKR -HE 986 19,341 19,616
Sub-total of Residential Sales FEEHE N 84,863 1,279,912 15,082
Cambridge Forest Newtown —Parking Lot FELE— 28 4,900
Cambridge Waters - Parking Lot B KE — {22 9,999
Kunming Metropolitan - Parking Lot BRRBEAN - FE[ 115,322
Wuxi Xishuidong - Parking Lot B TKE (28 5,240
Sub-total of Parking Lot Sales EEAHE M 135,461
Total property sales M ER 1,415,373
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development (Continued)

During the year, the Group’s contracted sales reached RMB3,008 million,
compared to RMB3,207 million in 2011. Aggregate contracted GFA
reached 287,413 square meters, compared to 188,904 square meters in
2011. The average contracted selling price was approximately RMB10,466
per square meter, compared to RMB16,979 per square meter in 2011.
Despite the challenging business environmentin 2012, the Group
managed to maintain its average unit contracted selling price above
RMB10,000, which was higher than the average market prices in the cities
where the Group’s projects are located.

During the period under review, projects in second tier cities continued
to be the main contributors of contracted sales. The key projects that
contributed significant portions of contracted sales are in Wuxi (34%),
Haikou (25%), Changshu (17%), Kunming (9%), Taiyuan (6%), Suzhou
(4%) and Shanghai (5%). The diversified geographical locations of these
projects highlight the Group's strategy of making presence nationwide.
These are all quality products located in cities with highest disposable
income to capitalize on the strong demand for upgrades in living
environment by homebuyers.

The Group's quality products continued to be highly appreciated by the
market and its flexible marketing and sales strategy paid off during the
period. Hai Chang Liu in Haikou, for instance, recorded a total sales of 260
units on the first day of its sales campaign on 2 December 2012, a record
for the city. Close to 700 units were sold during the month of December.

Land Bank

The Group's current land bank is sufficient to support its development
pipeline for the next years, and it is continuously looking for high quality
lands with great potentials. As at 31 December 2012, the Group held a
land bank of approximately 4.7 million square metres or 3.9 million square
meters on an attributable basis, with prime sites strategically located in key
cities in the Yangtze River Delta and provincial capital cities with regional
economic importance.

KI5 (&
MR (E)

RAFE  REBNENHEEHEEARK
3,008,000000T - —E ——F A BARK
3,207,000,0007T © & 4V EEE 54 R8:1E287,413F
FK - ZZ——FH)5188,904F 5K - FHAK
HEBHNASFEHAARE 1046670 ZF——
FRIABFFRARKE16979L - BE_ZT—=
FOLERERRTME - KRB (DL THENE
HHEBHEZTRARKE10,0007TA EKF - R
REEIE B PR T E -

REBEFE SR MmEEREGHSNHERED
FEHLH c AR EHHEEBNZOIEE T
UREH(3B4%) ~ BOQR5%) * FF(17%) « B
9%) * KIR(6%) * #xIN(4%) &% EB(5%) ° ELTE
BOZ T bIB U BERE T ANEBHR B IEEG RN
ZEIMEL - AEEBEEMER AR
WAKFEZEEHNT - O IEEEBREEHRAEE
RIBERERBAUFEL ©

A ANEBNEEEREB KRNI TS - ME
V) B R S E SRR TRERS AR Y) - BOImE - 81
BRAN-EBE——E+-A-ANHETHE A
1SHHE260EEMN - BT ZMEHm - KT H
19 #%IB BB EHA700E 84 -

Tt

REBNRE THFE AR RBENERR
R MASERETHMEARAERENNES
+ihc RZBE——FE+_A=+—08  "&EHAEF
B L& #94,700,000 5 2K 8% 3,900,000F /5 K
(RPEEEETHE) - KBS HR I =AM
TEHMEkAMELEEZENESATHESH

B e
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Hotel Development

The Group’s hotel portfolio continued to perform within expectations
during the year, with revenue increased by 75% from RMB81 million
in 2011 to approximately RMB142 million in 2012. The award-winning
Peninsula Shanghai and the strategically located Holiday Inn Kanggiao
Shanghai continued to achieve steady performance despite intensive
competition in the hotel market in the city.

Peninsula Shanghai continued to win prestigious recognition for its
superior design and services. In December 2012, Peninsula Shanghai
Residence was named “Owner of the Year 2012 and the Best Luxury Hotel
Serviced Apartment” by Insider Magazine.

Fraser Suite Suzhou, occupying one of the two towers in Global 188,
continued to be well received by the market. Together with Fraser Suites,
offices and shopping mall, Global 188 will enjoy great synergy of housing
facilities for dining, shopping, living and working all under the same roof.

The Hidden Tiger Golf Club in Huangshan, Anhui Province, the first
completed phase of the Taiping Lake holiday resort, achieved an
encouraging utilization rate during the period. The Crowne Plaza Hotel,
also located in the resort, is scheduled to be completed by the end of year
2013.

FR o)
BIERR

RAFE  AEBEBEEAERNEERREBETEH
Z - WamBm T ——Fa AKKS-1,000,0007THE 0
75%E T — _F K4 AKH142,000,0007T © &
ELBBETSH AR - EEREN DEESH
JEFRMEIREREAI B M LGB e R AR DAREER
BT

FEYEREEEREESUNRIRREZA
% o M—Z——%+=H > Peninsula Shanghai
Residence (_E/& ¥ )85 FE) ZInsider Magazine
BB Owner of the Year 2012 and the
Best Luxury Hotel Serviced Apartment( =& — =4
EREREARRERELEREAAE)] -

BESEPABRTR1 88 B KM 2 — B &R N I % B B R
CHERZTISE o BREMNBERERRA
CWREREMRL B BY - AERIE
%EE_E%Z—F IRER188M = E R M i& = A e
KBV RIBE o

}Eﬁ}

MREZHEBLNEARBBRRNGAKEHER
EEHEERNER - NAHMASEEENER
Ko AR NZERENETEAEETER -
—=FIRATEX °
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investment Properties and Ancillary Services

The Group holds a total GFA of 179,643 square meters in investment
properties. As at 31 December 2012, 148,812 square meters of the total
GFA have been leased, generating approximately RMB51 million in rental
revenue, accounting for approximately 2.9% of the total revenue for the
Group during the year.

The Group continued to develop its education business by operating
one of the most prestigious kindergartens in Shanghai, the China
Welfare Institute Kindergarten; a post-secondary college, Shanghai Sipo
Polytechnic; and a training centre, Shanghai Sipo Vocational Technical
Training Centre. Revenue from the Group’s education business contributed
approximately 4.2% of the Group's total revenue during the year.

Property Management and Related Services

During the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue from the Group's
property management and related services amounted to approximately
RMB84 million, an increase of approximately 28% from 2011. The Group
provided property management services to properties with a total GFA of
1,656,278 square meters in 2012.

FHoE(E
RENMEREERK

NEBERMEEMERBEELEEE179,643FF
KeRZFE—ZF+ZA=+—08  ~EEEHALY
R A148,812F K ez AA
R#51,000,0007T * {EFAAREREBIELI2.9% °

REEFEREUBEY LR DSEF—HRE
BAAMNHERE(FRRERBHTE) « —FimEk
R EEBERERIER) R —AElho( g
BEBERIEIFL) - REAFE - REBEHK
BEBMEEREB MR LIL.2% o

Y EE RAEBERY

HE-Z——S+-_F=+—HIEE  ~EEH
YEE R R AR K E L A A R 84,000,000
T BT —FINLI28% c RZT—Z4F -
REBREMESERE S RONEBEERER
1,656,278 F 17 K o
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Project Disposals

Q)]

¢}

(3

Disposal of Wuxi Chao Yang Men Project

On 30June 2012, the Group entered into an agreement with
Evergrande Group to sellits interest in a company that holds a
project located at the south of Taihu Dadao and the west of Youyi
Lu, Xishan District, Wuxi, with a total site area of approximately
263,300 square meters at a consideration of RMB965.7 million.

Disposal of Huangpu Zhongxin City Project

On 20 November 2012, the Group announced the disposal of its
equity interest in a company that owns land in Huangpu District in
Shanghai on which a twenty-storey office building with a gross floor
area of approximately 31,067.44 square meters is constructed, for a
total consideration of RMB95 million.

Disposal of Wuxi Jin Gui Li Project

After the end of the financial year 2012, the Group entered into an
agreement with Wuxi Taihu New Town Development Group Co.,
Ltd on 4 January 2013 regarding the disposal of the Group’s 60%
equity interest in Wuxi Xindu Real Estate Development Limited for a
total consideration of RMB1,098,776,400.

These disposals represent good opportunities for the Group to
enhance its financial position, improve its liquidity and reduce its
future financial commitments. They also provide additional capital
resources for the Group to capture other investment opportunities
in the real estate market.

FR o)

HEWHE

Q)]

(2

(3

HERBHABMHEER
RZE—ZFA=1TH  AEEHEAXE
BT ek MEE—HIFEESTHLE
RARBEIARE - KAEBAEREBEELD
263,300 F 7 oKHIE B A B W m - KB
A AR #965,700,0007T °

HEEBREHNEAE
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Outlook

On 28 January 2013, SPG Land celebrated its 15th anniversary. Through its
commitment to quality products and services, the Group has established
itself as a premier developer based in Shanghai over the past 15 years, with
a strong brand in the Yangtze River Delta Region and beyond.

The Group’s “2+X" strategy has been proved to be successful. Over the
past 15 years, the Group has developed a series of landmark projects that
redefined industry standards. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to
build its project portfolio that comprises large-scale high-end residential
communities, city-centre integrated projects and travel & leisure projects.
The diversified product and services offering under this model also
ensures a healthy income stream for the Group under varying market
environments.

Despite the challenging macroeconomic environment and the expected
continuous implementation of policies and measures that are aimed
at curbing property speculations, the Group will manage the pace of
development of its real estate projects in a cautious manner. To cope with
the changing market environment, the Group will pursue projects with
shorter development cycles, in order to provide greater flexibility for swift
responses, and adopt flexible marketing strategies according to specific
locations, local market conditions and characteristics of different projects.

With a persistent focus on organizational optimization, the Group will
seek further enhancement in internal control and cost efficiency. At the
same time, the Group will strive to enhance profitability and financial
strength by seeking various forms of partnerships to co-develop its
projects and further diversify its refinancing channels. These measures
will ensure strong financial position and empower the Group to capture
investment opportunities in the market that will drive the Group's business
developmentin the coming years, thereby further strengthening its
position as a premier property developer in the Yangtze River Delta Region.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue

The total revenue of the Group for 2012 decreased by approximately
69% over 2011, from approximately RMB5,678 million to approximately
RMB1,767 million.

Sales of property, the core business activity, generated revenue of
approximately RMB1,415 million (2011: RMB5,417 million), accounting for
approximately 80% of the total revenue, and representing a YoY decrease
of 74%. Revenue from the lease business grew by approximately 39% to
approximately RMB51 million (2011: RMB36 million). Income derived from
property management and related services increased by approximately
28% to approximately RMB84 million (2011: RMB65 million). Revenue
from hotels operation and related services reached approximately RMB142
million, with an increase of approximately 76% as compared with last year.
Revenue from education of approximately RMB75 million kept almost the
same as last year (2011: RMB77 million).

Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=t—HLEE

MERE

AEBR -_Z——FHERER - ——FRIL
69% ° % ARES,678,000,000 7T 2 4 AR EE
1,767,000,0007T °

MEFEEAZLEBZD  ELERZHA
K #1,41500000m (=T ——F : AR
5,417,000,0007T) * 15BNz £I80% * 12 &
74% - FEEBHHRFIEINL39%ENARE
51,000,00070 (== ——4 : A K% 36,000,000
TL) ° REMEEIR KAARERG WAL NZI28%
E2X AR®84,000,000T(ZE——F : AR¥
65,000,0007T) ° JBJE & iE R E RS K AEA
[R#6142,000,0007T © MAFIEINLIT6% © HE W
4 A ARBE75,000,0000T - EBEFABEE (=
=——4 : AR¥77,000,0007T) °

2012 2011 Change

—E-C-F —B——F )

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT ARKETTT

Sales of properties YRR E 1,415,373 5,417,462 (4,002,089)

Rental income Hae A 50,528 36,430 14,098
Property management income & Y ERINA R EMABREARG

other related service 83,561 65,430 18,131

Hotel and related services BE REEER 142,156 80,858 61,298

Education B 74,917 77,343 (2,426)

Total 1BET 1,766,535 5,677,523 (3,910,988)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately 64% to approximately
RMB1,362 million, as compared to RMB3,739 million in 2011. The cost of
sales mainly comprised land costs, construction costs, capitalized finance
costs and sales tax.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit decreased to approximately RMB405 million from RMB1,939
million in 2011 while gross profit margin decreased to 23% due to the
different product mix as compared with the corresponding period last
year.

Other Operating Income

In 2011, other operating income recorded an income from a compensation
of RMB160 million, apart from this effect, other operating income of
RMB18 million in 2012 did not have any significant change.

Other Operating Expense

Other operating expense increased to approximately RMB571 million in
2012, which was mainly attributable to penalty cost, impairment mainly
of Wuxi projects (including the project of Jin Gui Li disposed in January
2013 already) and loss from disposal of Huangpu Zhongxin City caused by
revaluation gain in previous years.

Operating Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to RMB316 million in 2012 from
RMB369 million in 2011 because of the Group’s improved budget control.
Selling and marketing costs experienced a decrease of 10% as the Group

controlled selling expenditure under the current economic circumstances.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Net Finance Expenses

The net finance expenses increased from RMB54 millionin 2011 to
RMB177 million in 2012. This increase was mainly because of some trusts
and senior note with higher interest rate borrowed in 2011 and 2012.

Share of Loss of Associates and Joint Controlled Entity

The Group recorded a loss from share of operating results of associates
in 2012 amounting to RMB102 million as compared to a loss of RMB69
million in 2011. The loss was mainly attributable to the interest expenses
from bank loans and fixed assets depreciation of the Peninsula Shanghai
Hotel.

Revaluation Losses on Investment Properties

The Group recorded revaluation losses of approximately RMB65 million in
total in 2012, as compared with a gain of RMB29 million in 2011.
Income Tax

Income tax decreased by 62% from RMB487 million in 2011 to RMB186
million in 2012. The decrease was mainly due to the less LAT accrued
resulted from less house deliveries.

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
The Group's loss attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately

RMB938 million (2011: Profit attributable to equity holders of RMB898
million) during the period under review.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Financial Position

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company was RMB4,278
million as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: RMB5,225 million).
Total assets amounted to RMB23,053 million (31 December 2011:
RMB23,838 million) and total liabilities stood at RMB 18,744 million (31
December 2011: RMB18,532 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's business operations, bank borrowings and cash proceeds
raised have been the primary source of liquidity of the Group, which
have been applied in business operations and investment in development
projects.

Net gearing (total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents including
restricted cash over total equity) stood at a level of 120% as at 31
December 2012. The Group had total cash and cash equivalents (including
restricted cash) of RMB 1,650 million, total borrowings of RMB6,838
million and an equity base of RMB4,310 million as at 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: RMB5,306 million).

Treasury Policy

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Apart from fund raising transactions in the capital market, there
is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of better
controlling treasury functions and lowering costs of funds. In providing
funds to all its operations, funding terms have been centrally reviewed and
monitored at Group level.

In accomplishing the aim of minimizing interest risk, the policy of the
Group is to continue closely monitoring and managing the Group’s loan
portfolio by its existing agreements’ interest margin spread with market
interest rates and offers from banks.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Credit Policy

Trade receivables mainly arose from sale and lease of properties.
Receivablesinrespect of sale and lease of properties are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements
and lease agreements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group pledged properties and land use
rights with a carrying value of RMB7.41 billion to secure bank facilities
granted to the Group. The total secured loan balance outstanding as at 31
December 2012 amounted to RMB5.35 billion.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group provided guarantees to banks for:

Mortgage fizea
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Capital Commitment

R IR (&)
BEAREE
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E——fF =
t=A=t-8 +-A=t+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREET T

Property development activities: MR
— Contracted but not provided for —BEIBREE 552,054 3,445,465
— Authorized but not contracted for —BEEERTN 2,141,343 2,174,828
Total of property development YR BTE 2,693,397 5,620,293
Joint venture interests SEbEER = 50,000
Total A5t 2,693,397 5,670,293

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of 1,666 employees
(31 December 2011: 1,514). The Group has adopted a performance-based
rewarding system to motivate its staff. In addition to a basic salary, year-
end bonuses are offered to staff with an outstanding performance. Share
option schemes were adopted to attract and retain talent to contribute
to the Group. In relation to staff training, the Group also provides
various staff programs to improve their skills and develop their respective
expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management of the Company treasure the shareholders’ confidence
and trust in the ability and vision of the management team and have
pledged to maintain an open and responsive attitude in shareholders’
communications that are on par with other leading corporations in the
industry. The Board has been adamant in upholding best practice in
corporate governance to ensure the timeliness, transparency and fairness
of disclosure to maximize the Group’s corporate values and will continue
to enhance its disclosure practices to display an exemplary corporate
governance practice.

It is the Board’s belief that a sound corporate governance system has been
and will remain as an instrumental element to the healthy growth of the
Group.

Corporate Governance

On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Former
CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) was amended and renamed as Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“New CG Code”).
The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the New CG
Code as the code of the Company in substitution for and to the exclusion
of the Former CG Code with effect from 1 April 2012.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Former
CG Code during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and
the New CG Code during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012 except for code provisions A.4.2 and E. 1.2 as described below.

Code A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after their appointment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, any person appointed
as a Director by the Board shall stand for re-election at the next following
annual general meeting of the Company. Such arrangement is considered
appropriate in light of the requirement of paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules which requires that any person appointed by the directors
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Code E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board should attend annual
general meetings. The chairman of the Board did not attend the annual
general meeting for 2012 due to other business commitment.

Set out below is the detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2012.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
Business Model

SPG Land is principally engaged in the development and sale of quality
property projectsin China. With a view to diversifying its business
portfolio and generating sustainable growth to match the urbanization
progress in China, the Group develops its property portfolio according to
its '2+X’ strategy, which comprises three key business lines: residential
communities, city centre integrated projects and travel & leisure projects.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (Continued)
Residential Communities

With intensive knowledge and clear insight towards China’s urban
development, SPG Land develops quality residential projectsin the
metropolis of Shanghai, and expanded into the affluent Yangtze River
Delta and as well as the fast-growing Chinese provincial capital cities.

In Shanghai, large-scale and high-end properties have been developed
‘The Tiffany (Cambridge Waters)’,
and ‘Cambridge Watertown (Oriental Garden)’. In Changshu, ‘La Casa’ is

such as ‘Cambridge Forest Newtown’,

a masterpiece in modern urban landscaping. In Kunming, the ‘Metropolis’
boosts city living experience to international standards. SPG Land
continues to bring in fresh thinking and innovation to Taiyuan, creating
‘Andaluz (Rechudongshan)’, with Spanish-styled villas which overlook the
City of Taiyuan.

Each in their unique ways, these residences proudly set new benchmark in
the cities where the projects are located.

City Centre Integrated Projects

With their strategic locations and the offerings of contemporary urban
living concepts, SPG Land'’s city centre integrated projects are rated as
classics. On the Bund, SPG Land revived the look and feel of Shanghai’s
glamorous era of the 1920s and 1930s with the ‘Shanghai Peninsula’,
the first new development on the historic Bund since 1930's. In central
business district of Suzhou Industry Park, the diamond crowns of
‘Global 188’ shimmer as the project reached new heights to become
an outstanding landmark in Suzhou. In Wuxi, the birthplace of China’s
industry and commerce, ‘Xi Shui Dong (the New Metropolis)’ has become
the new Central Living District. Being built upon historical heritage, it
entwines China’s history and culture with modern living. ‘Xi Shui Dong’
brings back the prosperity and glamour of the “The Rong’s Factory”,
where the wealth of one of the first entrepreneurs in China was once
gathered.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (Continued)
Travel and Leisure Projects

SPG Land has achieved great success in investing, protecting and
developing precious and scenic land. In Huangshan, the "Huangshan
Taiping Lake Resort’ is an international resort, hemmed by two mountains
and one lake, including a top-notch golf club, yacht club and luxury hotel
‘Crowne Plaza’. The ‘Hidden Tiger Golf Club’ is designed, supported and
managed by top talents from around the world. In Haikou — the Gold
Coast of China, ‘Florea’ is the pioneer of seaside mansion in Haikou
and the only large scale Spanish style community by the sea and park.
‘Florea’ has become the first choice for local luxury, leisure residence.
Hai Chang Liu, the only seaside CBD development in Haikou, is a large-
scale architectural complex integrating residential, commercial, offices
and hotels. In Changshu, the beautiful lake-view villas and apartments in
‘Emerald Bay (Feicuiwan)’ nestle between two national scenic spots, set a
new benchmark for upscale development in Jiangsu.

Strategy

Building project portfolio according to its '2+X" strategy, the Group
establishes a property development franchise that suits the characteristics
of specific locations and market conditions of different projects. The
diversified products and services offering with high adaptability under this
model also ensures a healthy income stream for the Group.

To cope with the varying market environment, the Group will pursue
projects with shorter development cycles, in order to provide greater
flexibility for swift responses, and adopt flexible marketing strategies.

Financially, the Group will seek further enhancement in internal control
and cost efficiency and various forms of partnerships to co-develop its
projects, and further diversify its refinancing channels. These measures
will ensure strong financial position and empower the Group to capture
investment opportunities in the market, thereby further strengthening its
position as a premier property developer in the Yangtze River Delta Region.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

WANG Weixian (Chairman)
WANG Xuling (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:

CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry
FONG Wo, Felix, JP

JIANG Simon X.

KWAN Kai Cheong

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Board has extensive
management experience in the property market in the PRC. The Board
has the required knowledge, experience and capabilities to operate and
develop the Group’s business and implement the Company’s business
strategies. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and
senior management are set out on pages 63 to 70.

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company. The Directors, individually and collectively, are aware of their
responsibilities and accountability to shareholders and for the manner in
which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.

Directors have timely access to relevant information prior to each board
meeting to enable them to make an informed decision and to discharge
their duties and responsibilities. Directors can attend board meetings either

in person or by electronic means of communication.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers them to be independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. WANG Xuling (an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group) is the sister of Mr. WANG Weixian, the Chairman of the Group.
Apart from this, to the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship among
members of the Board.

The Company provides Directors with directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage to protect them from loss as a result of any legal
proceeding against the Company.

During the year, the Company held six Board meetings for reviewing
and approving, inter alia, the financial and operating performance of the
Group. Sufficient notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched
to the Directors setting out the matters to be discussed. All Directors
were given an opportunity to include mattersin the agenda for the
Board meeting and had access to the company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) to ensure that all board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations were followed. The Board also enabled
the Directors to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in appropriate circumstances. At the meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be discussed and approved.
The minutes are kept by the Company’s legal advisers and they are open
for inspection by the Directors and members of Board committees. The
secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking the minutes and all the
matters considered and the decisions reached in the Board meeting are
recorded in sufficient detail. The draft minutes are sent to the Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
versions are sent to all Directors for their records.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) BEEE(HE)

During the year, the Company held one general meeting on 1 June 2012. FR - ARAFR-_E——F A —B8T—ARE
The following is the attendance record of the meetings held by the Board RKE - EEQLNANTREREE T ——F+—
and the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December A= t+—BIHEEETNesnERSNT
2012:

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HESERE EBTERERE

Name of Director Board meeting General meeting
EEHE EEees RRAR
Mr. WANG Weixian 3/6 0/1
TERERE
Ms. WANG Xuling 4/6 0/1
FRELL
Mr. CHEUNG Man Hoi (Note 1) 2/2 0/0
SR EAE (MiEE)
Mr. CHU Hau Lim (Note 2) 4/4 1Al
RERRSEA(MEE2)
Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones (Note 3) 2/2 0/0
AR e A (FEE3)
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 6/6 171
SREH A
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 6/6 171
FRISE A (K Fat)
Mr. JJANG Simon X. 4/6 1Al
BN A
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 6/6 171
BRNE St

Notes: FiEE

(1) Mr. CHEUNG Man Hoi resigned as an executive Director on 1 April 2012. (M  RXERER_ZT—_FOA—HAETHRNTES -

(2)  Mr. CHU Hau Lim appointed as an executive Director on 16 April 2012 and ) KEREER_ZT—_FWHATBEZEAEH
resigned on 1 October 2012. TEF  YR-T—-F+A—BBT-

(3)  Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones retired as a non-executive Director on 1 June 2012. (3) MHREENR -_T——FNA—BHETENTE
£
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. WANG Weixian is the Chairman and Ms. WANG Xuling is the Chief
Executive Officer. The role of the Chairman is separated from that of
the Chief Executive Officer so as to delineate their respective areas of
responsibility. They receive significant support from the Directors and the
senior management team.

The Chairman is responsible for the overall business and investment
strategies of the Group. The Chairman is also responsible for overseeing
effective functioning of the Board and application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for managing the Group’s overall operations and execution
of the Group’s long term business development policies. The Board,
led by the Chairman, sets the overall directions, strategies and policies
of the Group. Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, the
management is responsible for executing the Board's strategy and
implementing its policies through the day-to-day management and
operations of the Company.

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management who shall report to the
Board. The Board reviews on a periodic basis such delegations to ensure
that they remain appropriate.

Important matters are reserved for the Board's decision, including:

o long-term objectives and strategies

° extension of the Group's activities into new business areas
o appointments to the Board and the Board committees

o annual internal controls assessment and annual budgets

o material acquisitions and disposals

o material connected transactions

o material banking facilities

o announcements of interim and final results

o payment of dividends
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company have diversified backgrounds
and industry skills and one of the independent non-executive Directors has
an appropriate accounting qualification as required by the Listing Rules.
With their expertise, they offer experience, independent judgement and
advice on the overall management of the Company. Their responsibilities
include maintaining a balance between the interests of all shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

All the independent non-executive Directors are members of the audit,
nomination and remuneration committees.

The term of appointment of Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones, who retired
on 1June 2012, was eighteen months. All the independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year renewable by
mutual agreement on an annual basis. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles”), one-third of all Directors (whether executive
or non-executive) is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the remuneration committee on 19 September
2006 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and responsibilities. In compliance with the New CG Code,
the Board has adopted new terms of reference for the remuneration
committee which have been posted on the respective websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the
remuneration policy and specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors. In formulating the remuneration policy, the committee takes
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
employment conditions and responsibilities, and individual performance of
the Directors, senior management, and the general staff. The committee
can seek independent professional advice to complement its own

resources to discharge its duties.

The remuneration committee currently comprises Mr. WANG Weixian and
all the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong is the
chairman of the committee.

The Company has adopted the model that the remuneration committee
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

One meeting was held by the remuneration committee in 2012 to discuss
remuneration related matters. Individual attendance of the members is set

out below:

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 11
Mr. WANG Weixian 1Al
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 7M1
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 11
Mr. JJANG Simon X. 0/1

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out
in note 15 to the financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management paid for the year ended 31
December 2012 fell within the following bands:
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee on 1 April 2012
in compliance with the New CG Code which currently comprises two
executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG Weixian and Ms. WANG Xuling;
and four independent non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. CHEONG
Ying Chew, Henry, FONG Wo, Felix, JP., JJANG Simon X. and KWAN Kai
Cheong. The nomination committee is responsible for nomination and
selection of Directors. Proposed new Directors are selected based on skills
and experience that will enable them to make positive contributions to
the performance of the Board. The nomination committee is chaired by
Mr. WANG Weixian and has specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and responsibilities and posted on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The principal functions
of the nomination committee include:

o toreview the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular chairman and chief executive.

During the year, the nomination committee did not hold any meeting.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the audit committee on 19 September 2006 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and responsibilities. In compliance with the New CG Code, the Board
has adopted new terms of reference for the audit committee which have
been posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the financial
and internal control principles of the Company. The committee is also
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors and
considering any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors. The
committee can seek independent professional advice to complement its
own resources to discharge its duties.

The committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
KWAN Kai Cheong is the chairman of the committee.

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in 2012. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 2/2
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 2/2
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 2/2
Mr. JIJANG Simon X. 172

During the year, the committee reviewed, together with the senior
management and the external auditors, the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, statutory compliance, other financial reporting
matters and the internal control system. The audit committee also
reviewed the Group's interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LEE Mei Yi of Tricor Services Limited, an external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary since September
2006. The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Harold CHEN,
Group Financial Controller.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. LEE Mei Yi has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects.
Management provides such explanation and information to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the matters put before the
Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements for the Group.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
report of the auditors on page 89.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of the controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets.

The Audit Director reports to the audit committee on key findings
regarding internal controls. The audit committee, in turn, communicates
any material issues to the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries and is satisfied with
the adequacy of the Group’s system of internal control.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, is primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with annual financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total remuneration in respect
of statutory audit services provided by KPMG for the Group amounted to
RMB4,250,000.

The audit committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the
view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors for the
Company for 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board isresponsible for performing the duties on corporate

governance function as set out below:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the New CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board has developed
and reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices, including
the revised terms of reference for the remuneration committee and the
audit committee and the newly established terms of reference for the
nomination committee.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the New CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance issues
under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and enhance their
awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and good corporate
governance practices.

During the year, the Company provided the Directors with materials
regarding the New CG Code. Each of the Directors provided the Company
with their respective training record pursuant to the New CG Code.
During the year, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development by ways of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening of an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of the Company, shareholder(s)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) may, by written
requisition (the “Requisition”) to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in the Requisition.
The Requisition shall be deposited at the head office of the Company in
Hong Kong (Unit 5711, 57th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen'’s Road Central,
Hong Kong). The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of the Requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene
the EGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the Requisition,
the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. In respect of other enquiries, shareholders may put forward
enquiries to the Board through Mr. Harold CHEN who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address: 46/F., Hong Kong New World Tower,

300 Huaihai Road Central, Shanghai, China
Email: haroldchen@spgland.com

862161352330

862153828111

Tel number:
Fax number:
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2012:

Authorised share capital: HK$1,000,000,000, comprising 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Issued and fully paid-up capital: HK$105,112,827.50 comprising
1,051,128,275 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Class of shares: one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each with equal
voting rights.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

WANG Weixian, 49, is the chairman and founder of the Group. Mr.
Wang is also director and the legal representative of various operating
subsidiaries of the Company. In 1998, Mr. WANG Weixian started to
develop the first large-scale residential community, Cambridge Forest
Newtown, in Shanghai, which set a good example for the operation of
large scale property in the suburbs of Shanghai. The only new construction
over the century on the historic Bund of Shanghai, the Peninsula Hotel,
which was awarded the “2010 Best Worldwide Business Hotel”, was also
a masterpiece of Mr. Wang. Endeavouring to offer high-end real estate in
China, Mr. Wang developed several city landmarks, such as Global 188,
the tallest building in Suzhou, and Xi Shui Dong, which has given a face-
lift to the century-old industrial and commercial heritage buildings in
the central living area in Wuxi. Mr. Wang also developed famous leisure
property projects, including the Taiping Lake Resort in Huangshan and
the golf club in Songshi Beach, Beidahe. Over the years, Mr. Wang has
been committed to serving the community and has long been serving
certain public posts, including council member of Shanghai Soong Ching
Ling Foundation, the Standing Director of Shanghai Overseas Exchange
Association and council member of The Nature Conservancy China. Mr.
Wang is the brother of Ms. WANG Xuling, an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

WANG Xuling, 51, is the Group Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer. Ms. Wang is currently a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. WANG Xuling graduated from Ji'nan University
(Guangzhou). She has 16 years of experience in the real estate sector and
12 years of experience in the news and media business. Prior to joining SPG
Land, Ms. Wang was the executive director and deputy general manager
of Mission Hills Golf Club (Mission Hills Group), responsible for sales and
marketing of properties. Before joining Mission Hills Group (Mission Hills
Golf Club), Ms. Wang had been engaging in the news and media business.
Ms. Wang joined SPG Land as Group Executive Director in 2007 and has
been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of SPG Land since April 2011.
Ms. Wang is the sister of Mr. WANG Weixian, the chairman and founder
of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, 65, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2006. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mathematics and a Master of Science degree in
Operational Research and Management. He is also an independent non-
executive director of each of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, Cheung
Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications
Hong Kong Holdings Limited, New World Department Store China
Limited, TOM Group Limited, CNNC International Limited, Creative Energy
Solutions Holdings Limited, all being listed in Hong Kong. He is also an
independent director of BTS Group Holdings Public Company Limited,
a company listed in Thailand, and an Executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company listed in London. He is also a
Member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal and a Member of
the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission, and
was previously a member of the Disciplinary Panel (Panel A) of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was an independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (formerly
known as Excel Technology International Holdings Limited), a listed
company in Hong Kong, up until 3 July 2012.

FONG Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, 62, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2006, a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong and is also qualified in Canada and England. He is appointed
by the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-Appointed
Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a consultant and the
founding partner of the Hong Kong law firm, King & Wood (formerly
known as Arculli Fong & Ng), and has practiced law for over 30
years, including eight years in Toronto. Mr. Fong is an independent
non-executive director of a number of listed companies, namely
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited, Evergreen International Holdings
Limited, China Investment Development Limited (formerly known as
Temujin International Investments Limited) and Sheen Tai Holdings
Group Company Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and also China Qilfield Services Limited, whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Fong is a member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a director of the
China Overseas Friendship Association, a director of the Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and an executive director
of the Guangdong Overseas Friendship Association. He is also
the chairman of the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental
Hygiene, a member of the Hong Kong Film Development Council
and a director of the Hong Kong Basic Law Institute. Mr. Fong is a
member of the first Selection Committee for the purposes of electing
the Chief Executive for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
a founding member of the Canadian International School of Hong
Kong, a member of the Board of Advisers for the Faculty of Business
of the University of Victoria, British Columbia, Canada and a visiting
professor of the School of Law of Sun Yat-sen University, China.
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JIANG Simon X., 59, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since 2006, is the founder and chairman of CyberCity
International Limited as well as chairman of some of its subsidiaries.
For the past five years, Dr. Jiang has been involved mainly in private
equity investment activities in Hong Kong and mainland China. He is
also a member of the National Committee of CPPCC and the United
Nations Investments Committee.

KWAN Kai Cheong, 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since 2006, holds a Bachelor of Accountancy
(Honors) degree from the University of Singapore and is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Kwan is
presently the president of Morrison & Company Limited, a business
consultancy firm.

Company Secretary

LEE Mei Yi, 45, became the company secretary of the Group in September
2006. Ms. Lee is a senior manager of Corporate Services Department of
Tricor Services Limited and an associate member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial area.

Senior Management

YOU De Feng, 36, is Chief Financial Officer. Mr. YOU De Feng graduated
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
Master degree in Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School. He has over 10 years of experience in the real estate and
construction industry, accumulating extensive experience of financial
management in the industry. He is a member of the Institute of Financial
Accountants, United Kingdom and a qualified accountant in the PRC.
Since joining SPG Land in March 2001, Mr. You was the Finance Manager
and Finance Director of the project companies of the Group and Financial
Controller of the Group.
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Ramona YAN, 40, is Group Executive Vice President. Ms. Ramona YAN
obtained a Bachelor degree from the Foreign Affairs College and a Master
degree of International Relations from the University of Georgia. With
over 13 years of experience in the advisory and management industry in
mainland China and overseas, she has rich experience in human resources
strategy design, leadership development, mergers and acquisition,
organization reform management, etc. She previously provided advisory
service to customers in various industries, including real estate, banking
and government sectors. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yan was the Vice
President of Greater China of HAY Group and General Manager of Hewitt
East China. Ms. Yan joined the Group in June 2011 as Group Executive Vice
President and is in charge of the Human Resources Management Center,
Assets Management Center, Process and Information Management Center
and Public Relations Department.

MAO Yong Jun, 39, is Group Assistant President. Mr. MAO Yong Jun
obtained a Bachelor degree in Engineering from Shanghai Engineering
and Technology University and a Master degree in Business Administration
from Fudan University. Mr. Mao has about ten years of working and
management experiences gained from internationalized real estate
companies. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Mao was the business
development manager of Hutchison Whampoa (Shanghai) Company
Limited and senior business development manager of Frasers Property
(China) Limited. Since joining SPG Land in July 2008, Mr. Mao held
positions including Deputy General Manager, Executive Deputy General
Manager and General Manager of a project company of the Group and
General Manager of the City Leisure & Resort Business Division.

ZHOU Yajun, 57, is Group Assistant President. Mr. ZHOU Yajun obtained
a Bachelor degree in Architectural Structural Engineering and a Master
degree in Infrastructure Engineering from Tsinghua University. After his
graduation, he taught at Tianjin University and Hainan University for
many years and earned the title of Associate Professor because of his solid
theoretical foundation in architectural structure. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Zhou worked with several large real estate developers and construction
companies and gained rich experience in general management in property
project development, project engineering management and contract
budgeting management. He has much experience in various types of
properties, such as large residential community, commercial complex,
luxurious villas and industrial factories.Mr. Zhou joined SPG Land in
February 2012 as Group Assistant President.
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XU Wenmin, 43, is Group Assistant President. Mr. XU Wenmin graduated
from Shanghai Urban Construction Institute in Construction Management
and has over 20 years of working and management experience in real
estate. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. XU Wenmin was the vice general
manager of Zhu Sheng Yuan and Jifushen Purchase. He has a strong
competence in project control and comprehensive skills in real estate
development. Since joining the Group in September 2006, Mr. XU
Wenmin was the General Manager of Taiyuan, Kunming and Ningbo
projects of the Group.

CHEN Xi, 35, is Group Financial Controller. Mr. CHEN Xi graduated from
Fudan University with a Bachelor degree in Accountancy. He is a member
of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 13
years of working experience in professional financial, accounting and
auditing, financing and corporate management. Prior to joining the Group,
he was the senior manager of the internal auditing department of GE
China Company and the auditing department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Co., Ltd.. Mr. CHEN Xi joined SPG Land in September
2010.

ZHANG Ming Zhi, 58, is Vice President and General Manager of
Investment and Finance Department of the Group.Ms. ZHANG Ming
Zhi graduated from East China Normal University in Mathematics and
obtained Master degree in Business Administration from Asia International
Open University (Macau). Ms. Zhang has over 15 years of experience in
the finance industry and project investment and management in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhang was the director of one of the first
approved fund management corporations, the director and chairman
appointed by several project companies and the general manager of the
assets trust department of a PRC trust and investment company. Ms.
Zhang joined SPG Land in April 2006.

LIU Xin Rong, 41, is Internal Audit Director and General Manager of
Process and Information Management Center of the Group. Ms. LIU
Xin Rong graduated from Wuhan University of Technology, majoring
in Industrial Enterprise Management, and obtained a Master degree in
Business Administration from Fudan University. Ms. Liu has over 20 years
of experience in financial management, development and corporate
management in the property industry. She is a qualified accountant in the
PRC. Since joining SPG Land in October 1999, Ms. Liu was the General
Manager of Human Resources Management Center of the Group,
Financial Controller and Executive Deputy General Manager of major
operating subsidiaries of the Group.
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HUANG Yifeng, 27, is General Manager of Business Development
and Management Center of the Group. Mr. HUANG Yifeng obtained a
Bachelor degree with honors in Economics and Mathematics from the
University of Chicago, USA. Prior to joining SPG Land, he worked in the
investment banking division of J.P Morgan, Hong Kong and Morgan
Stanley, and primarily engaged in bond issuance of real estate company,
merger and acquisition of enterprises and IPO projects. Mr. HUANG Yifeng
joined SPG LAND in August 2012.

FENG Xuekun, 43, is General Manager of Design Management Center
of the Group. Mr. FENG Xuekun graduated from Xi’an University of
Architecture and Technology in Architecture and obtained a Master
degree in Architecture from McGill University. He has over 20 years of
experience in design and has good design concepts and a sound ability to
control projects. He won design awards at national and provincial level.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. FENG Xuekun was the vice president of
Huasen Designing (South Branch) and the deputy director of Suning Real
Estate Group. Mr. FENG Xuekun joined SPG Land in December 2012.

XU Yong, 38, is General Manager of Cost Management Center of the
Group. Mr. XU Yong graduated from Tongji University in Construction and
Management of International Engineering and obtained the qualification
of Royal British Registered Quantity Surveyor (38 25 5t T#}HEI E£T)
(registered in 2002). He has over 16 years of experience in contract budget
management and cost control. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. XU Yong
worked in Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. and Hutchison
Whampoa Properties (Shanghai) Limited. Mr. XU Yong joined SPG Land in
May 2012.

XIAN Kun, 33, is Deputy General Manager of Project Management
Center of the Group. Mr. XIAN Kun obtained a Bachelor degree in Civil
Engineering from Beihua University and the National Construction
Engineer Certificate (Level 1). He has a comprehensive experience in
engineering management, corporate governance and informatization
construction of the real estate industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
XIAN Kun was the manager of the engineering department of FIZI Group,
the operational plan manager of Shimao Group and the vice director
of operations and the officer of the operational management center of
Sansheng Hongye Investment Group. Mr. XIAN Kun joined SPG Land in
September 2011.
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LI Bin, 31, is Deputy General Manager of Sales & Marketing Management
Center of the Group. Mr. LI Bin graduated from Ningbo University with a
Bachelor degree in Communication. He has over 10 years’ experience in
mass communication, property planning and advertising. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Li held planning and creative management positions with
Grey Global Group, Shanghai, and Dream Works Shenzhen and Shanghai.
During this period, he received the gold medal in “China Advertising Great
Wall Award”. Since joining SPG Land in April 2008, Mr. Li held positions
including Deputy Planning Director of Sales & Marketing Management
Center of the Group and Branding and Planning Director of Branding and
Marketing Center of the Group.

LEl Yu, Rain, 40, is General Manager of Legal and Risk Control Center
of the Group. Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, graduated from Fudan University with a
Bachelor degree in Law and a Master degree in Public Administration.
Mr. Lei is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and has over 14 years of working
experience in corporate legal management, such as compliance and
internal risk control of listed companies, investment in and development
of real estate and hotel projects, design of transaction structure and plan,
mergers, acquisitions and reorganization of companies, project financing,
material contract negotiation, contract management and real estate
development, construction and transaction. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
LEl Yu worked in Shanghai Honggiao Law Firm and Grandall Legal Group
(Shanghai) as a full-time lawyer. Since joining SPG Land in May 2003, Mr.
LEI Yu held positions including Legal Adviser, Senior Legal Adviser and
Legal Director of the Group.

WANG Haiming, 39, is Deputy General Manager of Assets Management
Center of the Group. Mr. WANG Haiming graduated from Shanghai
University in Business English. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
InterContinental Hotels Group, Three on the Bund and Marriott Hotel
Group and has over 10 years of experience in hotel management. Mr.
WANG Haiming joined SPG Land in May 2010.
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GE Hao Long, 40, is General Manager of Shanghai SPG Property Services
Co., Ltd. under the Group. Mr. GE Hao Long graduated from Hebei
Institute of Finance and Economics. Mr. Ge has over 12 years of experience
in property management and operation. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ge
worked as the person-in-charge of functional division and key projects of
China Vanke, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Poly Property, the
executive director and general manager of Hanzens. Mr. Ge is currently
a standing member of Shenzhen Property Management Association, a
visiting professor of Shenzhen Real Estate and Property Management
Advanced Training College and one of the members of the expert
assessment committee of qualification training for property management
project managers of Shenzhen, Guangdong province of the PRC. Mr. Ge
joined SPG Land in April 2010.

GAO Yu Di, 59, is Executive Director and Education Director of Sipo
Polytechnic under the Group. Ms. GAO Yu Di graduated from East
China Normal University, majoring in Chinese. She has over 30 years of
experience in education and was chief editor of education materials for
secondary schools in Shanghai. She held positions from teacher to vice-
principal of one of the famous high schools in Shanghai. She received
special allowance from the Government and was nominated as “Shanghai
Top-Level Teacher”. Ms. GAO Yu Dijoined SPG Land in September 2005.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated accounts of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development, property and hotel
investment, property management and education.

An analysis of the Group's sales and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 6.56% of the Group's sales in the year while the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for about 17.32% of the Group's
purchases in the year.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
48 to the consolidated accounts, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out
on page 91.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Monday,
3 June 2013. A notice convening the annual general meeting will be
published and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in the
manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
30 May 2013 to Monday, 3 June 2013 (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine the
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting to be held
on Monday, 3 June 2013, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 29 May 2013.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note
19 to the consolidated accounts.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the long-term borrowings are set out in note
34 to the consolidated accounts. Interest and other borrowing costs
capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated accounts.

MOVEMENTS OF SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated accounts.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in note 43
to the consolidated accounts.

As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMBZ2,165,054,000 (2011: RMB2,362,531,000).
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DONATIONS AR

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to FERANEEEEBBENEARES,495,000T( =&
RMBS5,495,000 (2011: RMB5,478,000). ——%F : AR¥?5,478,0007T) °

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFEHBRE

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on pages 218 to 220. NEBHNAENBEESRNE218E2208 o

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE BEEREEREESY
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this ERNRBEAREAE S ARFESES
report were:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WANG Weixian (Chairman) FERELEFE)
Ms. WANG Xuling (Chief Executive Officer) FRELZL(FTEAER)
Mr. CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chief Financial Officer) RXBRE(EREIEE)
(resigned as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer on (R=ZF—ZFHA—HFTHTEE
1 April 2012) FEREHEE)
Mr. CHU Hau Lim (Chief Financial Officer) KRERKE(EEIHEE)
(appointed as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer on (R=-F——FP A+ NHAEZ T EHTE
16 April 2012) EHEENEE)
(resigned as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer on (R=_F——F+A—HFEITHTEE
1 October 2012) FKEEHEE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones (retired on 1 June 2012) S e (R —F— —F N H—HRIF)
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry REESAE
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP FAEE(RFML)
Mr. JIANG Simon X. b e

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong FRE%E
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

Inaccordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs.
CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry and FONG Wo, Felix, JP will retire from the
Board at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Being eligible, they
offer themselves for re-election.

None of the retiring Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to eliminate Directors’ interests in business competing with the
Group, on 19 September 2006, Mr. WANG Weixian entered into a deed of
non-competition with the Company (the “Deed”).

In accordance with the terms of the Deed, Mr. WANG Weixian has
provided the Company with an annual confirmation that he and his
associates (other than the Group) have complied with the terms of the
Deed.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the matters relating to the compliance and enforcement of the Deed
by Mr. WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the Group) and
confirmed that Mr. WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the
Group) have complied with the Deed.

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors of the Company is
considered to have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Shanghai Branch, granted a RMB
facility of up to RMB600,000,000 to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company established in the PRC on 20 May 2011. In addition, on 6 July
2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong (as borrower) has entered into a term loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) with The Bank of East Asia, Limited (the “Bank").
The Facility Agreement relates to the provision of a term loan facility of up
to HKD500,000,000 (the “Facility”). The Facility has a repayment term of
three years from the date of the Facility Agreement. The purpose of the
Facility is to provide capital for the borrower to finance its investment(s),
including but not limited to the acquisition of land in the PRC. The
Company has agreed to provide an unconditional and irrevocable
guarantee to the Bank in respect of the repayment obligations of the
borrower under the Facility Agreement (the “Guarantee”).

Pursuant to the Guarantee, Mr. WANG Weixian, David, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, shall continue to maintain more than
50% beneficial shareholding interestin the Company and maintain
management control over the Company.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (Continued)

A failure to comply with the aforesaid obligation will constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement. However no event of default
will occur if the failure to comply is capable of remedy and is remedied
within 15 business days (or such longer period as the Bank may approve)
of the earlier of the Bank giving notice to the borrower or the borrower
becoming aware of the failure to comply. If an event of default occurs, the
Facility together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Facility Agreement may become immediately due
and payable.

SHARE OPTIONS
Share Option Scheme

On 19 September 2006, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme™”).

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions of the participants to the growth of
the Group by granting options to them as incentives or rewards.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme:
The Board may, in its discretion, offer to grant options to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine to the
following participants:

(i) any executive and employee of the Group; or

(i) anydirector (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Group; or

(iii)  any consultant, adviser and/or agent of the Group.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BIRE(E)

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme and % of issued share
capital at 28 March 2013:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 103,750,000 shares (approximately 9.87% of issued share
capital).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Share Option Scheme:

The maximum entitlement for each participant is that the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant of further options above this limit shall
be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules of the
Share Option Scheme.

The period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, options may be
exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at any time during the
period commencing from the date of grant and expiring at 5:00 p.m.
on the business day (i) preceding the fifth anniversary of the date
of grant or (ii) preceding the expiry of the Share Option Scheme,
whichever is the earlier.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months after
the date of grant. A grantee may be required to achieve such
performance targets as determined by the Board before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

BREBRESFETHBTHRD A
BRR-FB-=F=A=-+N\HE
CRITREANEDLL :

RBE AR AT B9 AV BE AR T AT T B T 8
TR D 8B &= T EEB R 103,750,000 A%
(K BB EEITIRAR9.87%) ©

REBRESTE SSHENER
REF :

it

FE2EENZSENREEM T @A RE
BEOBEEE(ERETRE - EEEkEARTT
EERBAIE) T ATT RIS AT 85 1T I T 37T
AR RIRM AR - NMSHBBAARIE#ET
R B BB % o B EMBB LI RER
BREAS BT RAARTANE TR
FEFFR I -

MATEBREIRBRONBR

ZERETRAMRE - 2EERANEY
BHEEOEL AR AEBFH — @
F A RGBT BIER BB — @2 %
B (AR R & R%E) T FL0 1IE & i 5 7O 2
A - BER 2B ER D TTERBAE -

BRERTEALARENRIH
FEﬁ .

BAGREL BES + @A EmATTE
ERERE - ARARITER BB RET 2
REMEMERER - JEfREIESS
EENARKRRAR -



78 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HH TG

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) B (E)

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which

7.

REREABERERNNESREUR
HRRBHAA RO AR EIERE

payments or calls must or may be made, or loans BRESRWHR

for such purposes must be repaid:

Nil i

The basis of determining the exercise price: 8. ETETHEEMEZE:

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option TR R BB AR M 51 B I 00 (R (A1 45 T8 B AR PO

granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the FHBROREERHETS2ENBET

Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price BEREBERTYE®SE -

shall at least be the higher of:

(i)  theclosing price of the shares as stated in the Stock () BREEZZELEBIAMTARERM
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer, which TROMKTE  mELEZEBHS
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the ARBMRFAAMETEEESNB T
business of dealing in securities (“Business Day”); and (&8 &

(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the (iy EERLEFEADESEBER
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Business RFTEAMERATHORMD RS
Days immediately preceding the date of offer, (=

or (where applicable) such price as from time to time adjusted gk (aniE A ) IR BB A T &) I T RN B

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. 1% o

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: 9. BRESEMERTFH

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 19 September 2006 and will expire at 5:00 p.m.
on the Business Day preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.

There were no option granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EENTENER

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of each Director and chief executive R-EBE——F+—-_A=+—H ' ARAFEEE KT
of the Company in the equity or debt securities of the Company or any BBHNARNRSERBE B (TEREL L
associated corporation (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures EIEMI([FE5REAEED D)) IEESEAETEES
Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company (a)BIREZE S MBS (EHEXVERET R FE’D I AN
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO @RNT R EDS (BIEREEE LSS
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to P ERMGETEESWEENRIEEENOEZR LA
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to B) i (b)) RIEE S R S 50 £ 352 8B R
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) 2 EpIFT it Z R Mk - sk(o)BIRBIEAESTRIT
were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company BEIE AN T R TR AE RSN T ¢

and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company: REAATIROVER :
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Capacity and nature of interest Number of shares shareholding
EEpnE SO RERNE RHEE FHREBYEIL
Mr. WANG Weixian Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 125,510,498 11.94
TRESE ZEHIN AR (M)
Beneficiary of discretionary trust (Note 2) 617,254,133 58.72
BIEEEEm A ME2)
Ms. WANG Xuling Beneficial owner 3,600,000 0.34
FHZEL L EmEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 10,250,448 0.98
SR AR () 2E3)
Beneficiary of discretionary trust (Note 2) 617,254,133 58.72

BEEEEA HE2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Long position in shares of the Company: (Continued)

Notes:

M

Mr. WANG Weixian is deemed to be interested in 125,510,498 shares which
are held by Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited. The entire issued share capital
of Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. WANG
Weixian.

Each of Mr. WANG Weixian and Ms. WANG Xuling is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 617,254,133 shares, which are held by SPG

Investment Holdings Ltd. and Brilliant Bright Investment Limited, respectively:

(a) 506,741,640 shares are held by SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG Asset Management Limited. The
entire issued share capital of SPG Asset Management Limited is held

by Brilliant Bright Investment Limited; and

(b) 110,512,493 shares are held by Brilliant Bright Investment Limited.

Brilliant Bright Investment Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC
International Trustee Limited being the trustee of a discretionary trust of
which family members of Mr. WANG Weixian (including Mr. WANG Weixian
and Ms. WANG Xuling) are discretionary beneficiaries.

Ms. WANG Xuling is deemed to be interested in 10,250,448 shares,
which are held by Boom Rich Investments Limited which is in turn entirely
beneficially owned by Ms. WANG Xuling.

EERNEFNER(E)

RAERXTAROGHRE : (&)

GEE

M

TEB R EWE R/HEHF 125510498 It 15 2
- % E 10 FPrestige Glory Enterprises Limited
#4 - Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited ZFTA &

BIRARTER LRSS -

TREBEAERIRNELIZERRAERAH
617,254,133y 2 # 2 - ZERM DA A
SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. KBrilliant Bright

Investment Limited#% 4 :

(a) B 1 506,741,640 B B 5 Jy B SPG
Investment Holdings Ltd #58 * &2 A8 A
SPG Asset Management Limited 2 2 & F 2
A] ° SPG Asset Management Limited,Z Fft
BB TR ABrilliant Bright Investment
Limited#5 48 + &

(b) BE0110,512,4930% % {5 Jh#Brilliant Bright
Investment Limited# 5 °

Brilliant Bright Investment Limited /& HSBC
International Trustee LimitedZz & & F A& »
HSBC International Trustee Limited A EEE £ 4E
FEKE(BEETEEEERTMELT) AWIE
X ABIBEFEZZEEA ©

FHZEZ AR A BB 10,250,448 B ik (5 2 #
& RERNBTRELTEE2EEHEERBoom
Rich Investments Limitedi% 4 °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company and their respective associates had
any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age had been granted
any right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company nor
exercised any such right.

ESREFNER(E)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests

in Securities” above, as at 31 December 2012, according to the register of

interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following

entities had interests or short positions in the shares of the Company

which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

FERR

B EXEERE R | —fTREERI -
RIZE——F+-A=1+—80 REXRFEARE
&5 KB GG 336 1R AT EMER B LML
B TOBEBRARRBRNTHREREESLHE
GBIEXVELSE2 K B33 BRARA R R R 25

XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

Capacity and nature of interest

Number of shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

BRREH SR RERME ROSE BFREBANEIHL
SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner (Notes 1 and 2) 506,741,640 48.21
EmEa A1 %2)
SPG Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 506,741,640 48.21
Limited (Notes 1 and 2)
Syl N a R (e &%2)
Prestige Glory Enterprises Beneficial owner (Note 2) 125,510,498 11.94
Limited EmEa A M)
Brilliant Bright Investment Beneficial owner 110,512,493 10.51
Limited EnlEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 3) 506,741,640 48.21
Syl A a Rz (e &%3)
HSBC International Trustee Trustee (Note 3) 617,254,133 58.72
Limited SEEA(FIEE3)

Notes:

M

506,741,640 shares are held by SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG Asset Management Limited. The entire
issued share capital of SPG Asset Management Limited is held by Brilliant
Bright Investment Limited. Each of SPG Asset Management Limited and
Brilliant Bright Investment Limited is deemed to be interested in 506,741,640
shares under the SFO.

Mr. WANG Weixian is a director of SPG Investment Holdings Ltd., SPG Asset
Management Limited and Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited.

Brilliant Bright Investment Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC
International Trustee Limited being the trustee of a discretionary trust of
which family members of Mr. WANG Weixian (including Mr. WANG Weixian
and Ms. WANG Xuling) are discretionary beneficiaries.

Bi5E

(1) 7 21506,741,640 % I% 19 T3 B8 SPG Investment
Holdings Ltd.#58 * SPG Investment Holdings Ltd.
/ASPG Asset Management Limited 2 & F A7) °
SPG Asset Management Limited Z fiT B 21 TR AN
FABrilliant Bright Investment Limited¥5 4 ° AR &
£ M HIEEH) - SPG Asset Management Limited &
Brilliant Bright Investment Limited & B4R A B
506,741,6400% %) 2 25

(2) EEE % HETISPG Investment Holdings Ltd. »
SPG Asset Management Limited &2 Prestige Glory
Enterprises Limited 2 =5 ©

3) Brilliant Bright Investment Limited /& HSBC
International Trustee LimitedZ 2&F 27 * i
HSBC International Trustee Limited BA TEE 4
KB (BETRELEERTAZLZL) ARG
ZRANNIBEILZZTA ©
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related-party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year are set out in note 48 to the consolidated accounts. Save as
disclosed below, the releted-party transactions either did not constitute
connected transactions/ continuing connected transactions or constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In consideration of the Wuxi branch of Bank of China Limited and the
Wuxi branch of Bank of Ningbo Co. Ltd. (the “Lenders”) agreeing to
advance the syndicated loan (the “Loan”) in the aggregate amount of
RMB1,800,000,000 to the Purchaser (as defined in the section headed
"“Events After the Balance Sheet Date” below) pursuant to the syndicated
loan agreement dated 31 December 2011 (the “Loan Agreement”), in
December 2011, the Project Company (as defined in the section headed
"Events After the Balance Sheet Date” below) entered into the mortgage
(the “Mortgage”) whereby the Project Company, as the beneficial owner
of the Land (as defined in the section headed "“Events After the Balance
Sheet Date” below), has agreed to mortgage in favour of the Lenders the
land use right in respect of certain parcels of the Land for the due and
punctual performance of the Purchaser under the Loan Agreement for the
period from 11 January 2012 to 30 June 2014.

The provision of the Mortgage by the Project Company to secure the
Loan provided by the Lenders to the Purchaser, a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company, constituted a connected transaction under Rule 14A.13(2)
(a)(i) of the Listing Rules and should have been subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules pursuant to Rule 14A.63 of
the Listing Rules. During the course of negotiation on the terms of the
documents in relation to the disposal of Project Company as mentioned
in the section headed "“Events After the Balance Sheet Date” below, it
came to the attention of the Company that it had inadvertently omitted to
comply with the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A in respect of the said financial
assistance.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6
January 2013.

BEALRS
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated
by the remuneration committee which takes into account individual
performance, qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the executive Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company'’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The remuneration of the non-executive Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to provide incentive to the directors
and eligible employees of the Group, details of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Options” above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2012, except that the trustee of the Share Award Scheme,
pursuant to the terms of the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme,
purchased on the Stock Exchange a total of 11,504,000 shares of the
Company at a total consideration of HK$16,826,514.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of Directors subsequent to the publication of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2012 are set out below:

BrREEHE
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Name of Director Details of Changes

EEpE BEFHE

Ms. WANG Xuling 400,000 shares of the Company were awarded to Ms. WANG Xuling on 2 April 2013 under
the Share Award Scheme subject to vesting conditions.

ThzEit FhzEL TN - T—=FMA — BREK0 ZEIFT 2 1X400,00008 A A R - 1#EER

SRBIRIFAAIR -

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 500,000 shares of the Company were awarded to Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry on 2 April
2013 under the Share Award Scheme.
SREH L SREFSE AN T —=F M A = BIREAR (D SZE) T E 500,000 RN R EIR A ©

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry resigned as an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (formerly known as Excel Technology International Holdings
Limited) effective from 3 July 2012.
REHEEBHEREARBIERBR AR (AIESRR R ERZERER DR BB IFNITE
F BT ——FtHtA=HBER-

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 500,000 shares of the Company were awarded to Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP on 2 April 2013
under the Share Award Scheme.
TS (KT 4t) FRGEAE (KAL) R ZE—=F A = RiRE MM 2B 21 500,000l A A AR -
Mr. JIANG Simon X. 500,000 shares of the Company were awarded to Mr. JIANG Simon X. on 2 April 2013 under
the Share Award Scheme.
BN E B/NREER T —=F M A = BIREAR (D SEENET Z1E%500,0000R AN A AR ©
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 500,000 shares of the Company were awarded to Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong on 2 April 2013
under the Share Award Scheme.
B2kt BRI E R EN T —=F A Z BRI RN+ 217&5X 500,000/ A R RIAR D -
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES
The Company’s audit committee is composed of all the four independent RARBEREECHMNE AR IENTEEH
non-executive Directors of the Company. The audit committee has Ko BEEgRERED RN ANEEN G RA
LA
A

reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices REWR - Wilin T ABEE RS M BEREE
adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and financial BEENEE T —F Tt _A=T—HBLFEDH
reporting matters including a review of the audited consolidated accounts KEZERERE -

for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained throughout the year of 2012 the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 4 January 2013, L8R 75 s /E HZE % R AR 2 (Shanghai Oriental
Cambridge Property Development Co., Ltd.*) (the “Vendor”) and #§57
AHFET R S E AR A F] (Wuxi Taihu New Town Development Group
Co., Ltd.*) (the “Purchaser”) entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”)
for the sale and purchase of the 60% of the equity interest owned by
the Vendor in & FEEM AR AT (Wuxi Xindu Real Estate
Development Limited*) (the “Project Company”) (the “Sale Interest”)
and the interest-free shareholder’s loans in the aggregate amount of
RMB979,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,206,556,569)
advanced by the Vendor to the Project Company as at 4 January 2013 (the
“Vendor Shareholder’s Loan"”) whereby, among other things, the Vendor
agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase (i) the Sale Interest
for RMB119,776,400 (equivalent to approximately HK$147,616,958)
and (ii) the Vendor Shareholder’s Loan for RMB979,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,206,556,569). On the same date, the Purchaser
and the Vendor entered into the loan assignment for the transfer and
assignment of the Vendor Shareholder’s Loan from the Vendor to the
Purchaser (the “Loan Assignment”) for the transfer and assignment of the
Vendor Shareholder’s Loan. On the same date, the Company entered into
the guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in favour of the Purchaser whereby the
Company agreed to irrevocably guarantee the performance, observance
and discharge by the Vendor of all of its obligations under or pursuant to
the Agreement. The Project Company is held by the Vendor as to 60%
and the Purchaser as to 40%. The Vendor is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Project Company is currently accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Company. The Project Company is the owner of
the land comprises Lot no. XDG-2009-67 situated at &85/ 48[ A8 %T
BB AERE - SRIEEIE (the land situated in the east side of Gong
Hu Da Dao and south side of Gao Lang Lu, Tai Hu Xin Cheng, Bin Hu Qu,
Wuxi, the PRC) and Lot no. XDG-2009-60 situated at £ 5 7 4 [ A 5T 5k
EWMARERR - EEBEER (the land situated in the east side of Gong
Hu Da Dao and the south side of Tang Tie Qiao Lu, Tai Hu Xin Cheng,
Bin Hu Qu, Wuxi, the PRC) (the “Land”) and is principally engaged in the
development of the real estate project known as “Jin Gui Li” developed by
the Project Company on the Land.
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
(Continued)

Since the Purchaser holds 40% of the equity interest of the Project
Company, the Purchaser, being a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, is a connected person of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Agreement, the Loan Assignment and the
Guarantee constituted a major and connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6
January 2013.

AUDITORS

The consolidated accounts for the year have been audited by KPMG. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company’s auditors
for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board
WANG Weixian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013

* for identification purposes only
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
23 R

lcnac

Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 91 to 217, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet of the Group and the balance
sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BEEH(ZR)BRAR —FT-—F5#H 89

BESEM(ER)ARLQE
(REEHEZMALHERL )
ZERRNBIZBARE

RAZBE (A TERIBEMDEERHERENZE
Q7EEEM(FER)BRAF(TERAR ) RE
FRAIATHEIERE DS BHRE - A
FEER - Z——F+-_A=+—HBNE£ELH
CEEBBRNEATEERER  EXBEZE
ZALFENGETHEHMNER  GEeBREIHR
MNGEHReRERARETESHEERENH A
FREERSE

ESRMBRRAARENEE

BERREFEARARRERARG ENZ S SR M
) B % B 75 i o 22 BN I\ BB 1) RGP IR BB AR E AR
HEEMAANPBRE  URBEERZ AR
i B 4 D R R Sl AR A A RO B8 KB AR BRI O B
BHRARMELENAIEGEE -

REENEE
BPMETRREEZNER  BRFYBHRE
BRER  UEREEERESE - Biltzih K
BETAREREMCAZ - RATERABEASR
AERE M AL FSOREEAEE -

BARBEEEGAGRMOFTEET LA
TEZ - BEENBREMBTEERE - WK
B RMITES  WEEREXEFVBREAZES T
FHEEAMERHERRL -



90 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
A% e 7

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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TE-ZFFH 91

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ao 1 4 T AN) TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-—F——Ff-H=+—HIFEF

Note
Bt 5
Revenue Y 25 8
Cost of sales SHE R
Gross profit EF
Other income LN 9
Selling and marketing costs SHE R T IS HE R AR
Administrative expenses THER
Other operating expenses Hib g% 10
Net gain on disposal of interests in a subsidiary & F 2 RI4E 2 W H 58 7
Results from operating activities RELETENER
Finance income BE WA
Finance expenses AR AR

Fair value changes on financial derivatives

TEEMTANARBEERZS 37,38

Net finance expenses A& B A R R 13
Share of losses of associates FE(REEE AR ETE
Share of losses of jointly controlled entity FEE A S E RL B8 27
(Loss)/Profit before revaluation losseson FKitIREYEEHEER
investment properties and income tax 88 (BE|),EF
Revaluation losses on investment properties & )3 & {518 23
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETS B AT (B518), A
Income tax expense FriSfif 14
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(FHE)BR
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: BT ALTES(BE), 87 :
Equity holders of the Company RARRERE A
Minority interests DEIR R 2
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(ER) %A
(Loss)/Earnings per share SR (E5E) BT
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) GREAR(ER), BT
(AR 18
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) BREE(EE), B8R
(AR%T) 18

The notes on pages 99 to 217 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company are set out

in note 17.

2012
—E—_F
RMB’000
ARBT T

1,766,535
(1,361,577)
404,958
17,691
(94,615)
(316,483)
(571,114)
134,499
(425,064)
99,003
(277,226)
852
(177,371)
(102,252)
(32,579)
(737,266)

(65,490)

(802,756)

(185,604)

(988,360)

(938,248)

(50,112)

(988,360)

2011
—T——%F
RMB’000
AREBTIT
5,677,523
(3,738,880)
1,938,643
169,310
(105,203)

(368,856)
(109,372)

1,524,522
38,937
(67,483)
(25,209)

(53,755)

(68,639)
(3,333)
1,398,795
(28,844)
1,369,951
(486,631)
883,320
898,320
(15,000)

883,320

0.86

0.86

FIIE2N7TE W TIZE B 7 = M4 K EP
Do ERAQRREFTAE ARBFBHAKFE

17 »
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A T AR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFEF

2012 2011
—EB-=F —FT——F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥ET T ARBTT

EE(ER), BRI (CEEREL) 883,320

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year F£EH i 2E A

Exchange differences EHER (43)

Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HEH AL (CLE:FE)) 883,563
Total comprehensive income AR AT EEMG

attributable to: =1 PN

Equity holders of the Company RARRERE A (938,291) 898,563

Minority interests 2 CEX T (50,112) (15,000)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEUW AL (988,403) 883,563

The notes on pages 99 to 217 form part of these financial statements. FO9E217H 2 M s¥ Jh % F 8 1 sk & 9 45 Ak 2B
Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company are set out Do ERARTIRERE AR SFBHNME
in note 17. 17 »
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
A B E AR A A B E AR

As at 31 December 2012
RZF—ZF+=ZH=+—H

Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Land use rights

Other investments

Properties under development

Investment properties

Interests in associates

Interests in a jointly controlled
entity

&E

EN VS
EBEE
tiE
HiiE
BRPME
REME

B NE R
HREES RS

Investment in subsidiaries FRAEE
Long-term receivable AR YR
Deferred tax assets EERBEE
Total non-current assets FRBEELE
Properties under development  ZEEHRYE

Completed properties held for sale & A 15 ¥ 2

Other investments
Trade, other receivables and

HiRE

PRI ~ H Ao R

advance deposits RiEfRERE
Long-term receivable within —FREIEH
one year REAEIK
Restricted cash ZRHIRE
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEY
Assets classified as held forsale  SFEARBEFENEE
Total current assets REEERAE
Total assets BEHRE
Equity i
Share capital L&
Share premium B 17 (B
Reserves i
Retained earnings/ REHF,/
(Accumulated losses) (BarE1E)
Total equity attributable EATRERFEA
to equity holders of the PEh R
Company
Minority interests LR RS
Total equity ERBAEE

Group

AEH
2012
—E-—F
RMB’000
AREBT R

959,388
1,521
76,826
35,432
4,062,629
1,758,000
980,325

702,556

746,590
240,571

9,563,838
2,380,515
2,694,340
165,436
2,230,835
175,007
832,697
816,836
4,193,626

13,489,292

23,053,130 23,837,809

106,591
2,069,086
790,566

1,312,056

4,278,299

31,273

4,309,572

2011
—T——F

RMB'000
ARETT

1,004,473
1,566
78,699
14,032
6,618,792
1,651,000
1,194,608

735,135

814,186
211,067

12,323,558
4,452,903
1,533,109

10,824
2,439,436
125,486

1,307,467
1,645,026

11,514,25

106,591
2,069,086
790,993

2,258,044

5,224,714
81,385

5,306,099

Company

FAH
2012
—E-_—F
RMB'000
AR¥TR

4,143,447

4,143,447

424,191

4,567,638

106,591
2,069,086
315,142

(PAEW[17))

2,277,117

2,277,117

2011
—T——F

RMB’000
ARET T

4,101,382

4,101,382

4,565,201

106,591
2,069,086
309,670

(16,225)

2,469,122

2,469,122
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
A B E AR A A B E AR

As at 31 December 2012
RZFE—Z—F+=A=1+—H

Liabilities

Group
S 3]
2012 2011

Company
RAT
2012 2011
—B--f ZT——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETRT ARBTT

—E-—_—F
RMB’000
AR¥T T

—F—F
RMB'000
ARETT

Interest-bearing loans HEEX 34 3,873,190 2,077,615 -
Trade, other payables and FERTBRZR - Efh AT ZIE

advance receipts KW IA 35 7,207,334 9,512,430 628,896 462,471
Tax payable FER IR 33() 1,187,142 1,209,234 -
Long-term payable within —FREIH/

one year REAFER R 36 6,000 6,000
Total liabilities associated with BB AR ERER

assets classified as held forsale  EEBHENEELESE 41 3,188,578
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 15,462,244 12,805,279 628,896
Interest-bearing loans FEER 34 1,730,822 4,174,690 = -
Long-term payable REERT 36 37,067 39,997 428,025 402,190
Financial derivatives TEcrIA 38 890 1,742 = -
Senior notes BEZE 37 1,233,600 1,231,418 1,233,600 1,231,418
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEEE 33(iv) 278,935 278,584 = -
Total non-current liabilities ¥ REI&EHAE 3,281,314 5,726,431 1,661,625 1,633,608
Total liabilities EEHE 18,743,558 18,531,710 2,290,521 2,096,079
Total equity and liabilities EnRkBERE CSlike -0l 23,837,809 4,567,638 4,565,201
Net current (liabilities)/assets HE (&1E) BEFHE (1,972,952) (1,291,028) (204,705)
Total assets less current HEERRBER

liabilities

4,102,730

7,590,886 11,032,530 3,938,742

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March S

2013.

Wang Weixian
TEE
Chairman of the Board of Directors

EFET)E

The notes on pages 99 to 217 form part of these financial statements.

E-=F=-"A-t+\BEEFESIERKE

Wang Xuling
THRE
Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
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BEEH(ZR)ERLF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

'::’ BN \‘
L ABIA R
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-—F——Ff-H=+—HIFEF

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible asset
Amortisation of land use rights
Change in fair value of investment properties
Write-down of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
Net finance expenses
Share of net losses of associates and
jointly controlled entity
Loss on disposal of interest in an associate
Net gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
Income tax expenses

REEK
FE(BE)a8F

AEIFR

e

B EESH

T R

BREMERABERE

BRTNENREZKGFE
YUEP& V]

BB AT

fEIEB = RA R
HFEEHIE TR
HERE R RRER EBR
HEFRRIERE 2 W FRE

BEWE  BER
i) BiRFE

REEE N R R

PSR

Note
k=g

19
20
21
23

10
13

26,27
10

"
14

Operating (loss)/profit before changes in
working capital

Decrease in restricted cash

EEESRBAN
e (EBR), B

R BB R LD

Decrease/(increase) in trade, other receivables JEUBEZN « E b lEULGRIE &
and advance deposits BRESRL (35 m)

Increase in properties under developmentand 2R Y% & 22K
completed properties held for sale FEWEIEN

Decrease in trade, other payables and JEMERRR - M ERFIE R
advance receipts TR FRIE R,

Income tax paid SAFTEE

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating E&EBERERA,~
activities (FH)F8

The notes on pages 99 to 217 form part of these financial statements.

2012
—E-—C—fF
RMB’000
AR®T

73,914
45
1,873
65,490

329,765
177,371

134,831
17,031

(134,499)

(4,899)
5,472
185,604

(136,362)
372,270
918,451

(446,916)

(83,174)
(284,925)

2011
—ET——F
RMB’000
ARBTIT

883,320

61,848
44
1,879
28,844

81,146
53,755

80

1,126

486,631

1,670,645

678,069
(358,285)
(1,839,016)
(689,771)

(294,365)

(832,723)

FOE2TAEZ MR FM MR AAEKALD ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E o E——FAf - A=A —HIFFE

2012 2011
—E2—C—fF —E——%F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B =% AR¥TR ARBTTT
Investing activities RETEE
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment RARFTIS I8 11,221 878
Interest received BEAIE 36,637 46,879
Proceeds from disposal of interests in an T & N B R FT S RUE
associate 26(a) 95,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of interests in a HEFRRERPTEHIE
subsidiary 7 348,800 -
Proceeds from sale of equity securities held HERBERSEMZ
for trading [RAFEH PTG FIE = 10,084
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment W EE¥I % « &= MG (21,597) (37,673)
Payments for purchase of other investments  FLEE B HAbI& & (F 3Kk (100,400) (6,000)
Payments for purchase of equity securities held FAEEZHEXZF AN 2
for trading IR A7 H 53 (3.994) -
Entrust loans to an associate and third party B4 AT RE=FHEITER 22 (70,000) -
Net cash inflow from investing activities 2&EESHR LSRN FE 295,667 14,168
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans R ERAERIE 3,075,393 2,937,896
Proceeds from senior notes BREEETSIE = 1,251,478
Acquisition of minority interests WiE DB R i e - (5,400)
Payments for purchase of shares for the Share 37 < 8% & i% {5 22512l
Award Scheme el <v) 42(b) (13,596) (31,718)
Repayment of interest-bearing loans HEHEER (3.631,013) (2,539,825)
Interest paid BRFE (779,006) (589,651)
Dividends paid BEARRE = (68,323)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEETHRSORE)
financing activities AR (1,348,222) 954,457
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekRBEEEEY
cash equivalents GR2) /EinFE (VAEPAN)] 135,902

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RA—BA—HHNEER
REZEEY 1,645,026 1,514,439

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fE R TE (145) (5,315)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—HH®H

HENAEZEEY 931,670 1,645,026
Represented by: ATHEBAER:
Cash at bank and cash in hand RTERRRS 32 816,836 1,645,026
Cash atbank and cash in hand included st ABEAIIZ(ESFEN
in assets classified as held for sale EENRITERERS 41 114,834 -

931,670 1,645,026

The notes on pages 99 to 217 form part of these financial statements. FIIENTE Z M I F I mER AR E S ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w/T

o B B e Mk

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
April 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.
The companies comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation
(the "Reorganisation”) to rationalise the Group’s structure in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). On 30 June 2006, the Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation were set out in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 26 September 2006.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 10 October 2006.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 include the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries from 1 January 2012, or their respective dates of
incorporation. The consolidated balance sheet at 31 December
2012 is a consolidation of the balance sheets of the Company and
its subsidiaries at the respective balance sheet dates. All material
intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation. In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated
financial statements prepared on this basis present fairly the results
of operations and the state of affairs of the Group as a whole.

—REMREEEAR

RABR_ZEZERFOA+T=ARER=
HERAVEF22E(— AR —FRa M RE
R EIMRED) EREHETMKR I AR
HMEBMRAT o ARFFMITEEZR U
ACentury Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town,
Grand Cayman, British West Indies - &%
BARARMNEBBE X SMAERRAA
([BERBMRFDERET  BEERNEER
AR AEETTT —HEA(EAE]) - AE
REBERESENL - RZZEZERERA
i-i—El CRRAFRAEREEREE TS T
NAMERAR - BRAEENFBHNAR
RAIRZTEZERFNAZTRBFIENE

RER -

AARBPR-_ZEETNF+ATBEFE
B A2 7 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 N\
LEAH

S 5 i Mk

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"). These financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) has
issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 4 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except that the following assets
and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 3(f));

—  other investment in debt and equity securities (see note
3(c)(i)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 3(c)(iii)).

Non-current assets and disposal group held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
(see note 3(y)).

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis
that the Group will continue to operate throughout the next
twelve months as a going concern. The Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB1,972,952,000 as
at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB1,291,028,000). Based on
the anticipated ability of the Group to obtain continued bank
financing and the estimated proceeds from the disposal of
certain projects and the property pre-sale of certain projects
to finance its continuing operation, the Company’s directors
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

2. WHEEE(E)

(a)

(b)

EREHR

RAMBRRIRBER MRS E
A (TEIFR B # ¥R E 2R ) iR BT A
ZN PR YISk WNCIR ST i
BREMBEBZAES ETRAZ
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ERest R B e ([BERE £
ZEE)RM T RLHET REERT
M BIFR B 5 s R - RAKRE A
REAE R B R EREK TR PR
e RERERESERMEHER
AEBBRAER 2 AT T BN RER
RAMBRENGTRREG 2EH
N BRI TS

R
RAMBRRTIRIBE £ KA E A
MK - ETHEERBEIETX
PRz Gt RRAIA R R BEA
BE :

- REWME(RME3)

- EEBRRAESRE (KM
F3(00) &

- {TESRIEARMEE3()

FRBEERREFEZLEERTS
BEREEERAAEERDERAME
ZEBIEEAR(RMES(Y) °

WIS R T IE RS B A BB T R K
ToEAUSEEENEEMRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B A B R M

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(9)

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in RMB has been
rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 5.

fm B EL7E (48

(c)

(d)

WEER EHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B B A M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all years presented in these consolidated financial statements,
and have been applied consistently by Group entities, except as
explained in note 4, which addresses changes in accounting policies.

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries, controlled special purpose entities
and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries and controlled special purpose entities are
entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Company has the power, directly or indirectly,
to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable or convertible are taken into
account. The financial statements of subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed when necessary to align them with the
policies adopted by the Group. The assets and liabilities
of the controlled special purpose entity, SPG Land
Employee Benefit Trust (New Zealand) (the “Trust”) (see
note 28(b)), are included in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet and the shares of the Company held
by the Trust are presented as a deduction in equity
as Shares held for Share Award Scheme. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
infull in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

TESTHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR/ R ES UG

m?

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

0]

Subsidiaries, controlled special purpose entities
and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with notes 3(m) or 3(n) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

3.

TESTHBERE)

(a) EHEE(E)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o B B i Mk

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

0]

(i)

Subsidiaries, controlled special purpose entities
and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, itis
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 3(c)(i)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity (see note 3(a)(iii)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 3(I)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Business combination for entities under common
control

Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for
as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented or, if later,
at the date that common control was established.
The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised
at the carrying amounts recognised previously in
the Group’s controlling shareholder’s consolidated
financial statements. The components of equity of the
acquired entities are added to the same components
within Group equity except that any share capital of
the acquired entities is recognised as part of merger
reserves. Any cash paid for the acquisition is recognised
directly in equity.

3. Egé—*ﬁ%(nﬁ)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

o B B i fi

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(iii) Associates and jointly controlled entities

Associates are those entities in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Significant influence
is presumed to exist when the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.
Jointly controlled entities are those entities over whose
activities the Group has joint control, established by
contractual agreement and requiring unanimous
consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.

Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using the equity method and are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted for any excess
of the group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
losses relating to the investment (see note 3(a)(iv) and
3(1)). The consolidated financial statements include
the Group's share of the post acquisition gains and
losses and equity movements of the investees, after
adjustments to align the accounting policies with those
of the Group, from the date that significant influence or
joint control commences until the date that significant
influence or joint control ceases.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in an associate or a jointly controlled entity, the
carrying amount of the interest is reduced to nil and
the recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with
the Group's long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
the jointly controlled entity.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o B B i Mk

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’sinterest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a jointly
controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that formerinvestee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 3(c)(i)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates and jointly controlled entities are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 3(1)), unless
classified as held for sale (orincluded in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group'’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B A B R M

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(iv) Goodwill (Continued)

When ii) is greater than i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 3(1)).

Ondisposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
isincluded in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

(b) Foreign currency

0]

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of Group entities at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at that
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency (Continued)

(i)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations outside
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated to RMB at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
atthe exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the foreign currency translation
reserve ("FCTR"). When a foreign operation is disposed
of, in part orin full, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign
exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary
item are considered to form part of the net investment
in a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and are presented in the FCTR
in equity and recognised in profit or loss on disposal of
the net investment.

(c) Financial instruments

0]

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlling entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(9)

0]

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance
sheet date the fair value is re-measured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 3(u).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses (see note
3(1)) at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial

recognition.

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is re-measured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend income
from these investments is recognised in profit or loss
inaccordance with the policy set outin note 3(u)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 3(u). When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 3(1)), the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

3.

TESTHBERE)

(c)

TEMITAA)

(i)

Htb R EB R RAEFHHIR
=4 )]
REERHBEMZEFRET
DERBBEE - EMES

RGEAREERFTIERARE
BoMNBTEERABRA AR
BEEDEHAE HikELEZ
EfA R E RN Ba g
R HERERN U R EE
FETEERZERERDD
EARERME - ARZER
BHFEE &%Wiﬂw%ﬁ
B BUR T RERR ©

PR BT 5 3 5 3R B & R

AR SR EARBEZEARE
FRETDRRAIERE 7 #R

EEE(RHE3)) R ERER
BEEERBERBER -

NER B EFTERIHE 5K
ﬁ BHoBE/AHEEES -
BEWMEHMR  FEHFER
fFﬁ B U A AV E R B A
DEEMEEBAER  LE
EaTrarBEMEIRR
it BEREHEFSERIERB
MEBERAZEMELWE
HiEm AEERAEBRADR®
R REZERBEEBEEHNRE
WA T3 BR B 5E 3(u) P # I

EE

REBDaTHER  MRERE
HAERAE  RAERMNEX

SHE R BRI R R FE3(U) AT
HEREBRmT R - E%F
HETA B R ERSORE (R
3B REHEG e Mg
B EERE -

109



110 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T

o B B i Mk

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Senior notes

Senior notesissued by the Company that contain
both liability and early redemption option (which is
not closely related to the host contract) are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. At
the date of issue, both the liability and early redemption
option components are recognised at fair value.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior
notes are recognised initially as part of the liability.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the early redemption
component which is presented as derivative financial
instruments is re-measured in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3(c)(iii). The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value
is re-measured. The gain or loss on re-measurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any subsidiary or controlled special purpose
entity of the Company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, is net of
any tax effects, and is recognised as a deduction from
equity.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

Recognition/de-recognition of financial assets and
liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when
the Group no longer has the rights to cash flows,
the risks and rewards of ownership or control of the
asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

0]

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation (see (iv) below)
and impairment losses (see note 3(1)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,
and other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and
equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and are recognised net
within “other income” in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Reclassification to investment properties

When the use of a property changes from owner-
occupied to investment property, the property is re-
measured to fair value and reclassified as investment
property. Any gain arising on re-measurementis
recognised directly in equity. Any loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part
of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings situated on 20-40 years
leasehold land

Motor vehicles 5 years

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 2-10 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of leasehold

period and 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTBEKR(E)
(Continued)
(e) Land userights (e) TiHfEAIRE
Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring T AR WESPBA0Z70FH)
rights to use land in the PRC with periods ranging from 40 T i REFRETE T RIE o XN KIE

to 70 years. Land use rights granted with consideration are
recognised initially at acquisition cost. Land use rights are
classified and accounted for in accordance with the intended
use of the properties erected on the related land.

For properties that are held for own use, the corresponding
lease prepayments are separately stated as land use rights
in the balance sheet and stated at cost, less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (see note 3(l)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the land use rights.

For investment properties, the corresponding land use rights
are classified and accounted for as part of the investment
properties, which are carried at fair value as described in note
3().

For properties that are developed for sale, the corresponding
land use rights are classified and accounted for as part of the
properties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for salesin the ordinary course of business, use
inthe production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. These include land use rights held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 3(r).

When the use of an investment property changes such
that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment and
completed properties held for sale, its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.
When the Group begins to redevelop an existing investment
property for continued future use as investment property, the
property remains an investment property measured based on
the fair value model, and is not reclassified as property, plant
and equipment during the redevelopment.

Egé—*ﬁ%(nﬁ)

(f) BREUZF

REVERTABNERERES K
A E ARG ERAEIA ERERENY)
¥ MARNELESEBREEFLE
AR A ESREE YRR RAFITE
RENMEATBNREDE - KE
MEBERIERRAE B AL AREE
WiEMAE MR EREZRERMA
BREFREMENDE -

BREMEDEAABEREEABR
MPNER - BRIEE VA E BN EZ
FMEH - MEARBERER K
ASRMETE - AABENESHARE
AR EREMEMELENRERE
BTN ER AR o

REYEOE S WAL () ATt
TIENER

E-EREMENRGEE YRR
ME - BELRREBARCEZRGTEY
RETENOEE  AEREHSE
EHNAABEKRAEREHEREN
AR - AR EREENERRER
EMEHRBRFEREREDE - B
RFEEBR AR BEEAFERK
EME - MASGEENERIESE
R - BB KR -



BEBEH(ER)ERAR —T—FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w/T

3.

o B B e Mk

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Properties under development

Properties under development are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Properties under development
comprise property developed for own use or for sale.

The cost of properties under development comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land use rights for properties under development, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see note 3(s)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Properties under development which are intended to be held
for sale and expected to be completed within 12 months from
the balance sheet date are shown as current assets.

Properties under development which are intended to be held
for own use, or for sale and expected to be completed beyond
12 months from the balance sheet date are shown as non-
current assets.

Completed properties held for sale
Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

In the case of completed properties developed by the Group,
cost is determined by apportionment of the total development
costs for that development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 3(1)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Contractor qualification 37 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
3()), except where the receivables are interest-free advances
and repayable on demand or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note

3()).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is calculated using
the weighted average cost formula, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costsincurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets
Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investment in subsidiaries) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Obijective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFHEK(E)
(Continued)
() Impairment (Continued) () REEE)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

Forinvestments in associates and jointly
controlled entities recognised using the equity
method (see note 3(a)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment as a whole with its carrying
amountin accordance with note 3(I)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 3(I)(ii).

For unquoted debt or equity instruments carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for unquoted equity instruments carried at
cost are not reversed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Impairment (Continued)

0]

Financial assets (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the asset),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status and
have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

Ifin a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B B AR M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTBER(E)
(Continued)
() Impairment (Continued) () BEGE)
(i)  Financial assets (Continued) (i) 2WMEEE)

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative — At EZFEEDEALE
loss that has been recognised in the fair value BEFEERNRABED
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The EHOBEEEZE  TER
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised HHEANETERESE A
in profit or loss is the difference between the W HE AR (IR AR &

acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are notreversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequentincrease in the fair value of such
assetsisrecognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR/ R eSS

MF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment (Continued)

()

(ii)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than investment properties, properties
under development, completed property held for sale,
inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill, its recoverable amount is estimated at each
reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Trade, other payables and advance receipts

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade, other payables and advance receipts are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call
deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of properties under
development or completed properties held for sale not
yet recognised as cost of sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Share award scheme

The Company operates a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme") where directors and employees of the
Group are granted ordinary shares of the Company.
Ordinary shares purchased under the Share Award
Scheme are held by the Trust.

Where the Trust purchases the Company’s shares
from the market, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as
Shares held for Share Award Scheme and deducted
from total equity.

For shares granted under the Share Award Scheme,
the estimated fair value of the awarded shares are
recognised as employee share-based compensation
expense and credited to an employee share-based
compensation reserve under equity over the vesting
periods. The fair value of the awarded shares is
measured by reference to the quoted market price of
the shares at grant date.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested Awarded
Shares recognised are credited to Shares held for Share
Award Scheme, with a corresponding decrease in
employee share-based compensation reserve for shares
purchased with contributions paid to the Trust.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

0]

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for aloss the holderincurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fairvalue of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guaranteesissued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 3(q)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

3. Egé—rﬁ%(nﬁ)

(q) FRBENMBRRE

BER

HEAE

()

FrEs H N R R

AR HER T 2R AT A (BIELR
NIRERZEANHEADE
ﬁﬁféﬁ&}\fﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁlﬁlﬁ
IRFR BB RMRZH
Bk ﬁﬁﬁ?qﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%i%k
HH A °

fi A 52 [ 85 HH B IS B AR - R4
ROAREBEEBIRZER B
_al'fgxix\j'ﬁfﬁ@ﬁb sat’@JEn‘HEi
) 8 58 75 A B K B EL At FE AT
RIANERIEW A o WA T
% 1 R BRE M ER St AT AR B
ZREBARBEANRZEEE
B AN SR BB M T A TSR o fi
3 8 B U BY Sk RT U ER Y SRR X
B - RNEVHEREMEZERA
W - BN S N B M TR

R ) HE R AR AT WA B HE AR 5K
HRERFHRBERAEE
R BB BEERBA < 1
Sh - OV ERFBEABAEA
Bl 5 A £ B A 3 AR ¢ R (i)
AAEENRERERAESB
BRIIRZEROENERR K
H o B 3R (B & A HER A &
R RETH#E) A LB TH
AR IR PR 5 3(ap) (i) HE SR A



BEEH(ZR)ERAR —FT —F5H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
an outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r) Revenue
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

0]

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
a Group entity has delivered the relevant properties
to the customers and collectability of the related
receivables isreasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition are recorded as advances from
customers and presented as trade and other payables
under current liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Revenue (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payment receivable. Contingent
rents are recorded as income in the periods in which
they are earned.

Sales of goods and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery
of the consideration due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods, or where there is continuing
management involvement with the goods.

Revenue in relation to property management and hotel
operation is recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the projects
at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is
assessed by reference to work performed. An expected
loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Tuition fee

Revenue from provision of education services is
recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
straight-line method. Tuition fee received prior to the
date of revenue recognition is included in non-trade
payables and presented under current liabilities.

Government grants
Unconditional government grants are recognised as
other income on a cash receipt basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Expenses

(i)  Service costs and property operating expenses
Service costs for service contracts entered into and
property operating expenses are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease
expense.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(u) Netfinance expense

(v)

Net finance expense comprises interest expenses on
borrowings (see note 3(s)), net of interest capitalised, interest
income on cash deposits in bank, dividend income, changes
in fair value of other investments in equity securities held for
trading, and foreign currency gains and losses.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective
interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established; dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Income tax expense

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, thatis, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(f), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(w) Dividends

(x)

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which
they are declared.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
("EPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, which comprise restricted shares
granted to employees.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

gé—rﬁ%(nﬁ)

(y) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned are deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 3.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(z) Related parties

(i) Aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is

(ii)

related to the Group if that person:

(M

)

(©)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(M

)

(©)

(4)

(©)

(6)

@)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identifiedin (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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o o B B A M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(aa) Segment reporting

3. E\Eggﬁﬁ%(nﬁ)

(aa)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item

reported in the financial statements, are identified from the

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to and assessing the performance of the Group's
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

(bb) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

Up to the date of issue these financial statements, the IASB

hasissued a number of new standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations which are not yet effective

for the year ended 31 December 2012, and have not been

applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 11, Joint arrangements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(bb) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

BIREA T s 2R
REEME R

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

BIRR BT 155

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) B e s ERISE275

BUHBEHRR(—F——F)

Bl & RIS 285

BERTk

IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures

Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits isET 2 BB g R

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments:
EHITA -
EHEE

Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(bb) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
The Group isin the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Up to the date of the issuance of these
financial statements, the Group believes that their adoption is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position except for the following:

— Amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to IAS 1 require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income
that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future
if certain conditions are met from those that would
never be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group's
presentation of other comprehensive income will
be modified accordingly when the amendments are
adopted for the first time.

— IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether
aninvestee should be consolidated, by focusing
on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect
the amount of those returns.

The application of IFRS 10 is not expected to change
any of the control conclusions reached by the Group
in respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1
January 2013. However, it may in the future result in
investees being consolidated which would not have
been consolidated under the Group’s existing policies
or vice versa.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(bb) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

IFRS 11, Joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which replaces IAS 31, Interests in joint
ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint
operations and joint ventures. Entities are required to
determine the type of an arrangement by considering
the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and
obligations under the arrangement. Joint arrangements
which are classified as joint operations under IFRS 11
are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the extent of
the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All
other joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures
under IFRS 11 and are required to be accounted for
using the equity method. Proportionate consolidation is
no longer allowed as an accounting policy choice.

The application of IFRS 11 is not expected to change
the Group’s accounting for its jointly controlled entities
which are currently accounted for using proportionate
consolidation as at 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required in IFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those required in the current standards. The Group may
have to make additional disclosures about its interests
in other entities when the standard is adopted for the
first time in 2013.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(bb) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS
13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about
fair value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. IFRS 13 is effective as
from 1 January 2013, but retrospective adoption is not
required. The Group estimates that the adoption of IFRS
13 will not have any significant impact on the fair value
measurements of its assets and liabilities, but additional
disclosures may need to be made in the 2013 financial
statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB hasissued a few amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following development is relevant to the
Group's financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: recovery
of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of financial assets

The amendments to IFRS 7 require certain disclosures to be
included in the financial statements in respect of transferred
financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
and for any continuing involvement in transferred financial
assets that are derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of
when the related transfer transaction occurred. However, an
entity need not provide the disclosures for the comparative
period in the first year of adoption. The Group did not have
any significant transfers of financial assets in previous periods
or the current period which require disclosure in the current
accounting period under the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: recovery
of underlying assets

Under IAS 12, deferred tax is required to be measured
with reference to the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the entity expects to recover the
carrying amount of the asset in question. In this regard, the
amendments to IAS 12 introduced a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property carried at fair
value under IAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered
through sale. This presumption is rebutted on a property-
by-property basis if the investment property in question
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

In respect of the Group’s investment properties which are
all located in Mainland China, the directors determined that
these properties are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time and
consequently the presumption in the amended IAS 12 is
rebutted for these properties. As a result, the Group continues
to measure the deferred tax relating to these properties using
the tax rate that would apply as a result of recovering their
value through use. Thus, the amendments to IAS 12 have
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o B B i Mk

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The following critical accounting policiesinvolve the most

significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements.

()

Valuation of investment properties

An external, independent valuation company, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience in the location and category of property being
valued, values the Group’s investment property portfolio
every six months. The fair values are based on market
values, being the estimated amount for which a property
could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in arms’ length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the
valuations are prepared by considering the aggregate of the
estimated cash flows expected to be received from renting out
the property. A yield that reflects the specific risks inherent in
the net cash flows then is applied to the net annual cash flows
to arrive at the property valuation.

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants
actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease
commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting vacant
accommodation, and the market's general perception of their
creditworthiness; the allocation of maintenance and insurance
responsibilities between the Group and the lessee; and the
remaining economic life of the property. When rent reviews
or lease renewals are pending with anticipated reversionary
increases, it is assumed that all notices and where appropriate
counter-notices have been served validly and within the
appropriate time.

Investment property under construction or development
isvalued by estimating the fair value of the completed
investment property and then deducting from that amount
the estimated costs to complete construction or development,
financing costs and a reasonable profit margin.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R M

5.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of non-
financial assets (other than investment properties, properties
under development, completed properties held for sale,
inventories and deferred tax assets) may not be recoverable,
the assets may be considered impaired and are tested for
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when the
asset’s recoverable amount has declined below its carrying
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In determining the
recoverable amount which requires significant judgements,
the Group estimates the future cash flows to be derived from
continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset and applies
an appropriate discount rate to these future cash flows.

Write-down of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
Management performs a regular review on the carrying
amounts of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale. Based on management’s review,
write-down of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale will be made when the estimated net
realisable value has declined below the carrying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale, management refers to prevailing
market data such as recent sales transactions, market survey
reports available from independent property valuers and
internally available information, as bases for evaluation.

In respect of properties under development, the estimate of
net realisable value requires the application of a risk-adjusted
discount rate to the estimated future cash flows to be derived
from these properties. These estimates require judgement
as to the anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new property
sales, marketing costs (including price discounts required
to stimulate sales) and the estimated costs to completion of
properties, the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions.

5.
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(ii)

(iii)
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(iv) Recognition of deferred tax assets

(v)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised deferred
tax assets in relation to the unused tax losses as set out in
note 33(ii). The ability to realise the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which related tax benefits under the
deferred tax assets can be utilised. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less than expected,
areversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal takes place.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and
the Group has not finalised its PRC land appreciation taxes
calculation and payments with most of local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation and
its related taxes. The Group recognised these PRC land
appreciation taxes based on management’s best estimates
according to the understanding of the tax rules. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the years in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok o B B i M

6. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has five reportable segments, as described below, which
are the Group'’s strategic business units. The strategic business units
offer different products and services, and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing strategies.
For each of the strategic business units, the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM") reviews internal management reports at least
on a monthly basis. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments.

° Sales of property: this segment develops and sells residential
properties, including villas, townhouses and apartments, etc.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out
in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu, Wuxi, Suzhou, Haikou,
Taiyuan, Ningbo and Huangshan.

° Lease of property: this segment leases commercial and
residential properties to generate rental income and gain from
the appreciation in the properties’ values in the long term.
Currently the Group's investment property portfolio is located
in Shanghai, Suzhou and Wuxi.

° Hotel and related services: this segment operates hotels and
service apartments to generate accommodation service and
related income. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard
are carried out in Shanghai, Suzhou and Huangshan.

o Education: this segment provides education and
accommodation service to college students. Currently the
Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in Shanghai.

° Property management and other related services: this
segment provides property management services, project
management services, greenery construction services and
other related services to external customers and group
companies. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are
carried out in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu, Wuxi, Suzhou,
Haikou, Taiyuan and Ningbo.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets with
the exception of interests in associates and interests in a jointly
controlled entity. Segment liabilities include all current and non-
current liabilities except for the senior notes managed at corporate
level.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to the revenue generated and the expenses incurred
by those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments. Segment
results do not include fair value change on financial derivatives,
share-based payments, gain on disposal of equity interestin
subsidiaries, share of losses of associates, share of losses of jointly
controlled entity and any other transactions managed at the
corporate level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aot 1 B 2 AR B

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. TEBHE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z——-—H+=-A=+—HLEE

Property

management
Hotel & & other

Sales of Lease of related related

Expressed in RMB'000 property property services  Education services
NEEE

BIER REAM

AAR¥TRIIE NEHEE  WXEE RERK ¥E  HERE

Revenue from external HBEF Wi

customers 1,415,373 50,528 142,156 74917 83,561 1,766,535
Inter-segment revenue et - - - - 9,776 9,776
Reportable segment revenue ] B $R 5 8B U35 1,415,373 142,156 93,337 1,776,311
Reportable segment AHERIH(EE)/

(loss)/profit A (848,360)  (44,636) (84,369 (4,070)  (974,614)
Interest income FIEMA 89,663 2,574 3,753 2,465 99,003
Interest expenses FISER (214,867) (23,161) (31,988) (278,447)
Revaluation losses on investment & A ¥ S (EEE

properties (65,490) (65,490)
Reportable segmentassets ~ THHESHEE 19,220,811 1,758,000 1,948,000 324,172 186,227 23,437,210
Additions to non-current EREMNH

segment assets during the year ~ JFRENEE 13,742 166,767 832 6,820 202 188,363
Reportable segment liabilities FER#HESHERE 16,098,813 808,980 1,620,679 235,826 140,599 18,904,897

Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7%& K244 14,809 48,395 12,158 470 75,832
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.
For the year ended 31 December 2011

DERERE (1)
BE-Z——F+=-A=+—HLEFE

Property
management
Hotel & & other
Sales of Lease of related related
Expressed in RMB'000 property property services Education services
NEER
BER READ
AR T LH1E MERE RER® R
Revenue from external SRR F s
customers 5,417,462 36,430 80,858 77,343 65,430 5,677,523
Inter-segment revenue SEEkE - - - - 23,852 23,852
Reportable segment revenue T H R 5 H UL 5,417,462 36,430 80,858 77,343 89,282 5,701,375
Reportable segment ARED R,
profit/(loss) (B#8) 995,140 (67,252)  (106,494) 4,097 (6,387) 819,104
Interest income FISWA 28,352 566 8,760 100 1,159 38,937
Interest expenses FIEBHA (87,201) (25,225) (14,226) (12,329) - (138,981)
Revaluation losses on investment & & E(LERE
properties - (28,844) - - - (28,844)
Reportable segment assets HHEBIBEE 19,819,429 1,651,000 2,407,164 308,566 168,413 24,354,572
Additions to non-current FNENH
segment assets during theyear  JERBIEE 17,928 122,492 8,030 11,404 31 160,165
Reportable segment liabilities TERHSHBEE 16,114,776 645,020 1,996,662 227,041 89,971 19,073,470
Depreciation and amortisation  #7E RE 11,949 - 37,612 13,770 440 63,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aot 1 B 2 AR B

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues,

profit, assets and liabilities

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue
Elimination of inter-segment revenue

7 ERERE ()
AR ME - BF > BEERE
BH R

2012
—F—=fF

2011
T %
RMB’000
AR¥TT

RMB'000
ARBT T

Consolidated revenue

&=

AIERSR D EBUR ER 1,776,311 5,701,375
73 B [ W 5 3 85 (9,776) (23,852)
el 1,766,535 5,677,523

(Loss)/Profit
Reportable segment (loss)/profit

Elimination of inter-segment (profits)/losses
Fair value change on financial derivatives
Compensation income
Share-based payments
Net gain on disposal of equity interests in
a subsidiary
Share of losses of associates
Share of losses of jointly controlled entity

2012
—E—_—F
RMB’'000
ARET T

2011
—F——F
RMB’000
ARBTR

(B518) %7
ARSI EE)#E T (974,614) 819,104
D EE CRF),/ B8 %6 (8,794) 1,526
MEeMIAENAREBEEZD 852 (25,209)
HEKA - 160,997
%17 2 (5.472) (1,126)
HEFREIREZ

W ss 58 134,499 -
FEAEEE A RIEE (102,252) (68,639)

JE(R KRS E 2 E1E (32,579) (3,333)

Consolidated (loss)/profit after income tax

BETS B LRA (B518), 5 F (988,360) 883,320
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ok BV 255 A B

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues,
profit, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets &=

2 EREE ()
AR WS - BT BERE
BHHRE)

2012 2011
—E—_fF

= e
RMB’000
AREETTT

RMB’000
ARBT

Reportable segment assets A[ERHOHEE 23,437,210 24,354,572
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 73 B0 [ FE U R TR T 8 (1,434,885) (1,814,430)
Elimination of inter-segment investments 4> #B R 1% & ¥ 8 (632,076) (632,076)
Interests in associates BN TR RS 980,325 1,194,608
Interests in a jointly controlled entity HEEHE RS 702,556 735,135
Consolidated total assets AR EERE 23,053,130 23,837,809

2012 2011
—E-—CF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T ARETT

Liabilities =N

Reportable segment liabilities R =L 18,904,897 19,073,470
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 B [ P A< B TE £ 8 (1,434,885) (1,814,430)
Senior notes EBErEERE 1,272,656 1,270,928
Financial derivatives TEEmIT A 890 1,742
Consolidated total liabilities FeAaBesE 18,743,558 18,531,710

Geographical information
In view of the fact that the Group mainly operates in the PRC, no
geographical segment information is presented.

Information about major customers
For the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, nosingle
customer contributes 10% or more of the total sales of the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 7 B 2 R B

7. DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTERESTSIN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 30June 2012, the Group entered into a share sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group has agreed to sell 100% equity
interests in Shanghai Yingjun Investment Management Co., Ltd.
and Wuxi Shengdong Property Development Co., Ltd. (collectively
referred to as the “Disposal Group”) for a total consideration of
RMB965,709,000.

As at 31 December 2012, although the Group retained 49% equity
interest in the Disposal Group, the Group has lost control over the
Disposal Group. Gain from disposal of subsidiary is recognised as

HEFLRRE
RZB-—FAA=+R ARERBIL
E=HHIRHBEGS - REXHH

AEBRABELHE LBEREEEEARA
ARESERFEEREARAR(RE L
EHR1)2100% K% BRERARE
965,709,0007T

R-B——FE+-_A=+—H  BEXE
EREBHEMAR 249% M - NEED %k
EH SRR ZEHE - HETFRAEZHK

149

follows: R
Assets: BE
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) W - BB REEE19) 799
Properties under development (note 24) BERERAPYE(K13E24) 401,834
Trade, other receivables and advanced deposits FEUSARSR - HAbEUGRIE RIER R E 424,932
Restricted cash SR HIR & 2,500
Cash at bank and cash in hand WITERRBES 1,200
Liabilities: =N
Trade and other payables JRE 1< AR R e L Ah £~ R IE (55)
Net assets attributable to the Group REEEFEE 831,210
Net gain on disposal of interests in a subsidiary HEF R AR 2 W FEE 134,499
Total consideration wRE 965,709
Amount due from the third party as at RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

31 December 2012 JEWE=T 7 % (615,709)
Cash consideration received during 2012 RIZE——FRI 2 RERE 350,000
Cash at bank and cash in hand disposed of ERECRITEREES (1,200)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal during 2012 R_BE——FRALEMELEZIRERAFEHE 348,800
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A A 5 R M

8. REVENUE 8. Wz
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised is as PR RIBEAERWESRTENT
follows:

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——1F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETTT
Sales of properties MEHE 1,415,373 5,417,462

Rental income HEBWA 50,528 36,430
Property management income MESBEIA 71,193 44,595

Sales of goods and rendering of services B RHE MR RS 12,368 20,835
Tuition fee =5 74,917 77,343
Hotel operation income THIE LB A 142,156 80,858

Total = 1,766,535 5,677,523

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HW A

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARKETTT

Compensation wHE - 160,997
Government grants BT B 1,699 2,474

Forfeited deposits from customers KEABRFPRRENS 4,228 794
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & BE A& E 2 W 5,025 692
Others Hith 6,739 4,353

Total & 17,691 169,310
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Aok BV 285 A B

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Penalties

Write-down of properties under
development and completed
properties held for sale

Loss on disposal of interests in

Sk
BRIAMER
[REEIDECE-—IEIk 0

HEBE R RRERZER

10. H K&

2012
—E—_F

RMB’000
ARBT R

PAVYL]

RMB'000
ARBT T

329,765

17,031
5,495
126
1,473

an associate (note 26(a)) (FE26(a))
Donations B
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEEZEIE
Others Hth
Total A&

571,114 109,372

(@)  Penalties mainly represent RMB210,970,000 for cancelling of

land purchase contracts.

(b) Asof31December2012, the Group assessed the net
realisable value of its properties. As a result, the carrying

amounts of certain properties under development were
written down by RMB207,686,000 (2011: RMB37,912,000)
(note 24), and the carrying amounts of certain

completed properties held for sale were written down by
RMB122,079,000 (2011: RMB43,234,000) (note 25).

11. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Wages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution plans

Staff welfare, bonuses and
other allowances

Equity-settled share-based payment

expenses (note 43(a))

(a)

(b)

SieFEREAERELHEEANZ
AFR%210,970,0007T °

RZZE—Z—ZF+=ZA=+—H " 'K
EEF A ENR#IRFE - A
WORETERPYENREBEARE
207,686,000 L (T ——4F : AR
#37,912,0007T ) (Fisk24) R IR &
TEREKNGEDNENREABEAARLE
122,079,0007C( —E——4 : ARK
43,234,0007T ) (FzE25) o

1. EIBX

TERFS
A S KT B
REEF - LA R
H A2 AL
fRHE S F R TN
(Ff7E43(a))

2012
—E—_—F

2011
—F——F
RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB'000
AR®ET T

165,647 179,607
31,247 21,706
26,186 25,527

5,472 1,126

Total

228,552 227,966
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12. EXPENSES BY NATURE

The following expenses are included in cost of sales, selling and

marketing costs and administrative expenses:

Cost of properties sold
Auditors’ remuneration

— audit services

— audit-related services
Depreciation
Amortisation of land use rights
Operating lease charges

BEMEESTHNER
EPABHERAE - HERTIBEEL AN
BB X ARSI -

12.

2012
—E—_fF

2011
—F——4F

RMB’000
ARMFIT

RMB’000
ARBTR

B E YR AR 994,873 3,215,888
ZEME
— BZR 4,250 3,810
— BIZAAARSS 300 1,100
wE 73,914 61,848
s AR 8K 1,873 1,879
MERES 12,837 15,572

13. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on long-term receivable
measured at amortised cost (note 30)

13. BAEW AR BAE
2012

—E——fF

RMB’000

AR¥T T

36,639

PAONN
—E——1F
RMB’000
ARETT

RITEHRAEIA
O BER AT BRI EUGRE

FBEUA (H5E30) 62,364

Finance income

Interest expenses on interest-bearing loans
and senior notes
Less: interest capitalised (note 24)

99,003

(809,788)
531,341

(633,379)

A BRI FLE(MEE24) 494,398

Net interest expenses on interest-bearing
loans and senior notes

Interest expenses on long-term payable
measured at amortised cost

Net change in fair value of other investments

Net foreign exchange gain

AHEERREBARR
MEBERFE

O BER A ENRENRY
FEER

HitmE AR BEESFE

BEE 34 s 2 5 B

(278,447) (138,981)
(3,070)
1,618
2,673

(3,259)
(207)
74,964

Finance expenses

Fair value changes on financial derivatives
— Redemption option of senior notes
(note 37)
— Interest rate swaps (note 38)

(277,226) (67,483)

TEERMTANRABERD
— BEREE DR (ME37)

— FIRi= A (FFE38)

Net finance expenses

BVE KA FEE (177,371) (53,755)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 BA B AR B

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(i) Income tax in the consolidated statement of

14. FIBHHAX
() GE2ERNHERANFTEHR

comprehensive income represents:

Current tax Bl HA i 18

Provision for PRC enterprise income 7N & p B (b 3£ AR 1S R B4

5

2012 2011
—E—_—F

T %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETT

77,070 394,778

132,656 124,082

tax for the year (note 33(i)) (B5E3303))

Provision for PRC land appreciation  ZN4F & /1 [ 4 b 48 (& F1 8% 45
tax for the year

Deferred tax ELERE

Origination and reversal of temporary &k 2= B 1) &= 4 N # 0]

differences (note 33(ii)&(iii))
Benefit of tax losses recognised
(note 33(ii))

(P RE33(i) R i)
EERAREBEZE
(B EE33(i))

209,726 518,860

21,759 (128,306)

(50,912) (8,731)
5,031 104,808

(24,122) (32,229)

Deferred PRC land appreciation tax ~ #EfE 7 B + 12 {E ¢
Total income tax expense TSz f e

185,604 486,631

Enterprise income tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“New Tax Law")
of the PRC passed by the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and effective
from 1 January 2008, the Group’s main project companies
were subject to PRC income tax at a rate of 25% (2011:
25%).

EREH
HRAEERBEE-_Z——F+=A
=+ — R IEFEYERRERAEZSR
BENEHOWA - B EIEHFE
SRS -

REFAEFENABREZEENMRA
NEP - REBBAGMNERFHE
ENEBELEEEMR

BER-_TTLF=A+BE+E
2RAARREAGERARNGE BB
RZZTTNF—A— BRERNTE
TEMSRE(THEE]D  A%H
MEZEAB QA ER25%HR R
BPECEMEHR(ZT——F -
25%) °
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Ao 1 A 2 AR B

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. FREHAX(E)

(i) Income taxin the consolidated statement (i) ZEXEANBRANVFAER
of comprehensive income represents: (&)
(Continued)
Land appreciation tax T ER
PRC land appreciation tax is levied on properties developed REEHEMBRNMEBRTIHE
for sale by the Group at progressive rates ranging from 30% BB I8 LA30% £ 60% H) 2 3 i K5
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which under the e B i 18 ER - RIEEERG
applicable regulations is calculated based on the proceeds T IBEF TR HEWERGSRIER
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including AR (BELERErES
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all HEBEEKALRFTEMEERRY)
property development expenditures. Land appreciation tax of HE - HE_Z——F+-_A=+—
RMB137,687,000 has been included in profit or loss for the BIEFEFABSFRALIHIZERA
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB228,890,000). AR¥137,687,0007T( =T ——4% :

AK%228,890,0007T) °
(i) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i) HEFAIMG(EHER) =R

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rate:

BRETISFLR (EE), /a5 F)
A P IS (E R

(Loss)/Profit before income tax
Less: PRC land appreciation tax

BAKEB TS RA
ERBERFTENHIA

Tax calculated at the rates applicable
to respective companies that
comprise the Group

Efﬁ NG|

HAZHEBRED

Tax effect of share of results of
associates and jointly controlled

RERBRTENEER

2012
—E—__F

RMB’000
AR® TR

(802,756)
(137,687)

RMB'000
ARBT T

1,369,951
(228,890)

(940,443) 1,141,061

(124,720) 221,882

entity W%%%E 23,716
Non-deductible expenses, net of non- A[ 1 2 H

taxable income (BMBBEZRBUA)
RERELEHEEE

BEFERBETR(GBERE)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Under/(over)-provision in prior years

33,747
112,038
3,136

47,917 257,741

137,687

185,604 486,631
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok BV 285 A B

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense and

14. FREBF> (M)

(i) BEBAXME(BHE) EF

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax

rate: (Continued)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(v),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2012 as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

For the year ended

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

31 December 2012 =
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wang Weixian TRERE
Ms. Wang Xuling THERT
Mr. Cheung Man Hoi, Ronny 3R 30855 4

(note ) (Fi)

Mr. Chu Hau Lim (note ii)

REREE (W)

Non-Executive Director ~ ¥#78%
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones B REE
(note il (BaEiii)
Independent Non-Executive B /8%
Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry - 3% 28145
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP ANEE(RTET)
Mr. Jiang Simon X. Bk
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRERE

Total

BREABRFTENYEE - (&)

BB SV TS E TR - AR
o F AR TAA B @RS RE
TR 2 B BB EUS AR R JE AR A ) DA K
HAIEAMEE  HAKEEERZEC
T——F+-_A=+—BLFEXRH
ZEHIBEERAETCHIEELE -

15. EEME

Basicsalaries,  Contributions
to retirement

benefit

allowances
Share - based

payment

and other

schemes Bonus

benefits

EfEs

BER  BEAEN
k2 Rt M TR 7!
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

Rt EH

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT  ARBTR

(note 40)

(Kzta0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 A 2 AR B

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 15. EEME(F)

Basic salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement

and other benefit Share - based

benefits schemes Bonus payment

LS
RER WRAER
ik H sTRIE fea Bt aat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET  ARETL  ARETL  ARETR  ARETL  ARETR

For the year ended HE-B--%

31 December 2011 TZA=T-HLEFE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Weixian TRERE - 3513 - - - 3513
Ms. Wang Xuling IRt - 4615 - 5839 - 10,454
Mr. Cheung Man Hoi, Ronny — R308 %4 - 2,357 - - - 2,357

Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones HERAE - 1,450 - 1572 - 3,022
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome Rgra 477 - - - - 477

Independent Non-Executive BuEHTEES

Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry - R85 £ 277 - - - - 277
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP FHEE(KTEL) 77 - - - - 7
Mr. Jiang Simon X. Bmis 277 - - - - 277
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRESE 277 - - - - 277
Total A% 1,585 11,935 - 7411 - 20,931

() Mr. Cheung Man Hoi resigned as an executive director of the () wXBEEB-Z-—_FHA—HRE
Company with effect from 1 April 2012. BHEARNTRITES -

(i) Mr. Chu Hau Lim was appointed as an executive director of iy KEREEA-Z——-FWMA+H
the Company with effect from 16 April 2012 and resigned BEZFRARARBVTES WA=
as an executive director of the Company with effect from 1 T——F+ A —BRETARQFHNT
October 2012. Bx-

(iiiy ~ Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones did not offer himself for re-election (i) MttREAVEE-_T——FA—
as a non-executive director in the Annual General Meeting AETHBRFEAFAE FEREFI]E

held on 1 June 2012. WITES -
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16. SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012 comprise three directors of the Company
(2011: four), whose remuneration is disclosed in note 15. Details of
remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid individuals of the
Group are as follows:

Basic salary, allowances and other benefits

16.

EAHE  RUREMN R

EREEEWNS
rEBEE-_T——_F+_A=+—8H1
FEMNAEGZRTWATEREAQG =4
(ZZT——F  WB)EF - HMS 20K
FIEE c MAEEESRERTMA TS
RS BT

2012
—E—_—F
RMB’'000
ARET T

5,935

2011
T %
RMB’000
AR¥TT

The emoluments of the two (2011: one) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

Hong Kong Dollar BT
2,000,001-3,000,000

3,000,001-4,000,000

2,000,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-4,000,000

ME(ZE——F  MB)RSHFMALHD
BeENFLATEHE :

2012
—E——F

Number of Number of
individuals

ABL

individuals

During 2012, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

TR FEAKREYERNEEXINEM
& ERIMAER AR S B 2 BE)K
TERBER(E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 A 2 AR B

17. DIVIDENDS 17. BB

2012
—E—__fF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AR®ETT

FRAEERMENZ

Final dividends in respect of previous

financial year, declared and paid BB R ERRR B
during the year (2011:RMB0.065) (i) (ZF——%F : AR¥0.0657T)() 68,390
Final dividends proposed after the BEABEXRBRE
balance sheet date (ii) F R R HA AR B.(i) -
(i) Inthe meeting held on 23 March 2012, the Board of Directors (i) MRZZE——F=F-+=H&ETH=
resolved not to propose cash dividends for the year ended 31 FE BEEg@A REE—Z——
December 2011, which was approved at the Annual General F+ZA=+—HILFEERIREMR
Meeting held on 1 June 2012. eRE AR ZZT——-FA—RAL
ITHIREEF RS LRHE -
(i) The Board of Directors has resolved not to propose dividends (i) ARAEZEFTEIAINUEE_-Z
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012. —ZHF T+ A=t+—BIEFEEIRET

{EJH&/%‘ °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 BA B AR B

18. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BR(E#]) &R
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing EREANEE(ER), BFTIAKRAQR
the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by PERSE ARG (ER), SFBRUEAR
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the BITERER(TEEDBE 2 AEE LA
period excluding ordinary shares purchased of the Group and held KRR 15 22 B a8 (I 7E40) P AR (0 ) 2 Nt
for Share Award Scheme (note 40). FHEEE

2012 2011
—g-=% —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETT

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of AN B f A A (L (E1E)
the Company S M) (938,248) 898,320

Number of shares

gy 4!
2012

Weighted average number of R—A—B8E&TL R
ordinary shares in issue at 1 January hniEF9 &L Lo 1,051,128,275

Effect of Share Award Scheme &t BRI & (24,445,905) (5,253,619)
Weighted average number of RT+ZA=+—HH8
ordinary shares in issue at 31 December BT mARA R I sl bl 1,045,874,656
The average market value of the Company’s ordinary shares for the M HERBRHZBEEZEM S 2 A RA
purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of awarded shares was LR ME - T EE RS EITESN
based on quoted market prices for the period during which the HEzTSRERELE - HEREE(H
awarded shares were outstanding. In respect of the diluted (loss)/ B)/Bfms  AREBEE-T—-FK
earnings per share, no adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/ ZE——F+ A=+ —BLFEHTHE
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 Iz BENR GO EHERER(FE)
as the impact of the share awards outstanding during these years BRI EAAMEEER - NOF W EHRZ
had no dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share. MEFE 2 SREN(EER) BFELE

8 -
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Ao 1 A 2 AR B

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19.

Fixtures,
Leasehold Motor fittings&  Construction
In RMB'000 Buildings improvements vehicles equipment in progress
EE KR
ARBTR e EEIR
Cost: A
Balance at 1 January 2011 W-E--5-F-ANEH 394,060 32,243 33357 83,970 511,830 1,055,460
Acquisitions BE 3,564 - 10327 17937 5,845 37,673
Transfer from properties under HERPERERASE
development and completed nEER
properties held for sale 44,760 - 1178 73,735 - 119,673
Transfer from investment Properties RENEER 5,865 - - - - 5,865
Transfer from constructioninprogress {72 Tiz8 % 384,067 - - 133,608 (517,675) -
Disposals g2 - - (6,293) (590) - (6,883)
Balance at 31 December 2011 W=B--F+ZA=1-H
Hth 832,316 32,243 38,569 308,660 - 1,211,788
Acquisitions BE 9 - 6,697 9,571 5319 21,59
Transfer from properties under HaRmnFEs
development (note 24) (Hrsk24) 15,046 - - - - 15,046
Transfer to assets dassified asheld for ~ EREFHAAHFEFES
sale (note 41) EAUEZ)] - - (590) (394) - (984)
Disposal of a subsiciary (note 7) ETFRE (KT - - (692) (350) - (1,042)
Disposals #2 (6,502) - (550) (609) - (7,661)
Balance at 31 December 2012 WZE-Z§+-A=1-A
e ] 840,869 32,243 43434 316,878 5319 1,238,743
Depreciation: E:
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE--£-F-ANER 63,970 23,988 22,908 40,526 - 151,392
Charge for the year ERfE 29,492 1,649 4,258 26,449 - 61,848
Disposals g3 - - (5,503) (422) - (5,925)
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZB--F+ZB=t+-H
e ] 93,462 25,637 21,663 66,553 - 207,315
Charge for the year ERfE 34,403 604 5426 33,481 - 73,914
Transfer to assets classified as held for ~ ERERBARFEEENEE
sale (note 41) (BizEa1) - - (197) (95) - (292)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 7) ETFRR (KT - - (181) (62) - (243)
Disposals &2 (442) - (502) (395) - (1339
Balance at 31 December 2012 WZB-ZF+ZA=1-H
Hith 127,423 26,241 26,209 99,482 N 279,355
Carrying amounts: REE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—£+-A=t+-AH 713,446 6,002 17,225 217,39 5319 959,388
At 31December 2011 WZ8--F5+ZA=1-A 738,854 6,606 16,906 242,107 - 1,004,473

(i) All buildings owned by the Group are located in the PRC.

(i)  Asat31December 2012, property, plant and equipment
with a total carrying value of RMB777,943,000(2011:
RMB592,798,000) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s

borrowings.

(i) AEEHRBENMBERFTHURFTHE -

i)y RZZE—=—F+=—_B=+—8"
AEBEERERARBAEARE
777,943,000t (=& ——%F : AR¥
592,798,00070) UM% ~ = K& iE
EAAEEEENIKAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aot 1 B 2 AR B

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BV EE
Contractor qualification AEEER

2012 2011
=F-—=F e

RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBETT

Cost: R :
Balance at 1 January R—A—HB8&E# 1,700
Acquisitions g =
Balance at 31 December W+ZA=+—A0%s
Amortisation: ey
Balance at 1 January R—A—HB84%%
Amortisation charge for the year FR#EHEFAT
Balance at 31 December W+ZA=+—A0N%
Carrying amounts: BREE :
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B8%&#%
21. LAND USE RIGHTS 21. L fEAE

2012 2011
—g-- -z~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  ARETR

Cost: A
Balance at 1 January R—A—HBR%E&H% 91,265
Transfer to properties under EREERPYE
development (note 24) (F5E24)
Balance at 31 December RtZA=+—AM&Es 91,265
Amortisation: ey
Balance at 1 January R—A—Br%&EH%
Amortisation charge for the year FRE X
Transfer to properties under EREHEPYE
development (note 24) (Pff7E24)
Balance at 31 December N+ZA=+—AN%s
Carrying amounts: BREE :
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B8%&#%
Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring rights to b {55 PR RE FE U HE 2 2B AL A R B A
use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties. ARMNNEEENZE 2+ AER

R -
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Ao 1 A 2 AR B

22. OTHER INVESTMENTS 22, HiiRE

2012
—=E—_fF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT

Equity securities available-for-sale AT ERARE S i 15,432
Entrust loans BFEER 20,000

Non-current investments REAIRE 35,432

Equity securities held for trading BERX 5B W 2 RARE (ii) 16,436
Other available-for-sale investments  E fth A] it £ 18 & (iii) 99,000
Entrust loans (note 48(c)) EFEE R (M5E48(c)) (iv) 50,000

Current investments BIERIE & 165,436

(i) Equity securities available-for-sale mainly represent the (i) AHEEERAESFENERNXDM
Group's 2.81% equity investment in XDM Resources Inc, Resources IncH)2.81%MRIERE » Z
which is incorporated in Canada and is engaged in minerals ANEIPAINE RFEM B S I SR E &)
exploration and development. RN BERER -

(i) Equity securities held for trading mainly represent investment iy FBEXHEMZBRAFTLHEEZHREFE
in shares held for trading purposes. These shares are listed on REGBEMZBRNIEE - ZERHMN L
the stock exchanges of Shanghai and Shenzhen. B RRYIERZ ST e

(i) Other available-for-sale investments represent certain (i) HMrHHERERSRMBREREITH
financial products issued by a financial institution. ET&mER-

(iv)  The entrust loans represent short-term loans provided to (iv) fErEEREBRETAREEB S F L
the Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company Limited NS THIEAR AR ([ NE

(“Peninsula Waitan"), an associate of the Group. ENHOBEHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 BA B AR B

23. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 23. REYE

R—A— B
RAEAE

Balance at 1 January
Cost capitalised
Transfer to completed
properties held for sale
Transfer to property, plant
and equipment
Fair value adjustments:
Recognised in profit and loss

DABEEHE
FEREER

HEZCRERFENE

HEEMX  BEREE

2012 2011
—E——F

—F——F
RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB'000
ARMT T

1,651,000 1,948,000
172,490 122,492
(384,783)
(5,865)

(65.490) (28,844)

Balance at 31 December

Rt A=+—Ho&EH

1,758,000 1,651,000

All the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value at 31
December 2012. The fair values were arrived at based on valuations
carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited. The valuations,
which conform to the Valuation Standards (First Edition 2005) on
Valuation of Properties published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, have been determined by reference to comparable sales
evidence and, where appropriate, by capitalisation of net rental
income. The revaluation losses have been debited to profit or loss
of the respective year, or, in the case of revaluation gains arising on
transfer of an item of property, plant and equipment to investment
properties following a change in use, to equity directly.

As at 31 December 2012, investment properties with a total carrying
value of RMB1,331,000,000(2011: RMB745,545,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development expected to

TEEAS R AT B A Y

AEBERAREMER_T——F+-A
=t BHANURAREBEAR - AREBETD
RIBHBERTARARETHMEEDE
E o REMERBEENEMBGHEMN
MEBERE(ZETAFE MR ET
YSEALEHEEEN R (MER) BB
HEBANFRERCMETE - EHEED
MRS FHNED  WEYME - BERRE
HRHENZEAZREREREMEMESE
Efhlas - AERE AR

RZZE——F+-_A=+—H AEEBEE
15 BR T 48 (B AR 1,331,000,0007C (=&
——% : AR¥745,545,0007T) IR E Y
EERERASBERBENEAR -

24, BRHPYE

2012
—g——F

RMB’000
AR®T

RMB’000
ARBTIT

2,380,515 4,452,903

be completed: BERPYE
— within twelve months — TZEAR
— beyond twelve months —+t=Z@A%

4,062,629 6,618,792
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24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24, BREPYE(E)

(Continued)

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

K—A—Bm#EsH

Balance at 1 January

Cost capitalised P& N-¥:N¢

Transfer from land use rights B T A

Transfer to property, plant and equipment BRENE - BEREH
(note 19) (MisE19)

Transfer to completed properties ERTERRFEME
held for sale (note 25) (MisE25)

Transfer to assets classified as held HEEREARBEFENEE
for sale (note 41) (MisE41)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 7) HEFRR(MHFE7)

11,109,607 8,522,371
2,202,474 6,607,983
- 1,154

(15,046) (107,367)

(2,278,183) (3,914,534)

(4,082,159)
(401,834)

Write-down of properties under development: i} 35 & R ¥ 3 -

6,534,859

(37,912)
(207,686) (37,912)

153,883

(CAAL)) (37,912)

Balance at beginning of period LERIESS

Additions (note 10(b)) # 0 (HEE10(b))

Transfer to assets classified as held EREBEAREFENEE
for sale (note 41) (Mi5E41)

Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—AK&%

6,443,144 11,071,695

Interest capitalisation included in the above: B+ A _FitI8 B 893 & A F &

Balance at 1 January W—A—BR&H%

Cost capitalised (note 13) BRAE A (H5E13)

Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE - WEREE

Transfer to completed properties held BRECDERGTEDE
for sale

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EREEEAGESRENEE

667,252 328,075
531,341 494,398
- (5,431)

(CYERYP)) (149,790)
(14,190) -

Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H0%&%

810,831 667,252

The properties under development are located in the PRC.

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings is 10.10%
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 9.40%).

As at 31 December 2012, properties under development of
approximately RMB5,153,632,000 (2011: RMB6,450,244,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

BRAMEOURPHE -

BE_T—_F+_A=t—HILFE "
fEEMINEFIHEACMER10.10% (=
T——%F :9.40%) °

R-ZE——F+-A=+—H AEEBEZ
KR EBEEHARES,153,632,000T(=F
——4 : AR#6,450,244,00070) K& R
PMEEATEEEENERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 B 2 AR B

25. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 25. CERESEEYE

2012
—E—_—F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R AREETIT

R—A—HN&% 1,576,343 505,220

Balance at 1 January

Transfer from properties under ERaEEPmEPIT24)

development (note 24) 2,278,183 3,914,534
Transfer to cost of sales ERBHEKK (1,043,277) (3,215,888)
Transfer from investment properties EE RN EE = 384,783
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ EEZEW ¥ « BE & RE - (12,306)

2,811,249 1,576,343

Write-down of completed properties held — #iy& B2 @2k & W ¢

for sale:
Balance at 1 January R—A—Br&EE (43,234) -
Additions (note 10(b)) (KM EE10(b)) (122,079) (43,234)
Transfer to cost of sales EREHERAN 48,404 -
(116,909) (43,234)
Balance at 31 December RT+_A=+—"HH&EH 2,694,340 1,533,109
All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC. AR @KAEEWEAMLARPE -
As at 31 December 2012, completed properties held for sale of R-TE——F+-_F=+—8H AEBEZD
approximately RMB144,522,000 (2011: RMB487,018,000) were HIFEEHNARBE144,522,0000( = F
pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings. ——F : AR®487,018,0007T) E K

FEMRERASEREENEMRD -
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 26. BHE N EIRER

Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management /&R EEEKLEER AT

2012
—E—_—F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT

Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai ZhongXin") (IEEZE] (a) - 112,975
Peninsula Waitan GNEEF S (b) 976,815 1,078,086
Shanghai Zhaozhi Shiye Co., Ltd. LEBEREEERAA

("Shanghai Zhaozhi”) (IEB8HmE ) (0) 3,510 3,547

980,325 1,194,608
(a) Shanghai ZhongXin (a) LERSE

Cost of investment B AR
Goodwill on acquisition W EA R R
Share of post-acquisition profit pak =g Re vl
Loan B3

2012 2011
—g—=x  —T—*&
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFE  ARETRI

112,975

On 30 November 2012, the Group entered into a share sale
and purchase agreement pursuant to which the Group has
agreed to sell the equity interests in Shanghai ZhongXin at
a total consideration of approximately RMB95 million. The
disposal date is 12 December 2012.

RZZE—=—F+—A=+8 " £%£H
RINBRMESERE - Bt AEER
ELERLEIRENRE  BRED
A AR#95,000,0007T © HEBEIA
ZE-ZF+ZA+=RH-
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) Shanghai ZhongXin (Continued)

26. Bt N E R (E)
(a) LBBRE(HE)

RMB’000
ARETIT

Cost of investment &R 26,933
Goodwill on acquisition W EEREE 2,794
Share of post-acquisition profit PG BRI 61,304
Loans from the Group REAEEHER 21,000
112,031

Loss on disposal of interests in an associate & B4 A RIS 2 B8

(note 10) (M$5E10) (17,031)
Total consideration, satisfied in cash HBREAREZA) 95,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEEAZRESRAFEE
— Cash consideration received during 2012 — AT ——F I B LKE 95,000

(b) Peninsula Waitan

Cost of investment

Share of post-acquisition profits

(b) SNEXE

BRERAK
o1 B R R

2012 2011
—EB-——fF

—F——F
RMB’000
ARBTT
880,678
197,408

RMB’000
AR®ET T

880,678
96,137

976,815 1,078,086

Peninsula Waitan is 50% owned by the Group, and is

engaged in development, operation and management of The

Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel.

The share of post-acquisition profit of Peninsula Waitan for

the year ended 31 December 2012 was mainly attributable

to the revaluation gain on Peninsula Waitan's investment

properties.

SN BRAEEBEFS0%BE - I
feE LBINEFBIEENRE - K28
RER o

BE_T——_F+_A=1T—HLHF
BN+ BB N E B R
BSNEF BIREMENEB RS
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(c) Shanghai Zhaozhi

26. B QT ER(E)
() LE=m=E

REKA
DMEWBRER

Cost of investment
Share of post-acquisition losses

2012
—E—-F

2011
—ET——4F
RMB’000
AR¥ETIT

RMB’000
AR®T

3,633
(123)

3,510

Shanghai Zhaozhiis 36.33% owned by the Group, and is
engaged in development of commercial properties.

FEHERAEEEE3633% K
W W EREMEREER -

(d) Summary financial information on associates, (d) TXFEFMNEEQATHMK
not adjusted for the percentage of ownership ERBERRBBREEEL
held by the Group is as follows: BB mAE :

31 December 2012

In RMB'000

ARET T BE

5,381,754
82,331

MhELE
HBEE

Peninsula Waitan
Shanghai Zhaozhi

31 December 2011

In RMB'000 Assets

ARBTT

BE

Other
liabilities

HtBE

3,400,266
72,670

Other
liabilities

HipBfE

—B2——-f+=ZA=t+—H

Shareholders’

loans and
equity Revenue
RREXK
R a5
1,981,488 395,206
9,661 -

BE
(202,542)
(103)

—2-——#+=-A=+-AH

Shareholders’

loans and
Profit/(loss)
wH/

Yz (E#8)

Revenue

Shanghai ZhongXin teRE 748,055 371,472 376,583 23,269 9,436
Peninsula Waitan Gy Ea= 5,377,692 3,193,662 2,184,030 377,706 (143,586)
Shanghai Zhaozhi Haeme 82,434 72,670 9,764 - (247)
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27. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY

Tianyuan Lifeng

27. HEEZEHERERS

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F

RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTT
702,556 735,135

Cost of investment
Share of post-acquisition losses

DIEWEBRER

758,476 758,476
(55,920) (23,341)

702,556 735,135

Tianyuan Lifengis 50.1% owned by the Group, and is mainly
engaged in property development in Haikou, Hainan Province, the

PRC.

Summary of financial information relating to the jointly controlled
entity, not adjusted for the percentage of ownership held by the

Group, is as follows:

31 December 2012

In RMB'000
AR¥TR

Tianyuan Lifeng RXEHNE

31 December 2011

In RMB'000
ARETT

Tianyuan Lifeng KiENE

RRF LR AEBEFS0.1%MHE - W =x
DRFEEMESOMHREMELRER -

T 258 KR E OB E
EHARBAREREREEDLLMAE -

—ZE-—-—H+=-A=+—H

Current Non-current

liabilities liabilities Income Expense

RBEE FRBER LON Fi%
288,812 1,437,468 32 65,059

—g——#+=A=+-8

Current  Non-current

liabilities liabilities Income Expense

nHAE FFRPEE L1ON R

157,419 1,243,838 44 6,697
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28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 28. FRRIRZEFFKRENERE
CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES BE
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) FTRRKRE

Company
RAT

2012 2011

—F-=F —F——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F R ARETT

FE LR - =R 4,118,431 4,080,695

Unlisted shares, at cost

Cumulative fair value of BT FAREERERED
share options granted to ZBEAREE
employees of subsidiaries
Cumulative fair value of BT FARIEEZREIIRMDH
restricted shares granted to ZEAREE
employees of subsidiaries 4,329
4,143,447 4,101,382
The Company’s major operating subsidiaries are as follows: RAGIMEZELBEFRAAWT
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
R GRS
ARl
Place and date of
Name of company incorporation  Direct Indirect Registered capital Principal activities
NGEL MR ERRAE B B dMER TEXH
%
SPG Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands, ~ 100% - USDT  Investment holding
2 March 2004 1% RABK
EERAFS
“ZZNF=AH
Delta Link Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, ~ 100% - USD100  Investment holding
6 May 2004 100%7 ®EERK
ERRLES
—ZEMERARA
Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 98.24% USD67,670,000  Property development,
LERBLE(8E)BRAA 25 August 1998 67,670,000%7C  salesandlease
M FHERE HEREE
—“WANENAZTLA
Shanghai SPG Property Service Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 9842% RMB5,000,000  Property management services
LERRNERBERAR 17 January 2001 ARH5,000,000 WEERRE
mE

“$T-F-A A
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28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 28. FRARREZEFSHRENER
CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES RE(E)
(Continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FRAEKRE(E)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
RAREEER
Bl

Place and date of
Name of company incorporation  Direct Indirect Registered capital Principal activities
DRER AMRUGHRESE B B afEs FEEH
% %

Shanghai SPG Hotel Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 9824% RMB405,500,000 Hotel operation,
RS EERRARAR 1 December 2006 ARH405,500,0007  property development,
HE - sales and lease
ZE2RFTZA-H BERE  FHERE -
HWERHEE
Shanghai Sipo Education Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 65.96% RMB70,000,000  Investment holding
("Sipo Education”) 9 October 2001 AK70,000,00070 #E2K
HERRHRERARLA(BEBHE]) G
22+ AR
Shanghai Sipo Polytechnic. the PRC, - 65.96% RMB5,000,000 College education
LERERIZR 15 April 2003 ARES,000,0007 FHHE
ok
ZZZ2=FMATRA
Shanghai Sipo Vocational Technical Training Centre the PRC, - 65.96% RMB200,000 Technical training and
LERERERMmE L 14 October 2003 ARH200,0007  technology consultancy
e - R=E PG
ZER=FTATMA
Shanghai Oriental Cambridge Property Development the PRC, - 100% RMB650,000,000 Property development,
Co,, Ltd, 26 September 2002 AR650,000,00070  salesand lease
BRI RREHELRARAR - FHERY BERES
ZRTENAZTRR
Shanghai Lishui Greenery Ecology Engineering the PRC, - 100% RMB10,000,000  Landscape construction project
Co, Ltd. 7 November 2003 AR%10,000000r EEEE
TEBKERL IRERAR mE
ZTE=E+-AtH
Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge Property Development the PRC, - 100% RMB280,000,000  Property development and sales
Co., Ltd. 24 September 2003 AR%280,000,000 EHEMZLHE
TERERRIERHEREERLA e -
ZEZ=EARZTMA
Huangshan SPG Property Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB120,000,000 Hotel development and
BLEARYBENELRARAR 7 January 2004 AE#120,000,0007T  operation
e - EERERLY
“2EME-A+H
Huangshan Hiddentigger Club Management Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB1,000,000 Property management services
BB REMERERAR 7 July 2009 ARH1,000,00070 FHEEERRE
e

ZZTNELALA
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28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES
(Continued)

28. FRARRZEFBHRENER
RE(HE)

“FEN\E-ARA

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FRARIKRE(E)
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
LN A
BAL
Place and date of
Name of company incorporation  Direct Indirect Registered capital Principal activities
REEH SMEYEERAN EE  BE HMER FEEEK
% %
Kunming SPG Land Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB142,500,000 Property development,
RRERENERBRAT 9 November 2006 AEH142,500,000  sales and lease
M FHERE HEREE
—ETNET-ANA
Kunming SPG Grand City Development Co., Ltd the PRC, - 100% USD40,000,000  Property development,
RRERAHEHERRARAR 15 June 2007 40,000,000 salesand lease
HE FHERE HEREE
ZZ3tFAATHA
Suzhou Runjian Property Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB550,000,000 Property development,
BIEREZERAT 28 September 2007 AR550,000,00070  sales and lease
GER FiERE HEREE
ZEREFNAZTI\H
Suzhou SPG Property Management Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB500,000 Hotel operations, property
BNEENERBERLE 5 March 2009 ARH500,00070  management services
GER BEESE  NEEBRY
“ZZNF=REA
Suzhou Runjian Property Management Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB500,000 Property management services
HFMBERNERBARAA 8 December 2009 ARH500,0007T MEERRE
ZZENETZANR
Wuxi Guosheng Property Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% HKD776,530,000 Property development,
BPEREEREERAT 2 November 2007 776,530,000 salesand lease
GER FiERE HEREE
“EEHET-AZH
Wuxi Shenglian Property Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% HKD805,000,000  Property development,
BEEBREERRARAA 2 November 2007 805,000,000 salesand lease
HE FHERE HEREE
ZE2RtE+-AZH
Hainan Jiangiao Property Corporation Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB115,000,000 Property development,
BEEREXERAR 4 January 2008 AK%115,000,000  salesand lease
M FHERE HEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 BA B AR B

28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES
(Continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

28. FRAARZEFEKRENER
RE(E)

(a) FARKE(H)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name of company

REEH

Hainan Jiangiao Property Management Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 98.42% RMB1,000,000 Property management services
BERENEERARAR 4 January 2008 ARH1,000,000T MEERRS
mE
“2Z/\F-ANA
Hubei Huazhong Constructing Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB100,000,000 Construction and decoration
B ETRERGEREMALT 21 May 2009 AR#100,000,0007T  services
SR BEREERE
ZEENFRAZT-A
Changshu SPG Land Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB200,000,000 Property development,
ERBEEANEERAT 12 July 2007 AR¥200,000,00070  salesand lease
GER FHERY HERES
ZZ2EFEATIH
Changshu SPG Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% RMB350,000,000  Property development,
EREMEEBEAT 24 October 2007 AE™350,000,0007  salesand lease
GER FHERY HERES
ZZTFTAZTMA
Shanxi SPG Land Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 100% USD20,000,000  Property development,
RSB EEER AR 27 August 2009 20,000,000%7c  salesand lease
e - FHERE HERME
ZEENFNAZTLA
Wuxi Xindu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. the PRC, - 60% RMB200,000,000 Property development,
("Wuxi Xindu") 29 January 2010 AE#200,000,0007c  salesand lease
ERTBRERZARAR ([ EHHH)) M FHERE HERME
“E-TE-A-ThA
Ningbo SPG Cicheng Property Development Co., Ltd the PRC, - 100% RMB230,000,000 Property development,
21 March 2011 sales and lease
ERRRENEHELRERAA e AR%230,000,0007T EHERS  HERES
Z2——§=R-+-H

Place and date of
incorporation

AEER Y 5K B 5

Company
ARAELER
Bal

Direct Indirect
EE BE
% %

Registered capital
EfEA

Principal activities

TRER

All these entities are controlled subsidiaries as defined under FEZEERBHY AN E3@OMATE
NZEHF AR REA T AGZAEH

BH* -

note 3(a)(i) and have been consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements.

173



174  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ~Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok BV 255 A B

28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES
(Continued)

(b) Controlled special purpose entities
The Group controls a special purpose entity which operates in
Hong Kong, particulars of which are as follows:

Special purpose entity

BHRENER

SPG Land Employee Benefit Trust (New Zealand)
(“the Trust")

SPG Land Employee Benefit Trust (New Zealand)
([ZEsED)

As the Trust is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing,
administrating and holding the shares of the Company for
the Share Award Scheme, the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the Trust and it can
derive benefits from the services of the employees through
their continued employment with the Group. The assets and
liabilities of the Trust are included in the Group's consolidated
balance and the shares of the Company held by the Trust are
presented as a deduction in equity as Shares held for Share
Award Scheme (note 40).

8. FRAIRZEFBHRENER

RE(HE)

(b) ZEHFBHRENER
AEEEZH —-HKERBEENTKE
MEEE  HEFBWT

Principal activities

FEEK

Purchases, administers and holds

the shares of the Company for the benefit

of eligible participants (note 40)
REBR2EENNREE
EERFEARRRS (MFE40)

AR Z IS EH) B AR BIRGD
REFEMEE  BERBBEARA
Bin - A AEEAEREZETH
WIEME LR - W r] FEBRHEX
NAEEMHEERGER G - %5
AMEERBEFARNEENGA S
# - BRELRBENARRARRGD 25
BRERIR - 1ERIRGN SRENE B AT
& (fEE40) ©
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29. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
ADVANCE DEPOSITS

RMB’000
AR®ETR

Receivables due from related parties: i U 8838 A 17018 -

— Subsidiaries — FRA
— Other related parties — HtBEEAT
(note 48(c)) (F3E48(c))

FEU S8 = T7 PR R AR 5K

Trade receivables due from third
parties

29. BWBRRX »
S#&E

Hi W RER A

Group
T&EH
2012

Company
PN
2011 2012
—T——%
RMB’000
ARBFT

RMB’000
ARET 7T

424,000 423,990

(PZREY 103,223 30 30

124,137 103,223

424,030 424,020

31,759 14,599

Advance payments to contractors  FEA H B i B 166,966 136,958 -
Advance deposits for acquisition of Y& -+ i (A #E K
land use rights EfftiEe 500,925 1,532,975 -
Non-trade receivables H i EUGRIAE 1,056,417 414,274 -
Tax prepayments SEECGE 350,631 237,407 -
Total A&t 2,230,835 2,439,436 424,030 424,020
The receivables due from related parties are unsecured, non-interest FEUEEATHRIEAEERR  REREAR

bearing and repayable on demand.

Non-trade receivable balances, deposits and advances to third
parties are expected to be settled or recovered within one year.

Tax prepayments mainly represent prepayment of business tax, land
appreciation tax and income tax during the pre-sale stage of certain
properties.

HEYRIRESR  REMEANE=ZTH
REBEHR —FRFELKRD -

EERFETERRAEE TYEMBEED
BEW - THMBRETMAEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A A 5 R M

29. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29. BUWARR - H W RIER A
ADVANCE DEPOSITS (Continued) SR AC D)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables at each balance sheet date EREFRNESEEBBERANERR TN
is as follows: T

Group
£33
2012 2011

—E——F —T——F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT
Within 90 days 90HR 31,559
Over 90 days and within 180 days HBiEI0HZE180H A 192
Over 180 days and within 365 days HBiB180H E365H K 8

31,759

30. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE 30. REAEEWRR

Group
rEE
Term Initial Cost 2012
FH Mg Z=B—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTIT AR¥BTR AREBTT
10 years 1,300,000 921,597 939,672

Long-term receivable & HA e R
Less: Long-term receivable due B —FARER

within 1 year R EA R WK (175,007) (125,486)
Long-term receivable due after —FR IR RAE
1year WK 746,590 814,186
The amount is repayable as follows: AT F HAYRER A SRIB A0 T

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—=E—=fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Within 1 year —FR 175,007 125,486
Over 1 year and within 2 years BR—FEMFA 113,237 113,103
Over 2 years and within 5 years BAMFERFNR 292,289 247,166
After 5 years BBAFIALE 341,064 453,917

921,597 939,672
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30. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Long-term receivable represents shareholders’ loan provided to
Tianyuan Lifeng. The amount is non-interest bearing and repayable
in 10 annual instalments of RMB 130,000,000 each, starting from
11 June 2012 as deferred. Interest income of RMB62,364,000 (note
13) was recognised in relation to the long-term receivable during

the year (2011: RMB nil).

31. RESTRICTED CASH

For property construction and

BRAZERERME

30. REAEEWF (&)
REREKFERHETFRRANEHRKREE
M ZEREARE  BEEAA-T—=
FEXNAT—BEDI0HIREEE  FHK
B4 %5 A R¥130,000,0007T © FRGE
B JE IR FRE R A B A A R #62,364,000
TL(HIEFE13) (= ——F : AREZIL) -

31. ZRHIBEE

Group
*EE
2012 2011

—E——F
RMB’000
ARBT T

T %
RMB’000
ARBT T

development 189,568 436,489
As pledge for interest-bearing loansand  {E&FT EE &

bank acceptance notes R R HR AR 642,700 861,763
Others Htb 429 9,215

832,697 1,307,467

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

An analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents is set out

below:

Cash at bank and cash in hand BITERERE

B RERS
(FF&E31)

Less: restricted cash (note 31)

32. AERBEEEEY
ReRRSSMDOBHIFTMT -

Group Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—%--F =—T—F =B-=F =—TF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARBTT AR%®Tn AREBT:T

1,649,533 2,952,493 161 39,799

GEricer s (1,307,467)

816,836 1,645,026

Cash at bank and cash in hand is denominated in:

RMB AR
usb ED
AUD BT
HKD YT

AT ERSEENRITERRAS

1,573,174 2,847,965

59,629 88,267 39,654
7 7 -
16,723 16,254 145

1,649,533 2,952,493
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32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

33. TAXPAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

(i) Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheets represents:

PRC income tax

rh [ 48 B

32. BERRESSEW(F|)
AR A R E S - R B A
FR WS 030 P o B BT ) T B AR

33. ENBE BELEBEEE
(BE)

(i) REEERAGERNAHBE
ig

2012 2011
—EB——F

—F——F
RMB’000
AREF T

RMB’000
ARBT R

Balance brought forward EEIEE 315,413 150,432
Provision for PRC enterprise income 4 AR B 1 £ P 15 55 B4 8

tax for the year (note 14(j)) (MEzE140G3)) 77,070 394,778
PRC income tax paid BRRBIFEH (108,225) (229,797)

Transfer to liabilities associated with

HEZRBEAREFED

(570)

assets classified as held for sale BEBWNAE
(note 41) (Bt3E41)
Balance carried forward it

PRC land appreciation tax
AR £t (B B

Balance brought forward IR N

Provision for PRC land appreciation
tax for the year (note 14(ii)) (P EE14¢G))

PRC land appreciation tax paid

FAP B IR E TR

B A B - i I E R
Transfer to liabilities associated with R F EERHE AR EEEMH

283,688 315,413

2012 2011
=F-=F —T——F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARBFT
893,821 729,499

137,687
(127,383)

228,890
(64,568)

((7A)]

903,454 893,821

assets classified as held for sale BEABNEE
(note 41) (BsE41)
Balance carried forward e e
Total A&t

1,187,142 1,209,234
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33. TAXPAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax assets recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated balance sheets and the movements during the
year ended 31 December 2012 were as follows:

3. EABE EEREEE

(BfE) (&)

(i) CHRRELHESE :
BEGABERBERRNBILENE
BERSRRBE-_T——&+-f
SH—AIEENEBNT :

Temporary

difference Deferred

on revenue land

recognition appreciation

and related tax and other

cost of sales accruals Tax losses
WEERAR IEIE £ i
BEHEE BEH

BRA K R H At

HRER FESTIEE BBEER &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®TR AR®T:R

At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE——F—H—H 62,880 205,657 18,602 287,139
Additions 1840 74,935 32,801 25,606 133,342
Realisation b=3i) (47,706) (11,094) (16,875) (75,675)
At 31 December 2011 RoE——F

+=—A=+—H 90,109 227,364 27,333 344,806
Additions 0 22,417 29,208 62,066 113,691
Realisation b=3i) (48,526) (35,437) (11,154) (95,117)
At 31 December 2012 RZZT——F

+=-—A=+—H 64,000 221,135 78,245 363,380
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33. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ 33. B BiE EEBREEE
(LIABILITIES) (Continued) (BfE)(E)
(i) Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued) (i) CEADELEHRBEE - (#)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses
of RMB930,168,000 (2011: RMB330,565,000) available to
offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of RMB312,980,000
(2011: RMB109,332,000) at the applicable income tax
rates of the respective subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of RMB617,188,000 (2011:
RMB221,233,000) due to the unpredictability of future
taxable profit streams of the individual subsidiaries concerned
as at 31 December 2012. The unrecognised tax losses for the
year ended 31 December 2012 will expire in the following
years ending 31 December:

2013 —E-=F
2014 —E-mE
2015 —T-E4
2016 —E-X

2017 —E—tF

R-T——F+-A=+—8 K&
) AT A SR K 8 R 2R F B0 R B A R 7S
B8 A A K% 930,168,000 0 ( =&
——% : AR#¥330,565,0007T) °
R-_FB—=—F+-_A=+—8 %
MG EBIZRERFARER G
MEBRNELEHRBEEARARE
312,980,0007C( =T ——4F : AR
109,332,0007T) - BT EEREER B
B E B A R KRR ERTEF]
hWR-ZT——F+-_A=+—RH¥*%
MEBRTEEEAR617,188,000
T(ZZ——4%F : AR#¥221,233,000
THRARLEHRIBEEE - REZE_Z
——F+ A=+ —HBLEFEHRX
BRBBEEESRUTHET A
—t+—HLEFEER:

2012
—E—_fF

2011
—T—F
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARBT

- 10,498

2,402 2,402
3,257 10,336
52,956 57,037
135,108 140,960

423,465 -

617,188 221,233
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33. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ 33. ENBIE EERBREE
(LIABILITIES) (Continued) (BE) (&)
(iii) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (iii) CEAELEHEBEBERE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the BEEGAEEEABRERNELERIE
consolidated balance sheets and the movements during the BESFSOMREE-_E——F+_-H
year ended 31 December 2012 were as follows: =+—BHIFENEENT -

Revaluation

of
investment Fair value
properties adjustments Total
REY = AREE
B W &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT ARET T
At 1 January 2011 R-ZZT—F—H—H 308,542 183,151 491,693
Additions 140 27,850 - 27,850
Realisation p=gis) (50,673) (56,547) (107,220)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+_8
=+—H 285,719 126,604 412,323
Additions 90 9,913 4,084 13,997
Realisation p=gic) (24,576) - (24,576)
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+—-8
=+—H 271,056 130,688 401,744
(iv) Net-off of deferred tax assets/deferred tax (iv) EEEERBEE, ELERE
liabilities &

2012 2011
—g-=% —F——F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETT

Deferred tax assets recognised ERRELEHIBEE 363,380 344,806
Net-off with deferred tax liabilities BRETR IR B G E (122,809) (133,739)

Deferred tax assets IRIEFTHE B 240,571 211,067

Deferred tax liabilities recognised CHRREHEBEAE 401,744 412,323
Net-off with deferred tax assets B FE R A A A A (122,809) (133,739)

Deferred tax liabilities REFIEBE 278,935 278,584
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34. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 34.

stEER

2012
—E—__fF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AR®ETT

Current 5=
Secured bank loans BEMBITER 879,451 267,275
Secured trust loans BB ETER 140,000 610,000
Unsecured loans HIERER 250,000 -
Current portion of non-current secured B FIRITREBFE KA
bank loans BNEAER > 1,342,739 700,340
Current portion of non-current secured BB REELERN RIS
trust loans 1,261,000 500,000
3,873,190 2,077,615
Non-current R
Secured bank loans HIRFRITER 2,823,561 3,614,030
Secured trust loans BERETER 1,511,000 1,561,000
Unsecured loans EIEIRE R = 200,000
Less: current portion of non-current W BERRITRAEFMBNEE D
secured bank loans (1,342,739) (700,340)

current portion of non-current ERBERBETERN
secured trust loans BNEREL 5

(1,261,000) (500,000)

1,730,822 4,174,690

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s secured loans were secured
by the following:

(i) the Group's properties and land use rights with a total carrying
amount of RMB7,407,097,000 (2011: RMB8,275,605,000)
(notes 19, 23, 24 and 25);

(i) pledged time deposits of RMB642,700,000 (2011:
RMB299,898,000) and other available-for-sale investment of
RMB99,000,000 (2011: RMB nil);

(iii)  charges over equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

R-B——F+-_A=+—0  K"&EEH
BFEBERA T SBEEARR

@)

(if)

(iii)

REBRELEARK7,407,097,000
TT(ZF——F + AR¥S,275,605,000
TC) B W2 R (s A AE (B EE19 -
23 24%25) :

BT 817 A R #642,700,000
T(ZF——%F : ARK¥299,898,000
T)REMAHEEREARE
99,000,0007L(=F——4%F : AR¥
=)

AEBETFRARMBRAESER -
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BEBH(EZR)ERAR —T—FFH

34. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Continued) 34. SFEER(E)

Certain secured loans were secured by properties and land use rights ETERBEFRUNESRESEMAEAR
of Wuxi Shengdong Property Development Co., Ltd., which has NN ER T EREERT > 228
been disposed by the end of 2012. Those secured loans were repaid ER-_E——FEHKLEE - ZSHEHE
in January 2013. Certain secured loans were secured by properties FER-_ZE—=F—AEE -BHTHEH
and land use rights of Tianyuan Lifeng, which is a jointly-controlled ERUREEERZEGHERRRFENY
entity of the Group. FE R AR -

The Group's non-current loans were repayable as follows: AEENRAEZTER AT RES -

2011
—g-=% —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETT

—FRA 2,603,739 1,200,340

Within 1 year

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BBE—FEWMFRA 780,000 3,057,350
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BBRRFERFA 660,822 639,590

Over 5 years BEAFNAE 290,000 477,750

4,334,561 5,375,030

The effective interest rate of the year ended 31 December 2012 was REBEE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
as follows: HERFEOT :

Bank loans il 6.63%

Trust loans ZrEER 13.40% 12.49%

The carrying amounts of current and non-current loans approximate RERRPEROEREERA L EEBD
their fair value.
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35. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ADVANCE 35. EJBRA - HENFIERTE
RECEIPTS WA

Group Company
REE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011

—g——-F —T—F =B =—T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®TRT ARETT

Payables due to related parties: JEA A A £ 3RIA ¢
Non-trade related: HAth AT RRIE -
— Dividends payable — ERRE
(note 48(c)) (Fff5E48(c)) - -
— Subsidiaries — FAHA] 589,677 415,625
— Other related parties — HEAL
(note 48(c)) (MH5E48(c)) 2,532,049
PARY[] 2,541,222 589,677 415,625
Trade payables FENBETX 2,083,819 2,776,785 -
Advance receipts from customers  FEUE 28 3,818,063 2,955,884 -
Other taxes payable H At R A I8 23,102 37,812 -
Dividends payable JETRR B 163 163 163
Unpaid land cost REA TR AR 912,221 890,081 -
Non-trade payables and accrued — E th B ZRIE AN
expenses TEIREH 348,896 310,483 39,056
Total At 7,207,334 9,512,430 628,896 462,471
The payables due to related parties are unsecured, non-interest ENEEATREAEER 22 RER
bearing and repayable on demand. ERFER -
The ageing analysis of trade payables at each balance sheet date is RN EEEBNRESITIT ¢
as follows:

Group

*EH
2012 2011
—®-=f —E——f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMETTT

Within 90 days 90HA 583,453 1,272,165
Over 90 days and within 180 days Hi@I0HE180H A 527,651 420,679
Over 180 days and within 365 days HBi®180HE365HK 566,961 583,922
Over 365 days and within 3 years @365 E3F RN 405,754 500,019

2,083,819 2,776,785
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36. LONG-TERM PAYABLE

Long-term payable
Less: Long-term payable due
within 1 year

RHE AR
o —FNEIES
KRR

. RGBSR

Group
rEE
Initial Cost 2012 2011

MK A —B——fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETIT ARTR ARKTT

58,453 43,067

(6,000)

Long-term payable due after
1 year

—FRIMHES
FE 55K

37,067

The amount is repayable as follows:

Within 1 year
Over 1 year and within 2 years
Over 2 years and within 5 years
After 5 years

—FR
BRA—FEMFER
HBEMFERLFA
HBEAFLAL

RATFEHEEOFANT :

6,000 6,000
5,682 5,682
15,296 15,296
16,089 19,019

43,067 45,997

Long-term payable represents construction cost payable to a
contractor. The amount is non-interest bearing and repayable in
15 annual instalments of RMB6,000,000 each, starting from 1

September 2008.

Due to subsidiaries

e F A RIFR

RHEMNRERN -2 ABENHRENK
Ko ZEFRERRE  RBEZZEZEN\FN
A—BESISHIZFEE SHEESR
A ARH¥6,000,0007T °

Company
NN
2012 2011
- —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTT

428,025 402,190

Long-term payable represents amounts due to certain subsidiaries.
The payable is interest bearing and repayable over one year but

within two years.

EEEARERGEFFRANNE « &
FEAFBHE  WARBB—FEME
POfEIE -
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37. SENIOR NOTES

On 8 April 2011, the Company issued 13.5% senior notes
due 2016 (the “Notes”) with an aggregated nominal value of
US$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,308,400,000)
at a value equal to 98.244% of the face value. The Notes are listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Notes
carry interest at the rate of 13.5% per annum, payable semi-
annually on 8 April and 8 October in arrears, and will mature on
8 April 2016, unless redeemed earlier. The net proceeds, after
deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to approximately
US$191,298,939 (equivalent to RMB1,251,477,657).

At any time on or after 8 April 2014, the Company may redeem
the Notes, in whole orin part, at a redemption price equal to
the percentage of principal amount set forth below plus accrued
and unpaid interest to (but not including) the redemption date if
redeemed during the twelve month period beginning on 8 April of
each of the years indicated below:

Period

B

2014 —E—pUE

2015 and there after —T-RFERUE

At any time prior to 8 April 2014, the Company may at its option
redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes plus the
applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date.

At any time prior to 8 April 2014, the Company may redeem up
to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes with
the proceeds from sales of common stock of the Company at a
redemption price of 113.5% of the principal amount of the Notes,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the
redemption date, provided that at least 65% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes originally issued remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place
within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

37. BREE

RZE——FWANA @ ARAIRERE
B98.244% N BEHITHR _ZE—RF 3
HA 48 [ € 200,000,000 € 7T (HER O A
R ¥ 1,308,400,000 7T ) B 1352 E % &
BORE]D  RERINEELERSAH L
e ZRIEFFRIZS5EHNE REFEN
ANBE+ANBEFFHRGTE - Wi
RZZ—R"EMAN\BEHE(RIEERR
FE ) o PR B 5 AT ARK FT 1S I8
SFEEH) 191,298,939 T (HENARKE
1,251,477,6577C) °

ARBAR-_F—MOFIHANBRERE
ﬁJﬁqF‘aEJ R %H‘FYFﬁ%C$§%E§n e #
BEE ZNEEETEFE)ERA SN
FEET AN F S (R T XAREFEEDA
NBRFRE+ @A AEE ) & o 2 5Bk

HEI -

Redemption

price

BEE

106.75%
103.375%

R-ZT—MFEMEAN\BRERER - AR
AR EBERESREEASEI100%MNED
B SNEBE(ETERE)ERAHNER
HERETmANME(ME) @ BEE2H
CERRCY EIGPES &

RABAIRZE—MFMA N\ A AT EA
B AEEARRAREBROMBRIEA @ 1%
ZREASEIBSRMELE  SNEE
(B E %) BE [ B B R FE &1 M A 5 F1LE (40
B) BEASRERSZIS%HEE - HR
EERER RN BEERAEELEREZ0H
RETHERNBEBER®E  RADETH
ERARBEEEZLES%INARER -
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BAERE(R)

R4 B 75 48 5% T &E 3(0) (i) B 8L 80 0 31 B
B AR ENEDED BN S
BAMRERE BNEAA BEAEA
FESBTA -

37. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

The redemption options held by the Company are separately

37.

accounted for at fair value at the initial recognition date and each
reporting date as derivative financial instruments in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3(c)(iii) to the financial
statements.

The movements of different components of senior notes are set out BEZEB RIS HEHEIT -

below:

Call option
of the
Company
AR R REERE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Liability
component Total
&st
RMB’000
AR¥T T

&EHD
RMB’000

ARBTT

Senior Notes issued on 8 April 2011 AT ——4F0 A )\ HE1TH

BhREE 1,274,320 (22,842) 1,251,478
Interests and issue cost amortised FABEERN B RETHAR
during the year 129,519 - 129,519
Interest paid during the year FARABAFE (85,791) - (85,791)
Exchange gain R (47,120) - (47,120)
Change in fair value NREEZ - 22,842 22,842
As at 31 December 2011 R-_ZE—F+-_A=+—H 1,270,928 - 1,270,928
Interests and issue cost amortised FREEEN IR
during the year BEITRC N 181,072 - 181,072
Interests paid during the year FAERFE (176,145) - (176,145)
Exchange gain PE & e (3,199) - (3,199)
Change in fair value (note 13) AR BEZEH(HFE13) - - -
As at 31 December 2012 R_E——F+_-_A=+—H 1,272,656 - 1,272,656
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37. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

Represented as

M T 3EE AR

— Other payables — accrued interests — Hb B IE —
— Senior notes — BERE

FESTFLE

37. BREERE(E)
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—=E—_fF
+=A=+—H
RMB’000
AR®T

39,056
1,233,600

=+—H
RMB’000
ARBETT

1,231,418

— Total — A%t

1,272,656 1,270,928

Liability component of the Notes represents the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the rate of
interest determined by the market instruments of comparable credit
status taken into account the business risk and financial risk of the
Company. The effective interest rate of the liability component is
14.257% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, the liability component of the Notes was
repayable as follows:

MFEREBREFA

After two years but within five years

EENBEDD RIRFIEFIRELE R K
Beme  MEEERARANEBFRR
kBB ERE - RBEERIBENTS
THET #BHEZZFT—=—F+=-A=1+—
HIEFE  BEIFIONEBRFINXR
14.257% °

R-ZZE——F+-A=+—H ZEKNEAE
RUATFHEER

o
ol
I
5
\\\\
D

2012
—E—__F
RMB’000
AR®T T

1,233,600

RMB'000
ARETT
1,231,418
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38.

39.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

IESER:

Interest rate swaps

38.

PTEERMIA

2012
—E—_F
RMB’000
ARETT

890

2011
—ET——%F

RMB’000
ARBT T

During the year ended 31 December 2012, interest rate swaps,
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, have been entered into to
achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure. At 31
December 2012, the Group had interest rate swaps with a notional
contract amount of HKD400,000,000 (2011: HKD400,000,000) to
fix the interest rate of certain bank borrowings so as to reduce the
impact of interest rate fluctuation. The swaps mature over the next
2.5 years, matching the maturity of the related loans and have fixed
swap rates ranging from 0.79% t0 0.995%.

The fair value of interest rate swap is determined by discounting
the future cash flows of the contracts at the current market interest
rates. The changes in the fair value during the year resulted in a fair
value gain of RMB852,000 (2011: loss of RMB2,367,000) (note
13), which has been recorded as “Fair value changes on financial
derivatives” in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2012.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
municipal and provincial government authorities for its employees.
The Group is required to make contributions to the retirement plans
at rates ranging from 20% to 22% of the salaries, wages, bonuses
and certain allowances of the employees. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to retired employees.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of pension
benefits associated with those schemes and other post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.

39.

BHE-_Z——#+-_A=1+—BILFEH
H o AARBRILUEBLINENF X
B UESUEEMNETE RZHF ERKA
A -R-ZZE—-—F+-_A=+—8 &&
B =45 Higy 45 5% & 49 € %843 400,000,000
L (=ZZ——4%F : 400,000,000/ L)
A TRITEENE - DUREF KB
IR E o BEI R R2 5FENEIE - HE
AHEBEERMEE - BERHHENT
0.79%%0.995% °

FIRBHEN A A BETYIZE AT B R
RENWNKKRRESREETE - FANAR
BEZEHEH LR EEWEARES52,000
T(ZE——F : BB AR2,367,0007T)
(FfF5E13) EREZ=Z——F+=A
=+ —HIEFEMNBEAGAIITESRT
BEMQREEZE]—E-

EBERKER

REBEFBREARE ASELHEESH
% {8 T S & AR R BB P9 R SZ A SRE fi K
BARENEE - AREAREENT S
W - FEAL R E TIRREH20% £22% MR
REH &I - BEBASHFIERRERIK
BEXNE2EHEKE -

B bt FE MO AEBETEEME R
% F T Bl R E AR KR AR A B IR R & 5K
Bff-
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 40. R4S

Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 3 December 2010. The purpose of the Share Award
Scheme is to recognise and reward the contribution of the
executives and employees (whether serving full-time or part-time)
and directors of the Group to the growth and development of the
Group through an award of the shares of the Company. Pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme, the remuneration committee (the
“Committee”) shall oversee the operation of the Share Award
Scheme whereas a trustee shall be entrusted with the administration
of the Share Award Scheme. The Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and remain in force for a term of 10 years commencing from the

adoption date.

The Committee may, during the period of the Share Award
Scheme and at its absolute discretion, make awards to any eligible
participant and any number of eligible participants. The eligibility
of any eligible participant for an award shall be determined by the
Committee from time to time on the basis of his/her contribution to
the growth and development of the Group.

On 1 April 2012, the Board of Directors approved the details of the
Share Award Plan specifying the eligible employees and vesting
period. The key information of the plan is summarised as below:

Eligible participants: (a)  Vice Director and above;
(b)  Senior Manager and below with
excellent performance

Vesting Period: 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2015 (3 years)

Main vesting condition: The participants remain employed in
the Group during the vesting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group granted
21,911,000 shares of the Company of which 5,600,000 shares were
granted to two directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, one director and certain
employees resigned from the Group and 4,682,000 granted shares
were forfeited.

R0 R =&
ARBR-_FE-FF+_A=ARHK—A
Betn 22 Rhat &1 ([ B tn B2 At 81 )) - i 88
B EMENEBBRTARAMRND -
BERREASBENTIEAR BB (TWH
ERERB) NEERTEENIERNER
FrEH R BB - ARIBA (0 S2EYET &) - Hr A
ZzEg(IZZ8e ) BEEBRN ZRBE
EHEE  WAREXFEAERRN KR
st - B SRENE B B R B ELE S R
BRAF -

ERih ZEHEIREAN - ZZES 2%
HigmERNEERSEERENBENS
BERS2HERTHRE - SERENEEDN
SHEENER  ARZBERRZSEE
RAEBERIEREERMMEHNER M
REEE °

BEeN T _FNA—BHERNE
BETEMEE  HPRIRTAEREER
EREH - ZATEIM AR ER ST

BERSHEE (o) BESIAL:
(b) RI|ELHSREIER

AT
BB —E-—-FMA—HZE
T-hAF=-A=1+—H
(=%F)
EEKRYE 2HER ﬁ%W%F*E
PAVIN S

BE—_E——H+-A=+—8H1=%FE -
AEFEEE 21,911,000 A FREH - H
75,600,000 M ERFARAMEE
$o

HEeE—2——F+_A=+—AItFE
—REBEFERETEEBRTAESE 2B -
Friz /94,682,000 i% 17 B #0084 »
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Share award scheme (Continued)
Movements in the number of shares held for the Share Award

Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

40. BB XAF(4E)
RSB a8l (4])
BE-Z——F+-_A=+—RBILEER

Shares

held for

the Share
Award Scheme Awarded shares

PR 43 32 b
=T BRI 4 52 & IR 17
(thousand) (thousand)
(FK&) (FRR)
Outstanding as of 1 January 2012 A—E——F—A—BHATE 20,584 -
Purchased (note 42(b)) BEEE (H5H42(b)) 11,504 -
Granted () [EE:3:10) (21,911) 21,911
Forfeited 28U 4,682 (4,682)
Outstanding as of 31 December 2012 RoTE——&FE+=-A=+—HHEKXTE 14,859 17,229

(i)  The weighted average fair value of the awarded shares was
calculated based on the market prices of the Company’s
ordinary shares at the respective grant dates.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, an expense of RMB5.5
million (2011: nil) in relation to share-based payments is charged to
administrative expenses in profit or loss.

(i) EEROBINEFHRREETIIRR
ARAEBENER L AR E

s

BE-T—F+-A=+—HLEFE"
ERBEEMITREARKRN MRS
AR¥E5,500,0000( =& ——4F : &) -
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41. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED ASHELD FOR 41. A ESENLHEAR

SALE

On 27 September 2012, the Group signed a letter of intent with
Wuxi Taihu Xincheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., (“Taihu
Xincheng”), the minority interest in Wuxi Xindu, in respect of the
proposed disposal of 60% equity interests in Wuxi Xindu held by the
Group to Taihu Xincheng. Upon completion of the deal, Wuxi Xindu
shall cease to be a subsidiary of the Group. The finalised equity
transfer agreement was signed by both parties on 4 January 2013.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal group as at
31 December 2012, which have been presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment (note 19)

MRZE——FNA-++H KEFEEE
HFTEE L B A T AR
ERREEEAGR AR ([ AMFR]) st
FHE AL IR ES A A 60% R
FRBTAEBEME - RRHTHIE
EHFBETHAAERN T AT - &L
RiEEEHBZN T —=F— AWBKIT
HNEFEE -

HEAR=—_ZE—=—F+=-A=+—80H
FELEERABENERGEEEREBER
ROME - BT

31 December

2012

RMB'000
AR® TR

(PF5E19) (:Y]

Properties under development (note 24) EREAYE(M1E24) 3,928,276
Trade, other receivables and advanced deposits FEURBR IR - H A EUGRIE RTE( SRS 49,824
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 100,000
Cash at bank and cash in hand RITFHR KRB E 114,834
Total assets classified as held for sale BREARIERENEERS 4,193,626
Interest bearing loans SFEREH (90,000)
Trade and other payables 1 BR R K L At A< R IE (3,097,337)
Tax payable (note 33) JEAS B TE (FI5E33) (1,241)
Total liabilities associated with assets classified HEBARESENEEEBAN

as held for sale BERE (3,188,578)

As at 31 December 2012, properties under development within the
disposal group amounting to RMB2,904,081,000 (2011: nil) were
pledged as collateral for borrowings of Taihu Xincheng.

R-TE——F+_-_A=+—H H&E4A7
A ARK2904,081,000L( = F
——F SN BEEPYETR AN
BEERAERR -
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42. SHARE CAPITAL 42, BB
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) ZERBEITRAX

At 31 December 2012 and 2011
RZB——FRZT—F

+t=—A=+—H
The Group and the Company
REERARE
No. of shares Amount
& £ B &5
(thousand) HKD'000
(FK&%) FAT
Authorised: VERE ¢
Ordinary shares of HKDO. 1 each FREEC. 1B T T @A 10,000,000 1,000,000
2012 2011
—®B-CF —T——F
No. of shares No. of shares
of nominal of nominal
value of Nominal value of Nominal
HKDO.1each value of shares HKDO.1 each value of shares
BREE.1ET FREE BT
HRAEE RAEE HIR (2B R EE
(thousand) RMB’000 (thousand) RMB'000
(F&) AR®T T (FA) ARETT
Issued and fully paid BEETRER 1,051,128 106,591 1,051,128 106,591
(b) Shares held for share award scheme (b) MR 3BT EIFTisR 40
During the year, the Share Award Scheme (note 40) FA - RHREEFEI (M FF40) B
acquired 11,504,000 shares (2011: 20,584,000 shares) of BEARMISER  WETAQA
the Company through purchases on the open market. The 11,504,000 g & ( =& — — & -
total amount paid to acquire the shares during the year was 20,584,0000% i 7 ) o & AW B AR 17
RMB 13,596,000 (2011:RMB31,718,000). BT~ SR 48 %8 / A R ¥ 13,596,000

T(ZF——%: AR#¥31,718,000
L) °
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43. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 43. RIDBRER#E
(a) The Company (a) &AF

(b)

Capital reserves (undistributable)
BARE (FT28)
Retained
Capital -employee profits/
Share redemption Contributed share-based (accumulated
premium reserve surplus  compensation losses) Total

B4RE -EERR  REER/
RitEE fifs  HAEK M (ZER) GH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETz ARETn ARETn
(note (b))  (note(c) (note(i)) (noted0)
(b)) (W) (WaEG)  (Wt40)

At1 January 2011 W-8--F-F-B 2,069,086 131 308439 45539 152888 2,577,183
Equity-settled share-based transactions RELENRAZARS - - - 1,126 - 1,126
Transfer from reserves BREHE - - - (46,665) 46,665 -
Divicends declared to equity holders ERRESEATRRE - - - - (68390)  (68,390)
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (147388)  (147388)
At31December 2011 R-B--F+-B=t-0 2,069,086 1231 308,439 - (16,225 2,362,531
Equity-settled share-based transactions REEENRATARS - - - 5,472 - 5472
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (19747 (197470)
At31December 2012 R-E-ZF+ZR=1-H 2,069,086 1,231 308,439 5472 (2137000 2,170,526
Note (i):  The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by MizEG) : FRNEEFRARIRMD 2458 %4
the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over nominal value ERBARRNRNEMBRFEITIA
of the shares issued by the Company in exchange under RWZERDEE EZEER
the Reorganisation was transferred to the contributed EARRRMEREOEARR S
surplus account in the Company’s financial statements. BR o
Share premium (b) BHEE
The application of the share premium account is governed R EERNBAXHSHEARE
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the e - REMERSRARNE(ZE
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2007 Revision), the ZHFEFR)  RARAAKRGEER
funds in the share premium account of the Company are MESAI DR FARRIME - HEEE
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided BEEORKBREERE  NARWMESR
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is BE BB B EEBROIIEER

proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
the business.
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43. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(Continued)

(9)

(d)

(e)

()

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the shares repurchased which has been paid out of the
Company’s distributable reserves.

Merger reserves

The merger reserves represent the difference between the
Company's share of the nominal value of the paid-up capital
of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
ordinary shares issued by the Company.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property reclassified
from owner-occupied to investment properties. For such
reclassifications, the cumulative increase in the fair value of
the property at the date of reclassification in excess of any
previous impairment losses is included in the revaluation

reserve.

PRC statutory reserves

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company'’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves
consist of:

(i) General reserve fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the general reserve
fund were made in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund
can be used to cover previous years' losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion to equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

43. R4 E R % (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EAXRE
ARHE R DT AR IREE
BR 2 BERAEE -

B OHEE
AORERIEA D R R E T A A
BRI AE ERAR R RITH LB
BEENER -

Efhf#E
BENREESHOBRARENMENS
AMEER - BRFEFHVEME -
MERIAREBEREH BB HRNRG
giEBAB R ERIENEES AR
hf# -

FEAE
BRI B R E D EAE AR
75 B e BB KR ) SR AR R B 7 o
B2 FARNERMAIE
7 WEEBEEGIE - KEHE
ECK

(i) ZEEBRBIEE
mRE GBS REEEAERBRA
BEDRBEARRFRANE
EAAETT  YEREEES
HEAE

HREBORRME @ EERHK
A AR LFEER
(mA) - RARBRESA AR
B B 15 B b 19 5 R R AR AR - HE
RBRESTIFTINEMER
#925% ©
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43. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

()

PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

(ii) Enterprise expansion fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the enterprise expansion fund
can be used for business development purposes and for
working capital purpose. This fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation. Transfers to this fund must
be made before distribution of dividends to the equity
holders.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(b)ii).

Distributable reserve

As at 31 December 2012 the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was RMB2,165,054,000(2011:
RMB2,362,531,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objective in managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurate with the level of risks and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted equity
ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as total
debt (including interest-bearing loans, senior notes, long-
term payable, trade, other payables and advance receipts)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

(f)

(9)

(h)

0]

43. R nE R % (&)

FEDEE R ()

(i) TERRES
MRBENERECERRE
SNHREADAFRAANER
MAETT  WEEABEGHL
i

REBORARME @ bEER
A REXHERREEER
T RIBRIN ZESTAN
& ARREBRNEREZE
S A AREREAD RS

BE 5 18

P R BRI A FREIRINEEH
MBREAMELWINEZR - LA
YRR B3 (b)) AT B R & 5T IR R
FRIE o

A 2k
RZFE——ZF+=ZA=+—H A5
RFPARFBRENEFESBEAAR
#2,165,054,000 (=T ——4F : A
[R#2,362,531,0007T) °

EXEE
AREEREAZEREBBENRER
SEENEERBEFBECEEELR
B RmE R R R IEY R E
A M AR T TE (8 A R & 15 & FE R AN 20 Rl
B FEABRRAIED®R R AEMH
AR E SR -

RIBITEREN  ARELUFABEER
HEERL R EREEERARENE
o Bt ARBREFEBR/BE
H(BRABENR BEREE EHY
FEARTAR - FERTRARR - H MR FRIE K&
TBWEIR) IR E £ 2 BURBE R &
ReMReEBYRZRFRE - &
HEEABERE ZIE MO BER
EEZEIRRE
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43. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(Continued)

()

Capital management (Continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio as at 31 December 2012
was 289% (2011: 287%). There were no changes in the
Group's approach to capital management during the year.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

44. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has issued the following

guarantees:

(a)

(b)

(0)

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for certain
purchasers of property units and provided financial guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. The
outstanding guarantees amounted to RMB1,402,427,000
as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB1,173,608,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of
the real estate ownership certificate which will generally be
available within six months after the buyer takes possession
of the relevant properties; and (ii) the satisfaction of the
mortgaged loan by the buyer of the properties.

The Group has pledged its own properties under development
as collateral for borrowings of Taihu Xincheng. The maximum
liability of the Group at the balance sheet date under such
guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of the loans of
RMB1,800,000,000 (2011: nil).

The Group has also pledged its own properties under
development as collateral for borrowings of Wuxi Guolian
Development (Group) Co., Ltd (“Guolian”). The maximum
liability of the Group at the balance sheet date under such
guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of the loans of
RMB 135,000,000 (2011: RMB135,000,000).

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair values of the

financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial

recognition and the directors consider the possibility of default by

the parties involved to be remote. Accordingly, no value has been

recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2012.

43. R4 E R % (&)

0]

EAXREE(HE)
W-oZE——&E+—-A=+—H %8
BEKHBER L T R289% (=F
——fF 1 287%) 0 FEN  AEE T E
AERTRW M

AR B HNED SR INH) B AR E P
PR

44. BIIEER
REAEBERD  AEEDHHATER

(a)

(b)

(@]

REBED BB WEBLMAE TIRM
RIBER  THZEETNERET
REHEER - RZE——F+=A
—+—H EEENERAAREK
1,402,427,0007L(=ZF——F : AR
#1,173,608,0007T) ° s F RN IA
TEREHEL L - (VELEMERA
BEE(—REENEBEANER
NEARNBEL)E  R>INVWEEFE
BIZIBERE -

AEBECHREGENERPMEE
RNHHREBEENERR - REES
BEXRA  AEERZFHLMERE
THESETAERNREESEA
R #1,800,000,0007C(— & ——4F :
) o

REERCEFEAENERTYE
EREGTEEERE(SE)BRAA
([EEE DEERNERR - REEBRE
A AEERZEEHMERET
HEmAETAERNAEESEAR
#135,000,0007T( =T ——%F : AR
#135,000,0007T) °

RRREZRR  AEBEMBEREHRN
BERERFENRIABERE MEFRAR
BRI ENOBEEM - At A&
RZB-——H+-A=+—HWEEER
RPEREAEE -
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 45. €T A

The Group conducts its operations in the PRC and accordingly is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These include
risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and
legal environment, influence of national authorities over pricing

regulation and competition in the industry.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:

o credit risk
o liquidity risk
o market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and

equity price risk)

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each
of the above risks, and the Group's objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group's risk management framework. Management
establishes policies to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set up appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group’s activities. Through training and management standards
and procedures, management aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

(a) Creditrisk
Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Group's trade and other receivables and investments.

The Group’s management has a credit policy in place and
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

REEEPREEER HAXKERR
MERRRTZE HEPEEBUR 8HR
ERRE  BEREBERERESNNTE
RATERFERR

FEEERNERIAEARUTRER

o FERR
o mBMERR

o WHERAR(BEMNERR  SE¥ER
Kz ERER)

AWE 2N EREAEE Y R Ll £BEME
@ AREWER  BERREREE MG
EEREBEEFR o

EEEREEZUINEBASEENAR
EHERE BEERYBRERTHAM
DMASEmENRRE  AREFEENE
i PR 1) 40422 151 45 e DA BE 4R el e 2 5 FE TR 6
HERN - AREEBERRZGAEHET
EHNRRTIGRENAEBEELTHH
i EEBREHBIMEERERE
F BEEYALCEERERMERZSIR
B EESRETHMEREABB SN
ABRET -

(a) FERME
MEeBMIT AP RNERSE T X
BITERIE TR E AL B EKE
BIEL - BAGEERER - EEER
F R B AN AR B Y UK AR R N A
WRIE A R IR E -

AEBEREDHIBEEEERER
WA EEREE R -
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade, other
receivables and advance deposits. In respect of trade and
other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed
on each new customer. The Group’s review includes external
ratings, when available, and in some cases bank references.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s liquidity to make
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Customers are generally required to
transact with the Group on a prepayment basis. The Group
generally offers no credit terms to customers and does not
usually obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
influences on credit risk, but to a lesser extent. At the balance
sheet date, the Group had a certain concentration of credit
at 22% (2011: 63%) of the total trade, other receivables and
advance deposits arising from the Group’s deposits for land
acquisition. These deposits will be transferred to the cost of
properties under development upon the Group obtaining the
relevant land use rights.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including derivative
financial instruments, in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in note 44, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the
balance sheet date is disclosed in note 44.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, other receivables
and advance deposits are set out in note 29.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are placed
with a group of banks and financial institutions which
management considers have good credit ratings. Investments
are normally only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised
stock exchange and management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

45. TR T A (&)
(a) 1néﬂff“(,,.a)

ZISE@E’MD,\ B B R A EYR
- E A UK IﬁbA&i‘EﬂﬂTz/f °
EAF%EHAZEE AR E IR - AEE
eHEEHEFPERE fﬂc.,\ufr
1E c REBMEHNBEIMTR(E
AR BTERT2RIET - %
SHEEPREPL N B HFIEN R
PESRBERONES  TEER
FREEMREPEREMBRBERE
ZER o REBE-REREFELRE
B2 ZRELIENRK o REB KT
EREFPRHEEMS - —KRME - &
SEAZREFPHEMam

AEENEERREEXSEEHOE
EBERAEE BERFEBTERAR
WENEREEERRIETZE |
BER/) REEBEXRA  ~5E
Y9 R U AR 5R - B FE USRI A RO
SERETIHNESEENEN RS
BEMNEEERER2% (2T ——
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SEETHERAE EEEERERY
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BZENBREROSSEERBRIEE
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

45. €T A (&)
(b) FENER B

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet of the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

mEtRR AAEEED YA EEE
TEMBEHHNRR - AEEOKRE
RERERERDESHTERETE
RROWER  BREBERORS
EERCRTESEANCITORE
BE - AERNASEEHRRESN

TRAMNEEBAEEITESR
BREBETAMNRENTMIER - IR
BERIOARMRAREARE (BREEH
MRy (8T ) AE R E R A EG
EOMBMAR) RAREE R EN
RO RF BHRERED

31 December 2012

“Z-“E+ZA=1-H

Trade, other payables and
advance receipts excluding

and other taxes payable

HERTER

Unsecured interest-bearing loans &5 15 5 &3

R - EENTER
BYGEETRE
advance receipts from customers  FEEFFER

Carrying

amount

HafE
RMB'000

ARBTR

3,366,169
250,000

Secured interest-bearing loans 5T 8 &3 5,354,012
Senior notes BrZR 1,233,600
Long-term payable REEAT 43,067
10,246,848
Financial quaranteesissued:  FFEHAVBHIS (R -
Maximum amount quaranteed ~ S5 ERAE
(note 44) (istad)

Undiscounted

contractual
cash flow

ABRETH

Exa0
RMB'000
AR®T R

(3,366,169)
(262,370)
(5,635,531)
(1,980912)
(60,000)

(11,304,982)

(3,337,427)

Within 1
yearoron
demand
—ER3
&ER
RMB'000
ARBTT

(2,900,415)
(262,370)
(3,654,740)
(169,709)
(6,000)

(6,993,234)

(3,337,427)

Within 2
years but
over 1 year
WERE
—FH)E
RMB'000
ARBTT

(465,754)

(890442)
(169,709)
(6,000)

(1,531,905)

Within 5
years but
over 2 years
REmfE
WERL
RMB'000
ARBTT

(768,104)
(1,641,494)
(18,000)

(2.427,59)

Over5
years

BEAL
RMB'000
AR®TR

(322,245)

(30,000)

(352,245)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. €T A (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RENMERPE(E)

Undiscounted Within 1 Within 2 Within 5

Camying contractual year oron years but years but QOver 5

31 December 2011 amount cash flow demand over 1 year Over 2 years years

RERETA —5Rg MERE RERE
I RAfE ES It mEN L RERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Trade, other payables and ERERR - EMERZE
advance receipts excluding BIHEETRE
advance receipts from customers EWEFZIER

and other taxes payable HiERTE 6,518,734 (6,518,734) (6,018,715) (500,019) - -
Unsecured interest-bearing loans - E4 75t 8 &71 200,000 (233,370) (20,055) (213319) - -
Secured interest-bearingloans B S ER 6052305  (6715039)  (2852461)  (2,482,508) (797,543) (582,527)
Senior notes BAEE 1231418 (1,985,765) (170,124) (170,124)  (1,645,517) -
Long-term payable REEAR 45,997 (66,000) (6,000) (6,000 (18,000) (36,000)

14,048454  (15,518,908) (9,067,355) (3,371,966) (2,461,060) (618,527)

Financial quarantees issued: ~ FREHEBITS R
Maximum amount quaranteed ~ SIS ER4AE

(note 44) (FitzEa4) - (1173608)  (1,173,608) - - -
(c) Interest rate risk (o) M=EAM

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEENFNERBREIEREFTEE
bearing loans, interest rate swaps, cash and cash equivalents o MERE - BeRBEeFEMR
and restricted cash. HBRFEE -

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash comprise ReERBeFEVMERZRHRESEE
mainly cash at bank, with an interest rate of 0.35% per BRBOTHER  RZT—Z—F+=A
annum as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 0.50% per annum). —+—BESFFEARIIE(ZET
Pledged bank deposits and time deposits maturing after three —— & §HF050F) - BEMERT
months are not held for speculative purposes but are placed TRk =R EEIHMNFEHEFERITIE
to satisfy conditions for borrowing facilities granted to the BEREmEE  Mas T TE8ER1TH
Group and for higher yield returns than cash at bank. AEERTEERENKRGE  URA

TRELBTERRSHEHE -

The Group's variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk AEBEMAIENEREEAIREEE)
of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. The BYMESRELHEAK - SFEEK
interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-bearing MELEZENFIRMNEZHRFER

loans and senior notes are disclosed in notes 34 and 37. MiFE34 K37 °
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. £ELT A (&)
() Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) A== ps(E)
The Group manages the net exposure to interest rate risks REBERBES T TN EEREEIUE
by maintaining sufficient lines of credit to obtain acceptable EEXNAERAESKENBBEE
lending costs and by monitoring the exposure to such risks BE o 2y 5 [ e AR TR R SROF @B o 7E
on anongoing basis. When appropriate and at times of HE R LM R REBASORE) - AT LA
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps may FRA RS AEE SRR RE
be used to assist in the Group’s management of interest rate fg o
exposure.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FRBER
The following table details the interest rate profile of TEHMNEERREFBWE
the Group's interest-bearing borrowings at the balance BEEEFZRER :
sheet date:

2012
—E-—C—F

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
BHRA=
% RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥EFT

Fixed rate borrowings EERZREE
Secured interest-bearing HiEM B ER

loans 13.85% 2,007,979 12.98% 2,131,000
Unsecured interest- EIRATEER

bearing loans 10.50% 250,000 10.00% 200,000
Senior notes BREE 14.257% 1,233,600 14.257% 1,231,418

3,491,579 3,562,418

Variable rate MEREEE

borrowings
Secured interest-bearing HiEM B ER

loans 3,346,033 6.94% 3,921,305

Total borrowings {EE®E 6,837,612 7,483,723

Fixed rate borrowings as  ElE # R {EE
apercentageof total  {EEE4E4E

borrowings Bt 47%
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45, LRI T H (&)
(c) Interestrate risk (Continued) (c) FIREE(E)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDH
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial REFW M ARD AR EET
EREREENEERNES/M
BERABE Bt R&®REA
BN ESB T EL BB -

assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

REBRATSERNET ARA
) =R 2 &) 100 {E £ 25 1 0~
(RP)EZEEEE - @8R
&R - A BERME M
FHRR(LEZIINEER)REF
T —ET——FHNHITIZMA
FEAEETT -

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates applicable
to variable rate instruments at the reporting date would
have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basisasin 2011.

Profit or (loss) Equity
AR (&58) Rz
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp

increase decrease increase decrease

Em100EEE FHO100EESY  EM100EEE HA100EEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT

31 December 2012 —E-—F
+=A=+-8
Variable rate instruments 7% I|%= T & (25,095) 25,095 (25,095) 25,095
31 December 2011 —E-—-F
+=A=+-8
Variable rate instruments AJ&F|& T A (29,410) 29,410 (29,410) 29,410

(d) E¥WRER
ARBRABBABBINE - Y
RARBHINER HAEBFEAAR

(d) Currency risk
Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take

place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China and
are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through borrowings and senior notes that are denominated
inacurrency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies in which
these transactions primarily are denominated are Hong Kong
Dollars (HKD) and United States Dollars (USD).

RITHHMEREETINER B
BETT - INERZRANER TR E
ARBITAHHMOE X (E2RHEKE

E) e

REBASZINERR - FTEBBIAE
B EE AN B (BRI’
BB FAENEERELARE - %%
RSEBHENEEREBTRET
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

45.

I A(&)
(d) E¥EkR(E)

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that the net
exposures to this risk is kept to an acceptable level by buying
or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. Management does not enter
into currency hedging transactions since it considers that
the cost of such instruments outweighs the potential risk of
exchange rate fluctuations.

0]

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity based on notional amounts.

BRANINETENEREERAE
AEEBBUERFNUREERTEEIN
% REREFRBRREE R EXHIK
o ABORERATE - BEEELE
ETEBHIR S RAREEER
RULE T ANKASRE R ZEHE
ERE -

() FEENE¥ER
TERFALAEEREERES
REERRELERENERE
WEEB I EETENE
EXBENEBRR -

31 December 2012

Trade, other receivables and
advance deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Senior notes

Financial derivatives

Trade, other payables and
advance receipts

Interest-bearing borrowings

FEYBR R - EL U IR )2
HEftEe
RERREEEY
ZRERE

BRARE

TEEMT A
FEATRRTR  E ML FRIB K
TEU IR

FHEEE

—E--f+=ZRA=+—H

usb
E
'000
Fr Fr

BT

530 7,131
20,096 9,487
529 -
- (196,261)
(1,096) -

(2,624)
(312,871)

(6,220)
(66,100)

Overall exposure

BEE

(295,436) (251,963)

31 December 2011

—g——F+-A=+-8

Trade, other receivables and

FEUWBR TR - E b URIA K

advance deposits TafTiE® 696 8,300
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 8,683 14,009
Restricted cash ZREIBE 11,367 -
Senior notes BEER - (195,435)
Financial derivatives PTHESRMIA (2,149) -
Trade, other payables and FERTERER - HAb A RE R

advance receipts TE U R IE (3,975) (6,277)
Interest-bearing borrowings fEEE (500,000) (39,100)
Overall exposure EEE (485,378) (218,503)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

45. € RTHE (&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EBR(E)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) FEENEERE(E)

(ii)

The following significant exchange rates applied during
the year:

Average rates
FYESR
2012 2011

-
0.8308
6.4618

Sensitivity analysis (ii)

The following table indicates the approximate change
inthe Group's profit and other components of
consolidated equity in response to a 5% strengthening
of the RMB against the foreign currencies to which the
Group had exposure at the balance sheet date. This
analysis assumes that the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to each for the
Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

HKD
usb e

A 5% weakening of the RMB against the above
currencies at 31 December would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

AT RFARANERESR

Reporting date spot rate
HEAHREER
2012 2011
g

BRBEDH

TRETR  MARBHNATA
SERGEEAERRNINET
B5% @ NREBMEN MRS #E
mEMADNROEE - A0
MERRENEFERELEAER
BEMINEIEREE  YEXE
AEEZERBNZBEFENS
MTAERRER  BFRAHEM
AERR(LERME)RET
g —FT——FNoMRER
BT -

Profit or (loss)
A (E8)
2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT

8,983
59,390

MARBR+=A=+—H8%

IR % « AU Fit
EEEHSR RS BEAR
FEHTE  BRAARGT
BEERETE -

TFFHR 205
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fairvalues
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosure, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant
input is not based on observable market data.

45. £RITH (&)

AR
() HAAAEESIRZEMIA
TREVNREERERRSE

BEEMNETHRESBMTA - W
BIRATZAABE=ZERE
homAREEFEZERT
AZMREE MEEMITAEZ
RRBEREZAIABEAE
BEAZ&KEEREABEM
BROE - AREZEROT

« E-ERBEER
FRSMIANEETS
PR CRERE) i &
DA (EME -

e FIER:HELtemI
ARERTIS®ME - A
EERM(ERABEEX
BABUR Y B R EEE A
ABEMSEEAAN)
ERREE-

o FZER&EEERX) K
EERM(ERRBEEX
BWABUR T FE R BT
BEEBERN)GHEAAE
=0
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45, @M T A (&)
(e) Fair values (Continued) (e) DAEME(E)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (i) UDAAEBEIEzZE®mIA
(Continued) (®|)
2012 —E-CfF

The Group
A5H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F-BX F-EX EZER EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR

Assets BE
Equity securitiesheld — #HERHBHZ
for trading R AR EE 16,436
Other available-for-sale  EfthA] {ft
investment HERE 99,000
115,436
Liabilities aE

Financial derivatives TESRIA

The Company
NG|
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—BX EZENX E=ER #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARET T ARETR ARETR

Assets EE
Financial derivatives TESRTIA
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 45. €T A (&)
(e) Fair values (Continued) (e) 2REMEE)
() Financialinstruments carried at fair value i) UAAEBEIERZEZMIEA
(Continued) (&)
2011 —E——F

The Group
AEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FER F_ER FZER H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Assets BE
Equity securitiesheld — #H{EXHEHZ
for trading N 5,824 - - 5,824
Other available-for-sale  F A AT
investment HERE - 5,000 - 5,000
5,824 5,000 - 10,824
Liabilities =1
Financial derivatives TESBIA - 1,742 - 1,742
- 1,742 - 1,742

The Company
NG

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F-ER FZER FZER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Assets 5E
Financial derivatives ESRIEA - - - -

During the year there were no significant transfers F-BREF-_EBRzIAZ
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. MR EEREHE o
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair values (Continued)

(ii) Fairvalues of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value
The fair values of financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost as at 31 December 2012 and 2011,
together with the carrying amounts shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, are as follows:

2012
—E-CEF

Carrying amount

BEE
RMB'000
ARBTR

921,597

AR

Long-term receivable

Available-for-sale financial assets A[#t &4 BEE 15,432
Entrust loans ERER 70,000
Trade, other receivablesand ~ [EMEEST - L JEIFT

advance depositsexcluding  BRBMEEA

tax prepayments TREREH 1,880,204
Restricted cash FRHEE 832,697
Cashand cashequivalents B RELZEY 816,836
Trade, other payables and TR - HAEN

advance receiptsexcluding ~ BREUFIER

advance receipts from TREBRERPHE

customers and other taxes REMERTE

payable (3,366,169)
Interest-bearing loans HEER (5,604,012)
Long-term payable REEMH (43,067)
Senior notes BERR (1,233,600)

(f) Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changesin assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial instruments:
(i) Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade,
other receivables and advance deposits and trade,
other payables and advance receipts

The carrying values approximate fair value because of
the short maturities of these instruments.

45. € RTHE (&)

(e) ~AnREEGH)
(i) EHAAABEIRZSBT
A

RZB-——FR_FT——%F
+—ﬂ:+—EMW$ﬁ%%
RAFIERGAEEARBRD
FRMIAZARBEREEE
LUNE

201
—F——fF
Carrying amount
RAE
RMB'000
ARBTTL

Fair value
NrBE
RMB'000
ARETT

Fair value
RAEE
RMB'000

ARBT T

921,597 939,672 939,672
15,432 14,032 14,032
70,000 - -
1,880,204 2,202,029 2,202,029
832,697 1,307,467 1,307,467
816,836 1,645,026 1,645,026
(3,366,169) (6,518,734) (6,518,734)
(5.604,012) (6,252,305) (6,252,305)
(43,067) (45,997) (45,997)
(1,233,600) (1,231,418) (1,231,418
(f) DREEMGE
DA BEGBEE RS EOREZ

HEMSERRARZERTANE
BmfEd - ARZE[AAE LB
B AP RTHAREREEREE
WA - MERT—E 0 ERE - E
AfR& LHEE) - HrEEHEE
EBRTE -

HEr S ENEMTA
AT IT0E RARAR

A EERRA

RERRESEEY  ZRHER
& BRRR - Ht B KERE
REMERE BARR - Eft
P RRIA R B WKIA

HRZRETASERE A
B HOREEE A A EEMEL -

(i)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(f) Estimation of fair values (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Equity securities held for trading

Fairvalue is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

Interest-bearing loans

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing loans
approximate their fair value based on the borrowing
rate currently available for interest-bearing loans with
similar terms and maturity.

Long-term receivable and long-term payable

The fair values of long-term receivable and long-term
payable are estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments

An external independent valuation company, with
appropriate recognised professional qualifications,
values the Company’s senior notes at each balance
sheet date. Appropriate valuation methods and
assumptions with reference to market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date to determine the
fairvalue of the embedded financial derivative of
the senior notes that is separated from the host debt
contract are adopted. The basis for determining the fair
value is disclosed in note 37.

The Group relies on the valuations provided by financial
institutions to determine the fair values of the interest
rate swaps based on the discounted cash flow analysis
using the applicable yield curve over the duration of
the instruments. Judgment is required for the variables
used in arriving at these fair values.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in arms’
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. The basis for determining the fair value is
disclosed in note 44.

45. $RITH (&)

D AEEME (F)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BEXZ BN ZRAES
RARBEDIREREE B MEK
B (TMIBERRZ ZEA) &t

2

>

o

bl

FFEEX
R AZ IR A5 AT ER B 165k K B AR
ARENAEERNEER
ROAREXRNEEHEEAR
EEART -

1) e VA1) L
EHEKRRE RN RN D
ABEREARBERENRE
AT LIRS B
ISR -

fTEEmMTA
REEEBBEXRA - —HIND
BB 2T (R ERMITASR
HERERAIZEEER)EHAA
AIMEEZEETTG - AR
AIMETEIRNEEBAELN
BAEENRAXNITESRT
ERNRABEMRBREEE
BEXRAMBIMRERNE
EHEFERBE - BEAR
BEMEERMFI7THE -

REBE KBRS BEBRRMN
E - NEERBIFTRRSR
ESMEEGHONXBHR
REEEIAFHANERER
MU ESERR) © B EAR(E
1B P AR EY B B8 N {58 7 T -

BEER
EELUBERNAAEED
2 RIE AT IR s 2B LR 5 P
WERE) B A M (2nse BV It
ESER)  XB2RBAEREBmG
i BB EEATEEERIBR
TATURER B EBR R K - BA (AT
T M AR I T BT YA ) =
ER LB (angE ¥ B B E BHEL
AISEREE) c EEAAEEN
EERI 445555 o
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(f) Estimation of fair values (Continued)
(vii) Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash
flows, when applicable, are based on the government
yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit
spread, and were as follows:

Long-term receivable R EAE IR
Long-term payable REAFER R
Interest-bearing loans FFREX
Senior notes BEER

.ERIA(E)

DREEMSE (&)

(vi) AfEEEDABEZNE
AUMRE RSN E (MHE
) IR IR B MBI
BHIEN EEENEEEER
HEGFEMT :

2012 2011

—E—C—F —T——F

YA EYS 7.13%

6.90% 6.90%
S 1.30%-13.75%
14.257% 14.257%

46. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(i) Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as
follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years —FERF

 REEEAIE
(i) FEREEANEAE

AL S THE AR AT IR S
MWEEZMT

2012 2011
—g-=% —F——F&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT  ARBFRT
46,374
21,544

Total A&t

67,918

The leases, in respect of office rental charges, run for a period
within five years.

ERAEHEHIARENBEELEDLSF
I
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46. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(ii) Leases as lessor
The Group leases out its properties, which include investment
properties and completed properties held for sale leased out
on a temporary basis, under operating leases. The future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as
follows:

Less than one year

46. REHERIE(HE)

(i) FFREBANESE
AEEBEGEREHANE  BF
BENERYFHENDRRGEY
¥ RETTHBHEARARUT
R ER ) B R EREREM T ¢

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBETT
57,259 41,962

173,813 172,634
216,087 234,090

Between one and five years —FERF
More than five years HBRTF
Total &5t

447,159 448,686

For the year ended 31 December 2012, RMB50,528,000 (2011:
RMB36,430,000) was recognised as rental income in respect
of investment properties in profit or loss.

47. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

MEEREE

Property development activities:

BE-_T——F+-A=+—HBI*F
- ERBREMELEBRERIANA
& WA A ARYS50,528,0000 (=%
——%F : AR¥36,430,0007T) °

47. EAREE

2012 2011
—=—_—F —=——fF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT

552,054 3,445,465
2,141,343 2,174,828

— Contracted but not provided for — BRTAEREE
— Authorised but not contracted for — BRBERRTL
Total of property development MEERBEE
Joint venture interests AEDHEER

2,693,397 5,620,293

Total A&t

2,693,397 5,670,293
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48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and certain
related parties in which a director or shareholder of the Company is

in a position to exercise significant influence are as follows:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2012,

transactions with the following parties were
considered as related-party transactions:

Name of party
BBRALERE

— Mr. Wang Weixian

— Starwaly Properties (Group) Pty Ltd. (“SPG")

— Shanghai ZhongXin

— HERE

— Shenzhen Huibo Investment Development Company
Limited (“Huibo")

—AYIMEBREERERAR([EF])

— Peninsula Waitan

— MBS
— Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited

(“Prestige Glory")

— Boom Rich Investment Limited (“Boom Rich")

— SPG Investment Holdings Limited (“SPG Investment”)

— Tianyuan Lifeng Group

— RRFEEE

48. BEALIRS
AEBEHETHEAL(ARRESTHHRRE
AIEETFEEATEE )NERR S BN
T

() REBEZ=-ZFE—=-—H+=H
=+—HLEFE > BUTAL
ETHRXERBBEALXR
3

Relationship

Bz

The founding equity holder and Chairman
of the Company; Controlling shareholder
of the Company's ultimate holding company
RATEIRREREAFRER
ARSI A R R R

Controlled by Mr. Wang Weixian
BB S A

An associate of the Group until 12 December 2012
AEENBE AR B2 -T——F+-A+=HL

A minority equity holder of Sipo Education
BEHE SN BBERE A

50% indirectly owned by Delta Link
HiDelta Link I #A50%

Equity holder of the Company
and owned by Mr. Wang Weixian
NAFERE AN ERERLESR

Equity holder of the Company
and owned by Ms. Wang Xuling
RRRERE AR ERELLTESR

Equity holder of the Company
and owned by Mr. Wang Weixian
RRAFREREARBERERAHESR

Jointly controlled group of companies of the Group

AREE DR RIE IS E
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48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
transactions with the following parties were
considered as related-party transactions:
(Continued)

Name of party
ARALEE

— Taihu Xincheng
— ARFTI

— Shanghai Zhaozhi
— R

— Peninsula Shanghai (BVI) Ltd. (“Peninsula BVI")

Recurring transactions

Receipt of accommodation services: WY BUE 75 RS :
Peninsula Waitan SN B
Entrust loan (note 22): EEER(MEE22) -
Peninsula Waitan SN B
Financing income: AW -
Peninsula Waitan INEFE
Financing cost: BB
Huibo 1S
Leasing service: HERY -
Shanghai ZhongXin FERE

48. AEAETR5Z (&)

@) R8Ez=-_ZFE—-+=H
=+—HLEFE EBUTAL
ETHRIEEBEALR
% (&)

Relationship

S

A minority equity holder of Wuxi Xindu
LG E ) D B ER A A

An associate of the Group

AR B A A

An associate of the Group

S S NS

(b) BEXS

2012 2011
—E——fF =Rt

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBETT

2,175

50,000

2,266

2,859

2,277

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the above related-party transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms and were priced with reference
to prevailing market prices, and in the ordinary course of
business.

ARRIEFRRLAABEALRHIZ
—REERETET  ABEREXRK
BEPERTEEEERS -
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48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(c) Balances with related parties

As at the end of 2012, the Group had the following balances

with related parties:

Non-trade balances due from related

parties (note 29):

Peninsula Waitan

Mr. Wang Weixian and his close
family members

Prestige Glory

Boom Rich

SPG Investment

Tianyuan Lifeng

Shanghai Zhaozhi

Shanghai ZhongXin

Peninsula BVI

Long-term receivable due from
related parties (note 30):
Tianyuan Lifeng Group

JE W B s A = A R M OB S

(BF7E29)
SN B
FRERER
Hr
Prestige Glory
Boom Rich
SPG Investment
RIRH &
ST
FERE

Peninsula BVI

FEURRRE A TR HAFE WK
(FffE30) -
KB L EE

48. BAEALTR5Z (&)

HEEATHER
BEZT—_FE AKEEEEA
THUT#H

2012 2011

—E-CF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

347

72 72

8 8

12 12

27 27
94,338 75,600
26,465 26,465
- 652

40 40
921,597 939,672

1,045,734 1,042,895
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48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. REALXZ (&)

(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) () EERAE AT WIEER(E)
Long-term receivable due from Tianyuan Lifeng Group is FEW KB LEgh RHEIE T &
unsecured and repayable by 10 annual instalments starting BN AN - E——F+_A=1+—
from 31 December 2012. HiEHD +HIRFEE -

2012 2011
=& —T——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT

Non-trade balances due to related FE BRI A T E M R FUB R

parties (note 35): (PHF7E35) -
SPG SPG
— dividends payable — ERRE 9,173
— other payables — HEAbfERFRIE 4,051
Huibo [ES 5,725
Taihu Xincheng Y NEE 2,522,273
2,541,222
Trade and non-trade balances due from/to related parties are Bl EREEATREREME
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. U/ TEFUEE S AEEE - 28 K

ARERKERE -

2012 2011
—g-=— —2——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETR

Total liabilities associated with HEEAREFENEE
assets classified as held for sale: BEMNBEEE
Taihu Xincheng AT 2,522,273
As disclosed in note 41, the assets and liabilities of Wuxi BN FEAV IR TR - KT A E
Xindu are classified as held for sale, including non-trade LEEREABESE  EREERE
balance due to Taihu Xincheng. AR AT B L A FE A< FRIB A B o

2012 2011
—EB—-CZfF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFT

Other investments — entrust loans HEMRE 28X
(note 22): (fzE22)
Peninsula Waitan SNBSS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 BA B AR B

48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
15 and five of the highest paid to employees as disclosed in
note 16, was as follows:

T& R H b Hr B

Salaries and other emoluments

48. BAEALTR5Z (&)

(d)

Guarantee issued for related parties
The Group also issued guarantees to banks in respect of bank
loans to Taihu Xincheng (note 44).

49. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(i)

(i)

Dividends

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the Board of Directors
meeting held on 28 March 2013, it was resolved that no
dividends were declared for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Major transaction

On 4 January 2013, the Group entered into a share sale
and purchase agreement with Taihu Xincheng pursuant to
which the Group has agreed to sell 60% equity interests in
Wuxi Xindu (the “Project Company”) at a total consideration
of approximately RMB1,099 million. The Project Company
owns a land located at Wuxi, the PRC and is engaged in the
development of the project.

(e)

FREEASHMN

RAGEIE A BH IR IE LM 2155 5
BX T AR REE O H IR
165 BB T AL &S HEES 0
HE - BT

2012
—E—_F
RMB’000
ARBTT

19,313

2011
—T——F

RMB'000
ARETIT

REEALHHNER
AE B TR LA B E R B IR TT B R
FERTTE R (M 5E44) ©

49, #EHREE

0

(i)

Hia%\
BER-_ZT—=F=-A=-1+/\BBEH
MNEEFTERBBRER  AQ
ARFEIAREBEE—_Z——F+=A4
=+—RHULEFEEREMMBS °

FEXRS

RZTE—=F—ANAE  KN&EEH
AKBFHITLRNDEEHGZ @ &
I AEERERERBOARE
1,099,000,0007T H & & #5 ¥ # ([ B
AR ])E60% B AMERS - BIZATA]
BAE—EMAPEESN T {E
1B H HEER -

TE-CFFEW 217
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEZEABER
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31December  31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2011
BE
“T——F
T=A
=t-H S| =
LEE I35 ItFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETR AREBTT ARETT ARETn
Revenue g 1,766,535 5,677,523 4271,189 3,065,441 1,394,993
Cost of sales HERA (1,361,577) (3,738,880) (3,003,983) (2,151,003) (853,196)
Gross profit EFil 404,958 1,938,643 1,267,206 914,438 541,797
Other income HipA 17,691 169,310 3423 5,020 3,289
Selling and marketing costs HERTHEENA (94,615) (105,203) (150,186) (116,507) (69,484)
Administrative expenses THER (316,483) (368,856) (260,446) (154,183) (157,982)
Other operating expenses EtEER (571,114) (109,372) (24,005) (4,994) (7,129)
Net gain on acquisition of a jointly WEERAFZHIEES
controlled entity WE3E - - 149,911 - 48,216
Net gain on disposal of equity interest in HETRRRER
subsidiaries W& FE 134,499 - - - 61,140
Net gain on repurchase of convertible bonds BB ] &E##E5 7 Uiz 548 - - 17,248 49,394 58,252
Results from operating activities RESETHNET (PR 1,524,522 1,003,151 693,168 478,099
Finance income BEWA 99,003 38,937 107,851 16,914 14,199
Finance expenses BERK (277,226) (67,483) (61,982) (86,771) (102,056)
Fair value changes on finandial derivatives  $14 4B I AN AL EELH 852 (25,209) (20,123) 50,263 (42,495)
Net finance (expenses)/income BE(HA)/ MAEE (177,311) (53,755) 25,746 (19,594) (130,352)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates EEBELAR(ER)/8H (102,252) (68,639) 281,792 66,645 (12,717)
Share of losses of jointly controlled entity ElLLREHERER (32,579) (3.333) (20,008) - -
(Loss)/Profit before revaluation gainson &3t RENLEHWER
investment properties and income tax  Fi{S% A () /HH (737,266) 1,398,795 1,290,681 740,219 335,030
Revaluation (losses)/gains on investment RENESRL(FR) /s
properties (65,490) (28,844) 229,203 517,254 25,000
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BATSRIA (B8) /& CUPERE 1,369,951 1,519,884 1257473 360,030
Income tax expense EREY (185,604) (486,631) (618,278) (427,726) (172,025)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HKAAHE (988,360) 883,320 901,606 829,747 188,005
Total comprehensive income UTFATEEZERA
attributable to: b
Equity holders of the Company KREREREA (938,248) 898,320 890,206 678,520 151,499
Minority interests DURERES (50,112) (15,000 11,400 151,227 36,506
Total comprehensive income for the year £E2H KA 2% (988,360) 883,320 901,606 829,747 188,005
(Loss)/Earnings per share sR(E8E)/BH
Basic earnings per share (RMB) SRERBHN(ARET) (0.92) 0.86 0.847 0.644 0.146
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) SREERA(ARYET) (0.92) 0.86 0.823 0.524 0.146
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A 1 B 05 PR 2E

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
REREAMX

31December ~ 31December 31 December 31 December

31 December

2012
—E-CF

=

=t-8
RMB'000
AREFR

RMB'000
ARETT

2010
—ZT-%F
T=A
=t-A
RMB'000
ARET T

2009
NE
TZA
==k
RMB'000
ARETTL

2008

TZA
==k
RMB'000

ARETTL

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment EN 959,388 1,004,473 904,068 236,144 252,756
Intangible assets ayEE 1,521 1,566 1,610 1,655 -
Land use rights TitERE 76,826 78,699 81,732 74,192 79,500
Other investment HipiR& 35,432 14,032 13,032 13,032 -
Properties under development BRTME 4,062,629 6,618,792 3,600,904 4,235,962 2,558,728
Investment properties EEVIES 1,758,000 1,651,000 1,948,000 1,640,500 723,000
Investments in associates BENARE 980,325 1,194,608 1,263,247 989,822 923,177
Interests in ajointly controlled entity LR ERER 702,556 735,135 738,468 - -
Long-term receivable RS 746,590 814,186 814,186 - -
Financial derivatives fTESBTA - - 625 51,491 3382
Deferred tax assets ELREEE 240,571 211,067 139,785 212,969 88,149
Total non-current assets FRBEEAE 9,563,838 12,323,558 9,505,657 7,455,767 4,628,692
Properties under development HRTME 2,380,515 4,452,903 4,921,467 2,963,347 1,800,902
Completed properties held for sale BRKFENE 2,694,340 1,533,109 505,220 235,635 509,861
Other investments Bz E 165,436 10,824 16,115 1,228 856
Trade, other receivables and IR - EfEUGER

advance deposits Bfike 2,230,835 2,439,436 3,270,269 864,878 1,340,466
Long-term receivable with one year —FRFISOR BRI 175,007 125,486 125,486 - -
Restricted cash XRHEE 832,697 1,307,467 1,985,536 2,408,748 539,771
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 816,836 1,645,026 1,514,439 3,038,945 403,531
Assets classified as held for sale BEAREGENEE 4,193,626 - - - -
Total current assets RBEELAE 13,489,292 11,514,251 12,338,532 9,512,781 4,595,387
Total assets BEAE 23,053,130 23,837,809 21,844,189 16,968,548 9,224,079
Equity B
Share capital B 106,591 106,591 106,591 104,347 104,818
Share premium RITRE 2,069,086 2,069,086 2,069,086 2,071,330 2,081,584
Reserves s 790,566 790,993 743,255 721,498 689,460
Retained earnings REHEF 1,312,056 2,258,044 1,499,732 865,426 447,989
Total equity attributable to KAFREREARR

equity holders of the Company BREE 4,278,299 5,224,714 4,418,664 3,762,601 3,323,851
Minority interests SERRES 31213 81,385 108,254 343924 524,409
Total equity BRAE 4,309,572 5,306,099 4,526,918 4.106,525 3,848,260
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

REEERER(E

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

GREESER(E)

Liabilities &

Interest bearing loans GHEER

Trade, other payables and JERTERST - HiERZER
advance receipts Tl

Tax payable JEfITHIE

Long-term payable within one year —FREHORBENT

Total liabilities associated with BEEAREGENEE
assets classified as held for sale BBMNERLE

Total current liabilities FBEELEE

Interest bearing loans SHEER

Long-term payable REERH

Convertible bonds ERES

Financial derivatives fTESBIE

Senior notes BAEE

Deferred tax liabilities EREHEAR

Total non-current liabilities FrRBaEAHE

Total liabilities BEEE

Total equity and liabilities EnRBEAE

31 December
2012
“B--F
T=A
=t-8
RMB'000
ARET T

3,873,190
7,207,334
1,187,142

6,000
3,188,578

15,462,244

1,730,822
317,067

890
1,233,600
278,935
3,281,314

18,743,558

23,053,130

31 December
2011

RMB'000
ARETT

31 December
20

+=A
=+-H
RMB'000
ARBFT

31 December
2009

£

+=A
=t-A
RMB'000
ARETL

31 December

2,077,615 1,534,694 2,135,747 580,000
9512430 10,162,183 5,592,876 1,895,128
1,209,234 879,931 566,663 323,556
6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
12,805279 12,582,808 8,301,286 2,804,684
4,174,690 4,347,386 3,151,292 1,141,860
39,997 42,738 45,301 49,013

- - 902,642 1,029,227

1,742 - - -
1,231,418 - - -
278,584 344,339 461,502 351,035
5,726,431 4,734,463 4,560,737 2,571,135
18,531,710 17,317,271 12,862,023 5,375,819
23,837,809 21,844,189 16,968,548 9,224,079
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46/F, Hong Kong New World Tower
No.300, Huaihai Road Central, Shanghai, China

EEmAESHEZ30055%
BB R KE461E

Tel E5E: (86) 21 5382 2777
Website #3ik: www.spgland.com



	COVER

	INSIDE FRONT COVER

	CONTENTS
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
	AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW
	PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
	REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
	INSIDE BACK COVER

	BACK COVER


